
































































millard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BOARD OF ED UCA TION 
MEETING 

40 DO 4g OD 04 O 

40 40 DO 04 04 00 

APRIL 4, 2005 

~' ~~ a.' "~`r 

. .. ._ .. . . . __ _ . . . ._ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., .~ ~ . ~~ ~.~ ~~ .~~~ ~~ma.~aaaaaaaaaaaaua.auuuu 
1



BUSINESS MEETING 

	

DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
7:00 P.M. 

	

5606 SOUTH 147 

	

STREET 
APRII, 4, 2005 

A. 

	

Call to Order 

B . 

	

Pledge of Allegiance 

C. 

	

Roll Call 

F. 

	

Information Items 
1 . Employees of the Month 
2. Superintendent's Report 
3 . Board Comments/Announcement 
4. Report from Student Representatives 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MII.LARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

AGENDA 

D. 

	

Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and 
comments on agenda items only . Please make sure a request form is given to the Board 
President before the meeting begins . 

E . 

	

Routine Matters 
* 1 . Approval of Board of Education Minutes - March 21, 2005 
*2. Approval of Bills 
*3 . Receive the Treasurer's Report and Place on File 

G. 

	

Unfinished Business 
1 . Awarding of Contracts for Summer Roofing Projects, Tabled on March 21, 2005 

H. 

	

New Business 
1 . Awarding of Contract for Summer Paving Projects 
2 . Awarding of Contract of Architects 
3. Approval of Job Description 2100.04 - Associate Superintendent for General 

Administration 
4. Reaffirm Policy 4110 - Personnel - Personnel Records 
5. Approval of Rule 4110.1- Personnel - Personnel Records 
6. Approval of Rule 4510.5 - Personnel - Extended Leave Without Pay 
7. First Reading of Policy 7305 - Technology - Web Publishing 
8. Administrators for Hire 
9. Approval of Personnel Action(s) : Resignation(s), Leaves) of Absence and Hires 
10. Pupil Services (Executive Session) 
11. Negotiations (Executive Session) 
12. Land Acquisition (Executive Session) 
13. Decision on Parent Request to Pupil Services 

2



I . Reports 
1 . 

	

Enrollment Report 
Agenda 
Apri14, 2005 
Page 2 

2 . 

	

Foundation Grant Winners 
3 . 

	

Quarterly Investment Report 
4 . 

	

Operation & Maintenance Quarterly Report 
5 . 

	

Food Service Quarterly Report 
6. 

	

Quarterly Construction Report 
7 . 

	

Parent Opinion Survey Results 
8 . 

	

Legislative Update 

J. Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 
1 . Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, April 11, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 
2 . Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 2, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 
3 . Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 9, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 
4 . Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 16, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 
5 . Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 
6 . Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 20, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic . 
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting-begins. 

L . Adjournment 

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in 
a single motion . Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board 
member. 

3



BUSINESS MEETING 

	

STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
7:00 P.M. 

	

5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 
APRII. 4, 2005 

A. Call to Order 

B . Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

F.l . 

	

Employees of the Month 

F.2 . 

	

Superintendent's Report 

F.3 . 

	

Board Comments/Announcements 

F.4 . 

	

Report from Student Representative 

.BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MII.LARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and 
comments on agenda items only . Please make sure a request form is given to the Board 
President prior to the meeting, 

*E.1 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by, 

	

, to approve the Board of 
Education Minutes - March 21, 2005 . (See enclosure.) 

*E.2 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by 

	

, to approve the bills . (See 
Enclosures .) 

*E.3 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by 

	

, to receive the Treasurer's Report 
and Place on File . (See enclosure.) 

G.1 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by, 

	

,that the 2005 summer roofing 
projects be awarded as follows : (1) that the Central Middle School contract be awarded 
to Boone Brothers Roofing in the amount of $559,000 with such amount including the 
base bid only, (2) that the North Middle School contract be awarded to Riverside 
Roofing in the amount of $309,999 with such amount including the base bid only, and 
(3) that the Sandoz Elementary School contract be awarded to Roof USA in the amount 
of $275,950 with such amount including the base bid only ; and, further that the 
associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to 
negotiate and execute any and all documents related to such contracts . (See enclosure.) 

4



Administrative Memorandum 
Apri14, 2005 
Page 2 

H.1 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by, 

	

, that the contract for paving 
projects at Harvey Oaks Elementary School and Hitchcock Elementary Schools be 
awarded to Prairie Construction Company in the Amount of $299,875 with such 
amount including the combined lump sum base bid, Alternate P-1, and Alternate P-2 ; 
and, further that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized 
and directed to execute any and all documents related to such projects . (See enclosure.) 

H.2 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by, 

	

, that contracts be awarded to 
BCDM Architects for projects related to the New Alternative School and Beadle 
Middle School, that a contract be awared to DLR Group for the Millard South High 
School Projects, that a contract be awarded to Prochaska & Associates for the Millard 
West High School project, and that contracts be awarded to the Schemmeer Associates 
for projects related to Millard North High School and Ackerman Elementary School ; 
that all such contracts be consistent with the respective responses of such firms to the 
District's RFP for architectural and engineering services ; and, further, that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to negotiate and 
execute any and all documents related to such contracts. (See enclosure.) 

H.3 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by, 

	

, to approve Job Description 
2100.04 - Associate Superintendent for General Administration . (See enclosure.) 

H.4 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by 

	

, to reaffirm Policy 4110 
- Personnel - Personnel Records . (See enclosure.) 

H.S . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by 

	

, to approve Rule 4110.1 
- Personnel - Personnel Records . (See enclosure.) 

H.6 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by 

	

, to approve Rule 4510.5 
Personnel - Extended Leave Without Pay. (See enclosure.) 

H.7 . 

	

First Reading of Policy 7305 - Technology Web Publishing 

H.8 . Motion by 

	

, seconded by 

	

, to approve 
Administrator for Hire : David Hemphill for Assistant Principal at Kiewit Middle 
School . (See enclosure.) 

H.9 . 

	

Motion by 

	

, seconded by 

	

, to approve Personnel 
Actions: Resignations, Leaves of Absence and New Hires . (See enclosure.) 

H.10. 

	

Pupil Services (Executive Session) 

5



Administrative Memorandum 
April 4, 2005 
Page 3 

H.11 . 

	

Negotiation (Executive Session) 

H.12 ; 

	

Land Acquisition (Executive Session) 

H.13 . 

	

High School Student Admission 

I. Reports 
1 . 

	

Enrollment Report 
2. 

	

Foundation Grant Winners 
3. 

	

Quarterly Investment Report 
4. 

	

Operation & Maintenance Quarterly Report 
5. 

	

Food Service Quarterly Report 
6. 

	

Quarterly Construction Report 
7. 

	

Parent Opinion Survey 
8. 

	

Legislative Update 

J . Future Agenda ItemsBoard Calendar 
1 . Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, April 11, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don 

Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147` Street 
2 . Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 2, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 
3 . Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 9, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147"' Street 
4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 16, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147` Street 
5 . Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 
6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 20, 2005 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147' Street 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic . 
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting,begins . 

L. Adjournment 

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in 
a single motion . Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board 
member. 

6



7d 0 e R 
6' 

R R 

7



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4. 2005 

8



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4. 2005 

9



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17 

At 6:45 p.m. Julie Johnson opened the public hearing on land acquisition. 

Dr. Crawford responded to the four questions stating 

Duncan Young explained and discussed the four items requested. 

Enclosure E .l . 
April 4, 2005 

A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of 
Douglas in the State of Nebraska. This meeting was convened in open and public session at 6:30 
p.m., Monday, March 21, 2005, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th 
Street. 

PRESENT: 

	

Julie Johnson, Jean Stothert, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, Brad Burwell, and Mike 
Kennedy 

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on 
March 18, 2005; a copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this 
meeting was given to all members of the Board of Education and a copy of their 
Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes. 
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of 
Education of this meeting. All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened 
meeting was open to the attendance of the public . 

Mrs. Johnson stated that the public hearing regarding the acquisition of private real property by 
the Millard Public School District, for a proposed elementary school project. The private real 
property to be acquired is 10 acres, more or less, of land owned by Y. W. Paasch, LLC., Judith 
Y. Wigton, and the Estate of Lawrence W. Youngman. Notice of this hearing was published 
once, at least 10 days prior too today's date, in the Daily Record, a legal newspaper published in 
and of general circulation in Douglas County. Notice of this public hearing was also provided to 
each of the owners by United States mail. 

Mrs. Johnson asked Dr. John Crawford, on behalf of the Millard Public School District, address 
the Board, to explain and discuss: 1) The nature of the proposed elementary school project; 2) 
The necessity for the proposed elementary school project; 3) The reasons for selecting the 
proposed location of the elementary school ; and 4) The quantity of land needed to complete the 
elementary school project. 

Mrs. Johnson then asked Duncan Young, the district's attorney, to explain and discuss: 1) The 
right of each owner to be represented by an attorney during the purchase negotiations ; 2) The 
right of each owner to negotiate and accept or reject the offer of damages, which will be 
sustained by the acquisition; 3) The right of each owner to require that such damages be 
determined pursuant to the procedures for acquiring real property by eminent domain; and 4) 
That the interest to be acquired in the real property will be a fee simple absolute interest . 

Mrs. Johnson asked for comments and objections by any person in attendance . No one in 
attendance requested to speak. Mrs. Johnson stated that there being no other business the Public 
Hearing was adjourned . 

10



Board of Education Minutes 
March 21, 2005 
Page 2 

At 7:00 p.m. Julie Johnson called the meeting to order and asked everyone to say the Pledge of 
Allegiance . 

Roll call was taken and all board members were present. 

Dr. Johnson asked for a motion to table H.S . - Awarding of Contracts for summer roofing 
projects until the next meeting. 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, to table H.S . - Awarding of Contracts for 
Summer Roofing Projects until the next meeting. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. 
Motion carried. 

Comments from the Public : Two residents explained their reasons for wanting their option 
request to have their next years kindergartener attend Abbot Elementary along with their children 
who currently attend Abbott. 

One resident asked the board to reconsider a different roofing system, so they would save funds. 

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve the Board of Education 
Minutes of Monday, March 7, 2005, to approve bills, and to receive the treasurer's report and 
place on file . Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried. 

Brad Burwell summarized the Committee of the Whole meeting on Monday, March 14, 2005 . 
The discussion that evening was on the bond issue. 

Dr. Lutz introduced Joan Birches, from Millard Wells Fargo Bank, and Dave Kramer, President 
of Wells Fargo Bank, who presented a check to Dr. Lutz in the amount of $3,895.00. This was 
from a bank campaign when anyone opened a checking account at Wells Fargo, they intern 
donated a certain amount of money to the school district . 

Showcase highlighted students who received a Gold Key Award and those students who were 
recognized as middle school all state musicians . 

Superintendent's Report : 

1 . 

	

Reminder to board members about the luncheon meeting with senators that is scheduled 
for Wednesday, March 23, 2005 in Lincoln. Attending the luncheon will be Senators Pahls, 
Raikes, Brashear, Redfield, and Langemeier . 

2. 

	

Dr. Lutz explained the new administrators setup in the boardroom. 

Comments from the Board: 

Linda Poole reported she attended the NASB board meeting in Lincoln, and as soon as she 
receives the minutes she will forward them to the other board members. Discussion centered 
around salaries, she noted. 11



Board of Education Minutes 
March 21, 2005 
Page 3 

Mrs. Poole thanked Duncan Young for his help with the contract for the Executive Director at 
NASB, because he had not been working with a contract . 

Mrs. Poole said she attended the Conference planning meeting for the NASB Conference and she 
announced that the musical group from Millard West High School would be asked to perform in 
November. She indicated that Millard is going to be asked to participate in a variety of 
presentations . She said she had submitted a proposal on the article on the case study hat Jean, 
Dr. Lutz, and John Crawford had in the NSBA publication. Rick Kolowski will be presenting on 
Rethinking the High Schools in America, and Jon Lopez has presented a proposal on small 
learning communities, which has also been accepted. The district was also asked to do a 
presentation on How to Pass a Bond Issue in Tough Economic Times. Another district had 
submitted a proposal on having student representation at board meetings, which Millard already 
has, so Mrs. Poole said they might want the Millard student representatives to participate. 
Millard was asked to do about seven presentations, but Mrs. Poole said they probably would not 
ask Millard to do all of them. Millard will be busy at the state conference. 

Mrs. Poole attended the Back to the Basics law seminar that was held in Omaha, which was 
sponsored by NASB and the Nebraska Council of School Attorneys. 

Mrs. Poole congratulated the Millard West boys for coming in first at the Burke relays, and the 
girls came in second. 

Jean Stothert said she attended the district PTO meeting that was held on February 24, 2005. 
She said it good to hear comments and concerns expressed by the members of the group. 

The March Metropolitan Area Boards of Education meeting was held at Westside during the 
time Mrs. Stothert was out of town. 

Mike Kennedy announced that he would be attending the luncheon with the State Senators on 
Wednesday, March 23, 2005. 

Mr. Kennedy reported that he has received a phone call from an individual who purchased a 
home across the way from Reeder Elementary, and then found out they were not in the Millard 
School District as previously told by their real estate person . He also received a call from a 
parent at Wheeler Elementary about the enrollment at the building. 

Elise Devaux student representative from Millard South High School, Sarah Fech, student 
representative from Millard North High School, and Elise Lane, student representative from 
Millard West High School reported on the academic and athletic activities at their respective 
high schools. 

Mike Pate provided the final reading of Policy 7500 - Technology - Telephone Equipment and 
Telephone Systems. Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve Policy 7500 - 
Technology - Telephone Equipment and Telephone Systems: Acceptable Use. Upon roll call 
vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried . 

12



Board of Education Minutes 
March 21, 2005 
Page 4 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Jean Stothert, to approve Rule 7500.1- Technology - 
Telephone Equipment and Telephone Systems. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. 
Motion carried. 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve the Option & Transfer Capacity 
Standards Amendment of Language to "Limited Open". Mrs. Poole applied a friendly 
amendment stating the "Limited Open" is for Abbott and Ezra Elementary Schools only at this 
time. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye on the amended motion. Motion carried. 

Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Linda Poole, that the construction contract for the 
improvements at Buell Stadium be awarded to Nemaha Landscape in the amount of $1,065,375 
(with such amount including the Lump Sum Base Bid of $687,000, Alternate CCS for Sprinturf 
Ultrablade in the amount of $378,375, and Alternate CCO15 Soccer Field Inland Striping for no 
additional charge): that the District direct purchase (in an amount not to exceed $25,000) all 
necessary equipment to maintain such synthetic surfacing; and, that the associate superintendent 
for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to 
such. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried. 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Brad Burwell, that contract for the design of Elementary 
#24 be awarded to The Schemmer Associates, that the contract for the design of Elementary #25 
be awarded to the DLR Group, and to table the contract for the design of the additions to Beadle 
Middle School, and that all such contracts be consistent with the respective responses of such 
firms to the District's RFP for architectural and engineering services, and, further, that the 
associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to negotiate and 
execute any and all documents related to such contracts . Upon roll call vote, all members voted 
aye. Motion carried . 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Kennedy, do hereby move the passage and adoption 
of the RESOLUTION CANVASSING RESULTS OF THE SPECIAL BOND ELECTION OF 
DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 017 (MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS) HELD ON 
FEBRUARY 15, 2005 AND DETERMINING THAT A MAJORITY OF THE QUALIFIED 
ELECTORS VOTING ON THE QUESTION OF THE ISSUANCE OF UP TO $78,000,000 OF 
BONDS OF SAII~ DISTRICT VOTED IN FAVOR OF SAII~ BONDS AND LEVY OF 
RELATED TAX. Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion carried. 

Motion by Jean Stothert, seconded by Brad Burwell, to approve Administrators or Hire: Brad 
Millard, Assistant High School Principal, at Millard South High School and Jenna Lichter, 
Assistant High School Principal, Millard South High School . Upon roll call vote, all members 
voted aye. Motion carried. 

Motion by Brad Burwell, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Personnel Actions: Leaves of 
Absence: Kimberly Bunnell, Chance Nyffeler, and Annette Markin; New Hires: Tyler 
Hammond, Stephanie Mehmen, Jill Prochaska, Matt Beiriger, and Eric Engstrom ; and Voluntary 
Early Separation Program: Georgia Gaukel Upon roll call vote, all members voted aye. Motion 
carried . 

Negotiation was delayed to the end of the meeting for Executive Session. 13





~, 
0 

r* 
0 0 
Fo 

15



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4, 2005 

16



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4, 2005 

17



March 30, 2005 

TO: Board Members 

FROM: Amy Friedman 

RE: 

	

Employees of the Month 

AFap 

millard 
Enclosure F .1 . 
April 4, 2005 

PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Don Stroh Administration Center " 5606 So, 147th Street " Omaha, NE 68137-2604 " (402) 895-8200 " Fax (402) 895-8409 

The Employees of the Month for April are Kathy Torres, kindergarten teacher at Cottonwood 
Elementary and Bob Honeywell, custodian at Hitchcock Elementary . 

MILLARD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Brad Burwell, Julie A, Johnson, Mike Kennedy, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, Jean Stothert, Keith Lutz, Ed,D� Superintendent 18



C 

es 

er 

bd 

... 0 

19



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4. 2005 

20



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4. 2005 

21



AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Awarding of Contracts for 2005 Summer Roofing Projects 

MEETING DATE: 

	

Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

General Administration 

TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: 

	

Awarding of Contracts for 2005 Summer Roofing Projects - The awarding of the 
roof replacement contracts for Central MS, North MS, and Sandoz Elementary 
School . 

ACTION DESIRED : 

	

Approval 

	

x 

	

Discussion - 

	

Information Only 

BACKGROUND: 

	

This matter was tabled at the 3-21-OS board meeting. 

OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

RECOMMENDATION: 

	

It is recommended that the 2005 summer roofing projects be awarded as follows: 
(1) that the Central Middle School contract be awarded to Boone Brothers Roofing 
in the amount of $559,000 with such amount including the base bid only, (2) that 
the North Middle School contract be awarded to Riverside Roofing in the amount 
of $309,999 with such amount including the base bid only, and (3) that the Sandoz 
Elementary School contract be awarded to Roof USA in the amount of $275,950 
with such amount including the base bid only ; and, further that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to negotiate 
and execute any and all documents related to such contracts . 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 

IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

TIMELINE: Immediate 

SUPERINTENDENT'S 
APPROVAL: 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Enclosure G.1 . 
April 4, 2005 

See the attached memo and bid tab sheet. Also see the memo from Ken Fossen for 
additional information. 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: 

	

Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

22





Bid Tabulation - MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

	

Bid Date/Time: Wednesday, March 9, 2005/2:00 p.m . 
Project No . s 3025-06, 3027-04, 3020-03 2005 MISCELLANEOUS REROOFS 

Architect: BCDM, Inc. 
1015 North 98th Street, Omaha, NE 68114 

	

Owner: Millard Public Schools 

BOONE WESTURN CEDAR ACADEMY SPRAGUE 
BIDDERS: BROTHERS ROOFING RL CRAFT RIVERSIDE ROOF USA ROOFING ROOFING 

559, 000.00 569,000 .00 617,300.00 646,833.00 583,400.00 740,000.00 NO BID 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL 

326,000.00 322,000 .00 NO BID 309,999 .00 323,580 .00 425,000.00 NO BID 
NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL 

SANDOZ ELEMENTARY 286,500.00 267,000.00 NO BID 293,668 .00 275,950 .00 395,000 .00 440,000.00 

VOLUNTARY SUBSTITUTIONS 

TREMCO 
GARLAND XTREME GARLAND 

GARLAND 
GAF - 30 YEAR GAF - 4 PLY BUR 

30 YEAR SMOOTH 30 YEAR STESSPLY E WARRANTY W/ GRAVEL & 30 
WARRANTY DEDUCT-$35 WARRANTY 

DEDUCT DEDUCT YEAR NDL 
DEDUCT PER SQ. FT DEDUCT NONE 

CMS - 23,600 CMS - 85,000 WARRANTY 
CMS - 25,200 TREMCO P . P. (WAR RANTY 

CMS - 24,950 
N MS - 60, 000 I-4-1 DFR-6 

NMS - 15,500 STANDARD CHARGE) NMS - 15,083 SES - 55,000 DEDUCT 113,100 
SES - 10,150 DEDUCT - $105 SES - 9,620 

PER SQ. FT . 

ADDENDUM RECEIPT CC-1 CC-1 CC-1 CC-1 CC-1 CC-1 CC-1 
(One Addenda Issued) 

YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 
BID BOND RECEIPT 

Notes: 

23



bcdm 

architecture 
landscape architecture 

interior design 
construction management 

1015 North 98th Street 
Suite 300 

Omaha, NE 681 14-2334 
www.bcdm.net 

Phone (402) 391-221 I 
Fax (402) 391-8721 

17 March 2005 

Mr. Ken Fossen 
Millard Public Schools 
5606 South 147' Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 

Millard Public Schools 
2005 Miscellaneous Reroofs 
BCDM Project Nos. 3025-06, 3027-04, and 3020-03 

Dear Mr. Fossen : 

RECD MAR 1 ~ 2005 

Beringer Ciaccio Dennell Mabrey 

On Wednesday, March 9, at 2:00 p.m ., bids were received for the 2005 Miscellaneous Reroofs 
project, for work at Central Middle School (west Classroom Wings), North Middle School 
(Phase Three of a three phase project), and Sandoz Elementary School (Phase Two of a two 
phase proj ect) . Bid Tabulations are attached for reference . While extremely competitive, bids 
received were slightly above proj ected budgets. In addition to the base bids, multiple voluntary 
substitution bids were received at each school . 

Base bids were specified around a built-up roofing system with a requirement for a 30 year 
warranty . Voluntary substitutions were received for a built-up roofing system with a cap sheet 
component other than what was specified, and also for a 30 year warranty with reduced 
requirements from what was specified. 

The specified system represents a continuing effort by the district to improve the quality of the 
roofs on its facilities, with warranties extended beyond what has been required in the past . 
Integral with the augmented system materials is the requirement for the system manufacturer to 
perform stringent on-site reviews during the installation process, as well as the requirement to 
perform post-installation reviews throughout the life of the roof. While the voluntary 
substitutions offer some potential cost savings to the district, we recommend that all proj ects be 
awarded for the base bid systems and warranties specified . We believe this is in keeping with 
the districts efforts to enforce the project specifications to their fullest . 

Our recommendations for award of the bids are as follows: 

Central Middle School: 

" 

	

At Central Middle School, the low base bid was received from Boone Brothers Roofing 
in the amount of $559,000.00. BCDM has contacted Rich Boone with Boone Brothers 
Roofing and confirmed that they can perform the work for the bid amount. We have been 
involved with Boone Brothers on a number of roofing projects, and they have always 
performed satisfactorily . Boone Brothers has completed a number of roofing proj ects for 
the district in the past, including two reroofs in 2004. 

24



Mr. Ken Fossen 
Millard Public Schools 
17 March 2005 
Page 2 

" 

	

In addition to the base bid, Boone Brothers included a Voluntary Substitution (deduct 
$25,200 .00) on their bid form, to provide a reduced warranty in lieu of the specified 
warranty. While BCDM does not recommend reducing the specified requirements, this 
does offer potential savings to the district, and warranted a notation in this letter of 
recommendation . 

We recommend that the contract be awarded to Boone Brothers in the amount of $559,000.00, 
which is for the base system as specified . 

Millard North Middle School: 

" 

	

At Millard North Middle School, the low base bid was received from Riverside Roofing 
in the amount of $309,999.00. BCDM has contacted Scott Risdon with Riverside Roofing 
and confirmed that they can perform the work for the bid amount. We have contacted 
references provided by Riverside and believe they can perform as required by the 
specifications . 

" In addition to the base bid, Riverside included a Voluntary Substitution (deduct 
$15,083 .00) on their bid form, to provide a reduced warranty in lieu of the specified 
warranty. While BCDM does not recommend reducing the specified requirements, this 
does offer potential savings to the district, and warranted a notation in this letter of 
recommendation . 

We recommend that the contract be awarded to Riverside Roofng in the amount of 
$309,999 .00, which is for the base system as specified . 

Sandoz Elementary School: 

" 

	

At Sandoz Elementary School, the low base bid was received from Westurn Cedar 
Roofing in the amount of $267,000.00. BCDM has contacted Bill Feile with Westurn 
Cedar Roofing and confirmed that they will perform the work for the bid amount . After 
contacting references provided by Westurn Cedar, we determined that the majority of the 
work performed by their Omaha office has been with roofing systems other than what was 
specified (primarily steep slope roofs, with an occasional adjacent area of low slope 
roofing) . Westurn Cedar is a nationwide company (Home Office in Minneapolis, with 
additional offices in Denver, Kansas City, Portland, and Seattle, along with their office in 
Omaha) that is in the process of entering the Omaha market for low slope roofing. Bill has 
noted that he and the project foreman, Lloyd Toney have been with Westurn Cedar since 
last fall, and have installed roofing similar to that specified for over 15 years at companies 
other than Westurn Cedar. He also has installed roofs for both the Garland Company and 
Tremco, two approved manufacturers in the current specification. In our opinion, Westurn 
Cedar's Omaha office does not meet the requirements that the installer "shall be a firm 
with not less than five years of successful experience in installation of built-up 
roofing systems", and as such we are unable to recommend award to them for this 
proj ect. 

25



Mr. Ken Fossen 
Millard Public Schools 
17 March 2005 
Page 3 

" 

	

Also at Sandoz Elementary School, the second low base bid was received from Roof 
USA in the amount of $275,950.00. BCDM has contacted Kevin Panaggio with Roof 
USA and confirmed that they will perform the work for the bid amount . We have been 
contacted references provided by Roof USA and believe they can perform as required by 
the specifications . 

We recommend that the contract be awarded to Roof USA in the amount of $275,950.00, 
which is for the base system as specified: 

BCDM will be available to attend the March 21, 2005 School Board Meeting to assist in any 
discussion regarding the award of the contract . 

Paul J. Kelly, AIA 
Beringer Ciaccio Dennell Mabrey 

PJK/mms 
Enclosure 

c: 

	

Files 3020-03 - 2 .1, 3025-06 - 2.1, 3027-04 - 2.1 

26



To : 

	

K. Lutz 
From: K . Fossen 
Re: Roofing 
Date : 

	

March 30, 2005 

MEMORANDUM 

At the last board meeting, the board tabled action on the awarding of the summer 
roofing contracts . One of the issues which resulted in the tabling of the awards was 
related to the protest of low bidder on the Sandoz project. As you will recall, the 
architect disqualified the low bidder based upon his review of the bidder's qualifications . 

Subsequent to the last board meeting, I have had the opportunity to visit at length 
with Bill Fiele, the "manager of the commercial division" of the low bidder. Our 
conversations were cordial but somewhat frustrating for me. I'll try to summarize my 
concerns (which are consistent with the architect's concerns) in this memo. 

Before getting to the particulars, I'd like to note that I entered into communication 
with the low bidder with the hopes of being able to recommend accepting their bid (i.e ., 
setting aside the recommendation of the architect) . My reason for this bias in favor of the 
low bidder was that he was using Tremco products . The second low bidder was using 
Garland products . Since we have not had a roof yet with Tremco products, I really 
wanted to get them into the competition. [Note : GAF products were also bid as a 
voluntary alternate . I don't know if they meet the standard or not because it was a moot 
issue . Their contract vendors submitted bids that were above the low bids using Tremco 
and Garland products.] 

Now, for the substantive issues . You will note above that I refer to the "low 
bidder" rather than a company name. There is a reason for that . The envelope we 
received containing the bids carried the name of "Westurn Cedar Roofing ." [Note : The 
name is spelled with a "u" in "Westurn ."] The bid carried the name of "Westurn 
Roofing." The bid bond carried the name of "Westurn Roofing and Siding." You will 
also note that the correspondence you received from Mr. Fiele was on letterhead carrying 
the name "Westurn Roofing and Siding." 

With the above facts in mind, I contacted Mr. Fiele to determine if there was more 
than one corporation, what the relationship of the corporations was, and which 
corporation was actually submitting the bid . 

Since the bid bond was in the name of "Westurn Roofing and Siding," I assumed 
that this was the company submitting the bid . In my discussions with Mr. Fiele, 
however, he said that the company submitting the bid was "Westurn Cedar Roofing" (i.e ., 
the name on the envelope, but not on the bid, the bid bond, or your correspondence) . In 
an attempt to clarify the issues, I asked Mr. Fiele which corporation issued his paycheck . 
His response was, "That's a good question . I don't know." I asked him to gather more 
information and get back to me. 

27



As you well know, the corporate structure is a critical issue in the roofing 
industry . It's not uncommon to hear (on the 6 o'clock news) about thinly financed 
roofing contractors declaring bankruptcy and leaving owners in a lurch. We don't want 
to have a contractor walk out on us leaving us with a torn off roof and rains approaching. 

The following day, Mr. Fiele sent me additional information. He also called me 
on the phone. Following our discussion, I jotted myself the following notes: 

1 . 

	

"Westurn Cedar Supply" is a Minnesota corporation and is the parent of the 
other corporations carry the "Westurn." 

2. "Western Roofing and Siding" is a Minnesota corporation. 
3. "Western Cedar Roofing, LLC" is a Nebraska corporation . 
4. "Westurn Cedar" is an a/k/a for both Westurn Cedar Supply and Western 

Cedar Roofing. 
5. "Westurn Roofing" is an a1k/a for multiple corporations . 

During all of the confusion related to the corporate entity in question, I decided to 
call some references. I called some of the references given to you by Mr. Fiele. I also 
called some other people he mentioned in his letter . These references, in turn, gave me 
other people to call . In a nutshell, the information I received was mixed. The 
information related to actual roof installation was generally good (especially as it related 
to Mr. Tooney who would be working in a foreman role with Mr. Fiele) . Information 
regarding organizational and business matters was generally not as positive . [Note: This 
was consistent with my experiences in trying to sort out the corporation issues .] 

Still confused on the corporate issue, I went to the architect's office last Friday 
and requested to see the standard AIA305 form required of the low bidders on each 
proj ect. The information I was particularly interested in was: (1) the corporation 
involved, (2) the financial condition of the corporation, (3) whether or not the parent 
corporation would act as guarantor for the project, and (4) the capacity of the corporation 
to get bonding for the project. 

When reviewing the AIA305 for the low bidder on the Sandoz project, I noted the 
following : 

1. 

	

With regard to the corporation name, the first submittal to the architect was 
not complete and didn't even have the name of the organization. The architect 
returned it for proper completion . The third (and latest) submittal to the 
architect showed on Page 1 that the organization was "Westurn Cedar Roof," 
however, the last page (with the required signatures) referred to the 
organization as "Westurn Roofing and Siding ." 

2. With regard to the financial condition of the corporation, the AIA305 
indicated that the sales volume for the last three years was as follows: 2002 
was $8,647,528 ; 2003 was $4,020,248 ; and 2004 was $2,197,828 (through 
10/31) . Also, the assets were shown as $750,432 with liabilities of $701,098. 

28



This should have resulted in a net worth of only about $50,000, however, the 
net worth was reported at $1,686,938 . 

3 . With regard to the parent acting as guarantor, there was no such indication . 

4. 

	

With regard to bonding capacity, the space was left blank. 

In light of all of the above issues, I again called Mr. Fiele and explained the issues 
noted above. He asked me what my expectation was and I told him that I would need 
him (or someone at the appropriate corporation) to fully and accurately complete the 
AIA305 and get it to me by Monday because I had to get the materials for the board 
packet completed on Tuesday. Mr. Fiele said that he and his boss were headed for 
Florida and that it might be difficult to get the AIA305 done as requested . 

As of the writing of this memo, I have heard nothing further from Mr. Fiele or any 
of the corporations carrying the "Westurn" name. I did call Mr. Fiele's office yesterday 
afternoon (Tuesday) and was told that he was "in the field" and would not be back until 
probably Wednesday. 

In light of the above, I am of the opinion that the architect's recommendation to 
disqualify the low bidder on Sandoz was appropriate (even though I really wanted to have 
a project with Tremco products this summer). 

If you have any questions, give me a call . 

29



z 

rv d 

30



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4s 2005 

31



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4. 2005 

32



AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Awarding of Contract for Summer Paving Projects 

MEETING DATE: 

	

Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

General Administration 

TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: 

	

Awarding of Contract for Summer Paving Projects - The awarding of the contracts 
for paving projects at Harvey Oaks Elementary and Hitchcock Elementary 
Elementary . 

ACTION DESIRED: 

	

Approval 

	

x 

	

Discussion - 

	

Information Only 

BACKGROUND: 

	

See the attached memo from Dale Nielsen (DLR Group) 

OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

RECOMMENDATION: 

	

It is recommended that the contract for paving projects at Harvey Oaks Elementary 
School and Hitchock Elementary Schools we awarded to Prairie Construction 
Company in the amount of $299,875 with such amount including the combined 
lump sum base bid, Alternate P-1, and Alternate P-2; and, further, that the 
associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to 
execute any and all documents related to such projects . 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 

IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

TIMELINE: Immediate 

SUPERINTENDENT'S 
APPROVAL : 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: 

	

Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

Enclosure R.1 . 
April 4, 2005 

33



RE: 

Dear Mr. Fossen : 

On Thursday, March 24, 2005, bids were received for the Pavement Replacement at Hitchcock 
and Harvey Oaks Elementary Schools . The two paving projects were bid separately and combined 
to help obtain the lowest bid for the work. The combined bid from Prairie Construction Company 
was the lowest bid . 

A copy of the site plans showing existing conditions and new construction is attached to this letter . 
A copy of the Bid Tabulation is attached also . 

Two alternates were included at the Hitchcock Elementary Site . The first alternate, No. P-1, 
included removal and replacement of cracked sidewalks at the entry walks to the school . The 
second alternate, No. P-2, included construction of a concrete screen wall to help buffer the view 
of the refuse container located adjacent to the new drop off / loading cul-de-sac southeast of the 
school . 

It is recommended to accept the combined bid of Prairie Construction Company of $299,875.00 
which includes the Lump Sum Base Bid of $293,500.00 ; Alternate P-1 walk replacement of 
$3,275.00 ; and Alternate P-2 screen wall of $3,100.00 . 

I will be available at the April 4, 2005 Board Meeting to assist in any discussion regarding approval 
of the above recommendations . 

Sincerely, 

Millard Public Schools 
Hitchcock and Harvey Oaks Elementary Schools 
Pavement Replacement 
DLR Group Project No. 10-05111-00 / 10-05112-00 

ale A. Nielsen, LA 
Principal in the Firm 

DAN :ww 

Enclosure 

cc : 

	

Ed Rockwell 

	

Pat Phelan 
George Killian 

	

Lynn Thompson 

Omaha 

	

Chicago 

	

Colorado Springs 

	

Des Moines 

	

Farmington 

	

Honolulu 

	

Kansas City 

	

Milwaukee 
Minneapolis Orlando Overland Park Philadelphia Phoenix Portland Sacramento Seattle Tampa 

DLR Group 
March 28, 2005 RECD Architecture Engineering Planning Interiors 

400 Essex Court, Regency Park 
Omaha, NE 68114-3778 

Mr. Ken Fossen tel 402/393-4100 
Millard Public Schools fax 402/393-8747 
5606 South 147th Street omahaQadlrgroup.com 

Omaha, NE 68137 www.dlrgroup .com 

34



NORTH 
NO SCALE 

EXISTING PARKING STALLS =114 

DLR Group 
Architecture Engineering Planning Interiors 

®,~.o~~~~,M . .~aa~.W~.AAAUR~~~.s~~,~ 

0-05� ,-00 

3-03-OS 

HITCHCOCK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 35



NORTH 
NO SCALE 

d 

PROPOSED PARKING STALLS = 81 
PROPOSED ADA ACCESSIBLE STALLS = 3 

DLR Group 
Architecture Engineering Planning Interiors 

Q~.o~~~~~rc . .~ae~ ~ o~aua~~~saE=E~,EO 

10-05111-00 

3-03-05 

HITCHCOCK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 36



NORTH 
NO SCALE 

~ DLRGroup 
Architecture Engineering Planning Interiors 

©,~. ~ ~~~ . .~ .,~~ . ~ ba .~awMSwE~R�Eo 

,0-OS112-00 

3-03-05 

EXISTING PARKING STALLS = 37 

HARVEY OAKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 37



DLR Group 
Architecture Engineering Planning Interiors 

o,~o~~~w ;K .~a~~. tiaua~M=aE=~,Eo 

HARVEY OAKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 38



BID TABULATION - COMBINED BID 
HITCHCOCK AND HARVEY OAKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Omaha, Nebraska 
DLR Group Project No . 10-05111-00 

DLR Group 
Architecture Engineering Planning Interiors 

400 Essex Court, Regency Park 
Omaha, NE 68114-3778 
tel 402/393-4100 
fax 402/393-8747 
omaha~dlrgroup .com 

www.d I rgroup .com 

COMBINED CONTRACT Prairie Construction Remcon, Inc . 
Omaha, NE Omaha, NE 

BID BOND ,/ 

ADDENDA: N/A 

LUMP SUM BASE BID: $293,500.00 $310,000.00 

ALTERNATES: 
Alternate No . P-1 (Hitchcock Elementary School) . Remove existing 
concrete sidewalk and add new concrete sidewalk . $3,275 .00 $3,350.00 
Alternate No . P-2 (Hitchcock Elementary School) . Add concrete 
screen wall . $3,100.00 $4,900.00 

UNIT PRICES: 
1 . Furnish and install structural concrete stoops at Hitchcock 
Elementa School . Add $1,550.00 $750.00 
2 . Remove and replace additional existing 12'-0" wide x 17'-0" 
long x 7" thick concrete pavement panels over and above those 
shown on the Drawings at Hitchcock Elementary School . Add $1,400 .00 $850.00 

TOTAL: $299,875 .00 $318,250.00 

PRIME SUBCONTRACTORS: 
Electrical Work: Vierregger Electrical 

or Donovan Electric 
Vierregger Electric 

39



BID TABULATION - HARVEY OAKS BID 
HARVEY OAKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Omaha, Nebraska 
DLR Group Project No. 10-05112-00 

DLR Group 
Architecture Engineering Planning Interiors 

400 Essex Court, Regency Park 
Omaha, NE 68114-3778 
tel 402/393-4100 
fax 402/393-8747 
omaha~dlrgroup.com 

COMBINED CONTRACT Prairie Construction Remcon, Inc . US Asphalt 
Omaha, NE Omaha, NE Omaha, NE 

BID BOND 

ADDENDA: N/A 

LUMP SUM BASE BID: $118,500.00 $125,000 .00 $189,900.00 

TOTAL: 

PRIME SUBCONTRACTORS: 
Electrical Work: Vierregger Electric 

or Donovan Electric 
Vierregger Electric Vierregger Electric 

40



BID TABULATION - HITCHCOCK BID 
HITCHCOCK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Omaha, Nebraska 
DLR Group Project No . 10-05111-00 

®DLR Group 
Architecture Engineering Planning Interiors 

400 Essex Court, Regency Park 
Omaha, NE 68114-3778 
tel 402/393-4100 
fax 402/393-8747 
omaha~dlrgroup .com 

COMBINED CONTRACT All Purpose Constr . Prairie Construction Remcon, Inc. US Asphalt 

LaVista, NE Omaha, NE Omaha, NE Omaha, NE 

BID BOND 

I~ADDENDA: N/A 

LUMP SUM BASE BID : $209,350.00 $177,000.00 $192,000.00 $248,432.00 

ALTERNATES: 
Alternat No . P-1 Hitchcock EI menta Sch of . Remove existing 
concrete sidewalk and add new concrete sidewalk . $3,100.00 $3,275.00 $3,350.00 $4,500.00 

Alternate No . P-2 (Hitchcock Elementary School) . Add concrete 
screen wall . $2,025.00 $3,100.00 $4,900.00 $6,000.00 

UNIT PRICES: 
1 . Furnish and install structural concrete stoops at Hitchcock 
Elements School . Add $1,450.00 $1,550.00 $750.00 $2,500.00 
2 . Remove and replace additional existing 12'-0" wide x 1 T-0" 
long x 7" thick concrete pavement panels over and above those 
shown on the Drawings at Hitchcock Elementary School . Add $1,058 .00 $1,400.00 $850.00 $1,322 .00 

TOTAL : 

PRIME SUBCONTRACTORS : 
Electrical Work : Vierreger Electric, 

Omaha Electric 
Service or Donovan 

Electric 

Vierreger Electric or 
Donovan Electric 

Vierreger Electric Vierreger Electric 

41



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Awarding of Contracts for Architects 

MEETING DATE: 

	

Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

General Administration 

TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION : 

	

Awarding of Contracts for Architects - The awarding of contracts for architects for 
the 2005 bond issue projects . 

ACTION DESIRED : 

	

Approval 

	

x 

	

Discussion - 

	

Information Only 

BACKGROUND: 

	

At the last board meeting, the board approved the awarding of contracts to DLR 
(for Elementary #5) and The Schemmer Associates (for Elementary #24) . The 
other recommendations for architects are being presented at this meeting. 

OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

RECOMMENDATION: 

	

It is recommended that contracts be awarded to BCDM Architects for projects 
related to the New Alternative School and Beadle Middle School, that a contract be 
awarded to DLR Group for the Millard South High School project, that a contract 
be awarded to Prochaska & Associates for the Millard West High School project, 
and that contracts be awarded to The Schemmer Associates for projects related to 
Millard North High School and Ackerman Elementary School ; that all such 
contracts be consistent with the respective responses of such firms to the District's 
RFP for architectural and engineering services ; and, further, that the associate 
superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to negotiate 
and execute any and all documents related to such contracts. 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 

IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

TIMELINE: Immediate 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: 

	

Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) and the Architect 
Selection Committee (i .e ., Rick Werkheiser, Nancy Johnston, Ed Rockwell, 
Angelo Passarelli, Don Mohlman, Duncan Young, and Ken Fossen) 

SUPERINTENDENT'S 
APPROVAL : 

See the attached memo and the Tabulation of Architect Responses to RFP from 
Don Mohlman (Magnum Resources, Inc.) our Construction Manager for the 2005 
bond issue projects . 

Enclosure A.2 . 
April 4, 2005 

42



March 29, 2005 

Millard Public Schools 
Selection Process for Architecture/Engineering Services 

On February 25, 2005, a Request for Proposal (RFP) was sent by Millard Public Schools to 
twelve prospective firms for Architecture/Engineering services . The firms were solicited on the 
basis of having provided services to MPS previously or as having expressed interest to MPS for 
the 2005 bond issue projects . Additionally, a Public Notice of the RFP was placed in the Dailv 
Record . 

On March 10th , proposals were received from all twelve firms and interviews were conducted with 
seven firms on March 16th and 17th . Firms were evaluated on the basis of their recent experience 
with educational facilities, interest and response to specific 2005 MPS projects, Project Team and 
their personal experience, ability to meet the schedule, cost control capabilities, response and 
experience with enhanced contract administration services, and overall fee structure . The firm's 
experience and/or fee structure was the primary filter for screening twelve written proposals to 
seven interviews . 

As a result of the initial interviews, held on March 21 St , three of eight projects were identified to 
recommend award to three separate firms determined as the "best choice" by the A/E selection 
committee consisting of Ken Fossen, Rick Werkheiser, Nancy Johnston, Don Mohlman, Ed 
Rockwell, Angelo Passarelli, and Duncan Young . Buell Stadium was previously awarded and 
designed by DLR Group. 

The firms selected after the first interview are as follows ; 

Elementary School #24 

	

The Schemmer Associates 

Elementary #24 is a site adaptation for Wheeler, Rohwer, and 
Reeder ; all designed by TSA. 

Elementary School #25 

	

DLR Group 

DLR proposed a prototype design for program areas modeled after 
their extensive portfolio of elementary school projects . Accordingly, 
their proposed fee was approximately $100,000 less than the next 
AE respondent with similar experience . 

Beadle Middle School 

	

BCDM Architects 

BCDM (specifically ZBM prior to a merger with Ciaccio Dennell) 
designed the original design for Beadle Middle School . Their fee 
was the lowest provided by any firm with similar school design 
experience. 

43



On March 28`h and 29`h , a second interview was conducted with the top five firms, as determined 
by the committee after the first round of interviews . This interview was more specifically directed 
to the design and construction process anticipated by MPS, with emphasis on the contract 
administration phase and several AE contract business points . For this interview the MPS 
committee was reduced to Dr . Ken Fossen, Don Mohlman, Ed Rockwell, Angelo Passarelli, and 
Duncan Young . 

It was determined that a total of 3-4 firms would be nominated for award of the remaining five 
projects with an attempt to reasonably balance the overall workload . The committee's 
recommendation is as follows ; 

Ackerman Elementary 

	

The Schemmer Associates 

The past performance of TSA, specifically during the 1997 bond 
issue, involved several intense summer remodel projects . All were 
successfully completed on-time and within-budget. This 
experience, combined with similar projects with other School 
Districts, became the deciding factor from a group of very 
competitive proposals . 

South High School 

	

DLR Group 

A strong in-house Project Team, significant experience, and a very 
good understanding of the critical schedule requirements for South 
High School gave DLR high consideration by committee members 
during both interviews . 

North High School 

	

The Schemmer Associates 

Sufficient and qualified in-house staff capable to deliver the project, 
intense remodeling experience, and a strong desire for project 
success were contributing factors for the selection of TSA . 

West High School 

	

Prohaska & Associates 

Although new to MPS, the firm of Prohaska & Associates displayed 
an in-house, multi-disciplined group of professionals ; motivated to 
provide a high level of service to the MPS District. 

Alternative High School 

	

BCDM Architects 

The overall project experience of BCDM combined with their programming 
capability for this unique project were significant considerations for award of the 
Alternative High School . 

44



Architect Responses to RFP 
March 10 . 2006 

	

2:00 p.m. CST 

Bldder 

Architects & 
Associates 

157,536 364,012 351,715 355,814 163,888 23 46.2 7.7 15 .4 7.7 x none 

24 
Other 

MSHS 
ALT. 
#25 
MNHS 

ACK. 
25 
ALT. 

24 
OTHER 

BCDM 
485,000 618,000 221,000 483,000 467,880 418,926 187,000 32 .5 37.5 4.5 18.5 7 i x i Wed. 

Architects 8:00 

Bahr Vermeer 
Haecker 492,024 510,600 218,127 500,000 485,000 437,926 201,700 30 40 5 15 10 x Wed. 

Architects 
9:00 

leo A. Daly~ 322,0007540,000 ~ 574,000 490,000 20 
30 

30 
40 

7 
4 

23 
14 

20 
12 x none 

28 37 .5 3.5 25 6 

DLR Oroup 880,000 552,D00 480,000 478,000 35 36 3 20.5 5.5 
x 

Wed. 
23 35 4 30 8 10 :00 
28 37 .5 3.5 25 6 

Kenneth Hahn 29 41 .5 3 20 6.5 

Architects 517,920 552,000 236,300 29 .85 43 3 20 4.15 none 
30 43 . 3 20 4 

Calvin Hinz 485,000 483,000 206,008 476,016 459,935 437,926 201,700 25 45 5 20 5 x Wed. 
Architects 11 :00 

Jackson- 
Jackson 8 I ~ 530,700 ~ 563,100 30 40 4 15 11 x none 
Assoc, 

341,400 

Prochaska & 269,275 499,677 536,820 199,558 475,348 460,488 4,888 198,162 25 35 5 20 15 x 
Wed. 

Associates 1 :00 

Reinhardt 8 I 262,500 I 385,300 400,200 ~ 189,D00 ~ 419,900 ~ 405,700 383,200 179,000 10 45 5 25 15 x Thu. 
Associates 8:00 

RDG Planing & 
450,000 450,000 410,000 30 35 5 20 10 x i i none Design 

Schemmer 288,288 485,550 517,500 208,008 478,017 459,935 437,926 201,7D9 24 33 8 32 27 
x 

Thu. 
Associates 35 30 5 18 12 9:00 

MPS Budget 300,000 617,820 662,000 218,127 600,000 488,000 437,928 201,700 

Constr Budget 6,393,747 6,474,000 6,800,000 2,423,635 5,600,796 3,417,000 3,474,075 2,527,385 

45



Agenda Item: 

	

Administrator Job Description Change 

Meeting Date: 

	

Apri14, 2005 

Department 

	

Human Resources 

Title and Brief 
Description : 

	

We are completing the examination and updating of the job descriptions (2000 
series) . 

Action Desired: 

	

Change Rule 2100.04 

Background : 

	

This rule (job description) needs to be reviewed for change and length of contract 
due to the addition of Rule 2100.13 Director of Activities/Athletics . 

Options/Alternatives 
Considered : N/A 

Recommendations : 

	

Change Rule 2100.04 (Fossen) . 

Strategic Plan 
Reference: N/A 

Implications of 
Adoption/Rejection : N/A 

Timeline: 

	

We will continue to bring job descriptions from the 2000 series to you this year . 

Responsible 
Persons: 

	

Steve Moore 

Superintendent's Signature: 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Enclosure H.3 . 
April 4, 2005 

46



ADMINISTRATOR JOB DESCRIPTION 

Associate Superintendent for General Administration 

	

2100.04 

Reports to : Superintendent of Schools 

General Summary: Administers the district's non-education programs, including those that support the 
district's educational programs and services, under the general direction of the Superintendent and in accordance 
with Board policies and rules . 

Essential Functions : 

1 . 

	

Assists the Superintendent in directing the administration and coordination of the District's programs . 
2 . 

	

Evaluates interprets and administers Board policies and program related to business, facilities maintenance, 
food service, transportation, purchasing, distribution, and contribution . 

3 . 

	

Supervises the director of food service and transportation, accounting manager, support services manager 
and internal auditor . 

4 . 

	

Assists the Superintendent in the preparation of the budget and administers a budget control program. 
5 . 

	

Supervises, assists and evaluates the work of principals and other administrative staff as directed by the 
Superintendent . 

6 . 

	

Assists in determining the district's future facilities needs 
7 . 

	

Administers the contracted services for the supervision of the District's operations and maintenance 
program . 

9 . 

	

Keeps informed of and interprets all court decisions, regulations, statutes, rules and policies affecting 
his/her division . 

10 . 

	

Assists with collective bargaining by serving on the District's negotiating team . 
11 . 

	

Attends board meetings and prepares such reports for the board as the Superintendent may request. 
12 . 

	

Assists in the determination of types of programs needed by the schools and makes appropriate 
recommendations . 

13 . 

	

Assumes other responsibilities as delegated by the Superintendent. 

Contract Length : 12 month 

Qualifications: 

1 . 

	

Education Level : A doctoral degree from an approved institution with a major in educational 
administration or the accepted equivalent is preferred . A six-year specialist degree in educational 
administration or the accepted equivalent is required . 

2 . 

	

Certification or Licensure : Appropriate Nebraska Administrative certificate . 
3 . 

	

Experience desired : Five years of successful experience in administration is preferred ; three years is 
required . 

4 . 

	

Other requirements : Experience, maturity and leadership abilities in all facets of school administration, the 
ability to supervise and evaluate the work of others, and the ability to evaluate and manage the non-
educational function of the school district . 

47



Special Requirements : 

The statements herein are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed by employees 
assigned to this classification . They are not intended to be construed, as an exhaustive list of all responsibilities, 
duties, and skills required of personnel so classified . Responsibilities and duties assigned are at the discretion of the 
supervisor and building principal (or superintendent) . 

Employee Signature : 

	

Date: 

Supervisor Signature : 

	

Date: 

Rule Approved: May 20, 1996 

	

Millard Public Schools 
Revised: September 21, 1998 ; January 22, 2001 

	

Omaha, NE 

Occasional Frequent Constant 
1 - 32% 33 - 66% 67% + 

1 . Standing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
2 . Walking . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
3 Sitting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
4 . Lifting 20 lb max. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
5 . Carrying 25 feet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
6 . Pushing / Pulling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
7 . Climbing / Balancing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
8 . Stooping / Kneeling / Crouching / Crawling. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
9 . Reaching / Handling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . X 
10 . Speaking / Hearing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .X 
11 . Seeing / depth perception / color. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .X 

48



Agenda Item : 

	

Policy 4110 and Rule 4110.1 

Meeting Date : 

	

Apri14, 2005 

Department : 

	

Human Resources 

Title and Brief 
Description : 

	

We are continuing the examination and updating of the policies 
and rules in the 4000 series . 

Action Desired : 

	

Reaffirm Policy 4110 
Approve Rule 4110.1 

Background: 

	

The policy and rule were last revised in December 1998 . There are 
no recommended changes to the policy. We are making minor 
changes . Change "Personnel" to "Human Resource" ; require 
teaching certificates by the third day. The section on supervision 
and evaluation file was moved to Rule 4110.2 in May, 2004 . 

Options/Alternatives 
Considered : N/A 

Recommendations : Approval 

Strategic Plan 
Reference : N/A 

Implications of 
Adoption/Rejection : N/A 

Timeline : N/A 

Responsible 
Persons : 

	

Steve Moore 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Superintendent's Signature : 

Enclosures H .4 . S~ fl .5 . 
April 4, 2005 

49



Personnel 
Personnel Records 

	

4110 

The school district will maintain a personnel file on each employee . 

Policy Adopted : 1974 

	

Millard Public Schools 
Revised: November 16, 1987 

	

Omaha, Nebraska 
Reaffirmed: December 7, 1998 ; 

50



Personnel 
Personnel Records 

	

4110.1 

Each employee is required to provide information to the District within the timeline required by the District : 

Prior to the District making a job offer each candidate must have placed on file in the pe~serme~e¬¬~se Human 
Resource Office : 

Application for employment 
Waiver for release of employment and criminal history information 

Prior to completing his or her third (3rd) day of work, each employee must have the following items on file in 
the pe}serme~e¬¬~se Human Resource Office : 

I-9 Employment Eligibility Verification 

ef¬se: 
W-4 Employee's Withholding Allowance Certificate 
Nebraska School Retirement System Form 
Health, Dental, Life, Section 125, 403(b), 457(b), uayroll direct-deposit and Long-term Disability 
i~s~a~se enrollment sates forms 
Pe~se~el-C~d Personal Infom~ation Form 
Valid Nebraska Teaching, Certificate, or Conditional Permit (certificated personnel only) 

Prior to the sixty-first (61st) calendar day following the employee's first day of work, each certificated 
employee must have the following items on file in the p~ Human Resource Office : 

All Current and complete college transcripts 

Failure to provide any of the above documents within the specified time limit may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including termination of employment . 

Legal Reference : 

	

Neb. Rev . Stat. §36-213 ; 36-213.01 ; 79-801 ; 79-802 
92 NAC 10 ; 92 NAC 21 
Immigration Reform and Control Act 1986 
Americans with disabilities Act of 1990 

Rule Approved: 1974 

	

Millard Public Schools 
Revised: November 16, 1987; March 2, 1992 ; December 7, 1998 ; 

	

Omaha, Nebraska 

51



Agenda Item : 

	

Rule 4510.5 

Meeting Date: 

	

April 4, 2005 

Department : 

	

Human Resources 

Title and Brief 
Description : 

	

We are continuing the examination and updating of the policies 
and rules in the 4000 series . 

Action Desired : 

	

Approve Rule 4510.5 

Background: 

	

The rule was last revised in March 2003 . We are clarifying the 
limitations placed on requests for extended leave of absence with 
pay. We require 9 semester hours of credit of anyone taking a 
leave for continuing education ; the rule is now in compliance with 
that requirement . We require a signed leave of absence agreement ; 
the rule is now reflects that requirement . We do not grant leaves 
when the purpose is to move out of the area ; this is now stated in 
the rule . 

Options/Alternatives 
Considered : N/A 

Recommendations : Approval 

Strategic Plan 
Reference : N/A 

Implications of 
Adoption/Rejection : N/A 

Timeline : N/A 

Responsible 
Persons : 

	

Steve Moore 

Superintendent's Signature : 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Enclosure H.6 . 
April 4, 2005 

52



Personnel 

Extended Leave Without Pay 

	

4510.5 

Extended leave without pay is leave for one or more semesters or, in the case of leave under the Family and Medical 
Leave Act ("FMLA"), for a period of time exceeding the twelve (12) weeks available under the FMLA_ Such leave 
may be granted for_ continuing one's education, personal or immediate family health reasons, or to stay at home with 
one's children . At the sole discretion of the District, such leave may also be granted for other personal reasons 
depending upon the circumstances . Such leave will not be granted if the purpose of the requested leave or the reason 
necessitating the leave request is to seek or obtain other employment or to move from the Omaha area regardless of 
the reason for such move. 

A. 

	

Procedures and Conditions 

After a minimum of three years of employment with the District, an extended leave without pay may be granted . The 
following procedure must be followed : 

1 . 

	

A request for an extended leave of absence without pay must be submitted in writing to the lze~se~el 
Human Resource Office . Such request is not automatically recommended to the Board for its approval. 
The request must receive formal approval from the Board of Education . 

2 . 

	

Leaves may be granted for up to one school year. To continue leave beyond one school year, the 
employee must reapply. A leave beyond the second school year will only be granted in extreme 
circumstances . 

3 . 

	

A request for leave to continue one's education, must include the name of the institution, the course of 
study and the number of semester credit hours to be completed. The course of study must meet the 
approval of the District . 

	

A minimum of nine (9) semester hours of credit must be earned for each 
semester of leave . 

4 . 

	

A leave of absence agreement must be si ngned by the person requesting the leave prior to the request 
being submitted to the Board for approval . 

5 . 

	

When an employee wishes to return from extended leave without pay, the employee shall report this 
intention in writing to the 1?e~se~el Human Resource Office on or before February 1 during the year in 
which the leave is in effect. 

	

If no such notice is received on or before February 1, the employee's 
inaction will be considered a resignation. The District shall not be responsible for reminding an 
employee of this requirement . 

B . 

	

Salary and Benefits 

During the extended leave without pay, the employee will not receive salary nor credit for years of service 
with the District . Health insurance coverage provided to the employee by the District immediately prior to 
the leave of absence may be continued during such leave at the employee's expense in accordance with the 
provisions of COBRA and the health insurance plan . 

C . 

	

Return to Employment 

The District does not guarantee that an employee on extended leave without pay will return to the position 
held prior to the leave of absence . Reasonable efforts will be made to place the employee in the same or 
comparable position upon returning to employment . An employee returning from leave must verify the 
leave was for the purpose requested . 

Related Policies and Rules : 4510P, 4510.4, 4510.6 

Rule Approved: April 16, 1979 

	

Millard Public Schools 
Revised: September 7, 1993; March 17, 2003 

	

Omaha, Nebraska 

53



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

AGENDA ITEM : 

	

Policy 7305-Web Publishing 

MEETING DATE: Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

Technology Division 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION : 

	

Policy 7305-Web Publishing 

ACTION DESIRED : 

	

First Reading of Revised and Renumbered Policy 

BACKGROUND : 

	

Originally contained in the Community Relations section as Policy 
1102, the proposed policy 7305 and its accompanying rule 7305 .1 cover Web Publishing issues 
for the District . 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE : 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: 

	

Mark Feldhausen 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: 

BOARD ACTION : 

Enclosure H.7 . 
April 4, 2005 

54



Web Publishing 

	

~~ 7305 

The Millard School District and its schools will communicate using the World Wide Web to inform the public in 
order to advance the mission of the District. All District Web sites shall be used only for purposes related to the 
educational curriculum of the District or administration of the District . Commercial, political, and/or private use of 
any of the District's Web sites is strictly prohibited except as approved by the Superintendent or designee . 

	

All 
computers either owned or leased by the School District are public property and no right of individual privacy shall 
extend to the information or communications stored or contained in the computer or any of its components or 
software . The administration reserves the right to monitor any computer activity and on-line communications for 
improper use . 

Policy Adopted : July 17, 2000 

	

Millard Public Schools 
Revised: 

	

Omaha, Nebraska 

55



Technology 

	

7305.1 

Web Publishing 

I . Accountability 
A . 

	

Each staff member who creates a web page or any part of a web page or supervises the creation of a 
web page is responsible for the content and must inform the Superintendent/designee or 
Principal/designee of the existence and the intent/purpose of the page prior to such web site being 
accessible on the World Wide Web . This includes student-produced web content. 

B . 

E B. 

	

Each web page author or contributing web page author shall assume personal responsibility for the 
information being current, accurate (including having correct spelling and grammar), and adhering to 
District policies and rules . This includes students who author or contribute to the creation of a web 
page . 

l~ C . 

	

All District or building web sites shall have a staff member who shall monitor and be responsible for 
approving the content of the information, which is accessible on each web site . 

D . 

	

The content of the information shall be in compliance with the Millard Public Schools policy/rules 
including, but not limited to, the rules for Journalism : Prohibited Expressions (6605 .1) and Internet 
Safety Filtering (~~ 7310.1 ) . 

E . 

	

Guidelines for web pages shall be established by the Superintendent or designee, and shall be published 
in the District's Technology User's Manual . 

I~ 
II . Privacy 

A. 

	

All reasonable steps shall be taken to insure that the use of the Internet or World Wide Web shall not 
abridge the right of privacy of students or staff as provided by law, including but not limited to the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) . 

B . 

	

Parent permission shall be obtained prior to publishing photographs of students when the students are 
identified by first and/or last names except where such photograph is contained in other official 
District or school publications such as a school newsletter, school annual, or school newspaper . 

C . 

	

Group and individual photographs may be published without permission if names are not used. 
D . 

	

Student Directory Information (as described below) may be made available on Millard School District 
web pages in compliance with the District's Policy and Rules . Directory information appropriate for 
the web includes the following : 

First and last name (without photographs unless parent permission is obtained as stated above) 
Current grade level 
Participation in officially recognized activities and sports 
Weight and height of members of athletic teams 
Degrees and awards received 
Photographs (without first and last names unless parent permission is obtained as stated above) 

1 . 
2 . 
3 . 
4 . 
5 . 
6 . 

56



III . 

	

Project PAYBAC~ Partners, PTO/PTA Organizations, and Booster Clubs 
A. Project PAYBAC© partners, PTO/PTA organizations, and Booster Clubs may be identified as 

supporters of the Millard Public School District. 
B . There shall be no web links to commercial web sites that are of a promotional nature except as 

approved by the Superintendent or designee . 
C . District or building web sites may contain links to governmental agencies, district affiliated 

organizations, which were organized and exist for the sole purpose of supporting the District's 
educational and extracurricular programs, other educational institutions, public libraries, and public 
museums . 

IV . 

	

Fundraising Activities and On-Line Purchasing 
A. Information about school-related fundraising activities can be published including information about 

the product, the name of the sponsor and/or telephone number . 
B . 

	

There shall be no online purchasing and such use of the District's computers is strictly prohibited 
unless authorized by the Superintendent or designee . 

C . District and building websites shall not facilitate online purchasing unless authorized b 
Superintendent or designee . 

V. 

	

Interactive Use 
A. 

	

District E-mail addresses of Millard staff and Board members are allowed to be published . 
B . 

	

When District e-mail addresses are published, the following disclaimer should appear on that page : 
"These e-mail addresses are for use by staff, students, and parents relating to school business only . 
Solicitation is prohibited." 

C . 

	

Individual student's grades are allowed to be published but must be protected by a unique password for 
each student on servers as identified in Section ~I VI. 

VI. 

	

Where Information Resides 
A. All web sites shall be accessible to the World Wide Web on District-controlled servers under the 

District domain name or on servers approved by the Superintendent or designee . 
B . 

	

All District policy/rules apply regardless of where the web sites reside . 

Related Policies and Rules : 

	

-1-14~~1~43, 1~4~1 , 1115, 1306.1, 4157, 4157.1, 4157.2, 4157.3, 5510.1, 5710, 
5800.1, 5800.3, 6605.1 , 7305, 7310, 7310.1, 

Rule Adopted : July 17, 2000 

	

Millard Public Schools 
Revised : September 10, 2001 

	

Omaha, Nebraska 

57



AGENDA ITEM: 

MEETING DATE: 

DEPARTMENT: 

TITLE & DESCRIPTION : 

ACTION DESIRED : 

BACKGROUND : 

David Hemphill 

Education : 

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PERSON RECOMMENDING: George Conrad 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: 

Administrator Recommended for Hire 

April 4, 2005 

Human Resources 

Enclosure fl.8 . 
April 4, 2005 

Assistant Middle School Principal, Kiewit Middle School 

Approval 

The position was advertised on CareerLink and in Millard's job 
postings. 24 applications were received (Twelve from outside the 
district and twelve from within the district.) The applications were 
reviewed by Dr . Kirby Eltiste, Dr . George Conrad and Mr . Phil Koch. 
Four applicants from within the district were selected to interview for 
the position . The interview teams included Dr. George Conrad, Dr. 
Keith Lutz, Charlene Snyder, Judy Porter, Phil Koch, Lori Jasa, Brad 
Kisicki (Teacher), Nancy Brugger (Teacher), Julia Benzel (Teacher), 
Kaye Schweigert (Teacher), and Rose Bernstein (Teacher) . I am 
recommending the following individual for the position : 

Recommended for the Assistant Middle School Principal at Kiewit 
Middle School . Dave has been a math/science teacher at Russell 
Middle School since 2001 . He was a science/social studies teacher at 
Russell for 2000/01 . Prior to that he taught 7th, 8th, and 9th grade 
science in Nebraska City (1989/2000) . 

Bachelor's Degree from Nebraska Wesleyan University in Lincoln in 
1988, Masters in Secondary Science Education in 1997 from Peru State 
College, and Masters in Educational Administration from the 
University of Nebraska at Omaha in 2004 . 

Approval 

58



MEETING DATE: 

	

Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

Human Resources 

ACTION DESIRED : 

	

Approval 

BACKGROUND: 

	

Personnel items : (1) New Hires, (2) Leaves of Absence, 
and (3) Resignations 

OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES : 

	

NA 

RECOMMENDATION : Approval 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE : N/A 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION : 

	

N/A 

TIMELINE : 

	

N/A 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: 

	

Dr. Kirby Eltiste 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Enclosure H.9 . 
April 4, 2005 

59



RESIGNATIONS 

Recommend : the following resignations be accepted : 

1 . 

	

Dana Keepers - Science teacher at West High School. She is resigning for family reasons . 
Resignation is effective at the end of the 2004/05 school year . 

April 4, 2005 

2 . 

	

Michelle Cox - Foreign Language teacher at Andersen Middle School . She is resigning for family 
reasons . Resignation is effective at the end of the 2004/05 school year . 

3 . 

	

Nicole Dill - Language Arts teacher at Russell Middle School . She is resigning due to relocation . 
Resignation is effective at the end of the 2004/05 school year . 

60



LEAVE OF ABSENCE REQUESTS 

Recommend : the following extended leave without pay requests be approved: 

Apri14, 2005 

1 . 

	

Amanda Hegge - Special Ed Behavior Disorder teacher at Ezra Millard Elementary 
School . She is requesting a Leave of Absence for the 2005/06 school year for family 
reasons. 

2. 

	

Elizabeth Braun - Currently on a Leave of Absence (Grade 2 teacher at Wheeler 
Elementary School) . She is requesting that her leave be extended for the 2005/06 school 
year for family reasons . 

61



TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

Recommend : the following teachers be hired for the 2005-06 school year: 

April 4, 2005 

1 . 

	

Kelly Ludgate - Step 2, BA - University of Nebraska at Lincoln . Vocal Music Teacher at Reeder 
Elementary School . Previous experience : Ralston Public Schools (2004/05) 

2 . 

	

Trevor Templar - Step 5, BA - Wayne State College, Wayne, NE. Physical Education Teacher at 
Reeder Elementary School . Previous experience : Valley, NE (2003/05) ; Osmond, NE (2001/03). 

3 . 

	

Katherine Bevins - Step 1, MA - University of Nebraska at Lincoln . School Psychologist with 
location to be determined . 

4 . 

	

John Kirke - Step 11, MA+30 - University of Nebraska at Lincoln . Industrial Tech Teacher at 
North High School . Previous experience : Omaha Public Schools (1977/2005) . 

5 . 

	

Patricia Cowley - Step 7, BA - Arkansas State University . Media Specialist at Morton 
Elementary School . Previous experience : Highlands Ranch, CO (2002/05) ; Woodlands, TX 
(1984/99) ; Houston, TX (1982/84) ; Osceola, AR (1980/82) . 

6 . 

	

Kenda Olson - Step 1, BA - University of Nebraska at Kearney. Math Teacher at South High 
School . 

62



63



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4. 2005 

64



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING - APRIL 4, 2005 

65



AGENDA ITEM: 

	

March Enrollment Report 

Meeting Date: 

	

4/4/05 

Department : 

	

Planning and Evaluation 

Title and Brief 
Description: 

	

Once each quarter, we will put a summary sheet on the monthly 
enrollment report, indicating why the high school numbers are down. 
The information in the table below presents changes from September 24, 
2004 to March 21, 2005 . 

Action Desired: 

	

Approval - Discussion - Information Only 

	

x 

Background : 

Options/Alternatives 
Considered : 

	

N.A. 

Recommendations : N.A . 

Strategic Plan 
Reference : 

	

N.A. 

Implications of 
Adoption/Rejection : N.A . 

Timeline: 

	

N.A. 

Responsible 
Persons: 

	

John Crawford 

Superintendent's Signature: 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

*"Dislike for school" and "excessive absences" primarily define dropouts . 

Since the enrollment report shows a decrease of 152, newly enrolled 
students have come into the district to partly offset the above losses . 

Enclosure I.l . 
April 4, Zoos 

Reason North South West MLC 
Transfer to another Millard Hi h School 34 34 13 8 
Mid-term aduates 32 19 25 15 
Transfer outside Nebraska 13 12 16 1 
Transfer in Nebraska 10 25 11 1 
Choice return to original district 7 
*Dislike for school 8 11 1 1 
Transfer to non- ubic in district 1 2 1 
Transfer to non- ublic in metro 5 1 1 1 
*Excessive absences 7 10 17 
Ex ulsion 3 1 
Other (pregnancy, emotional disturbance, 
transfer to institution, unknown) 

2 6 1 4 ~~, 
TOTAL 122 120 67 49 j 

66



March 21, 2005 
Millard Public Schools 

Total Enrollment 
Self 

	

Current YTD Official9/04 
Elementary 

	

K 1 2 3 4 5 

	

Cont Total Change Change Enrollment 
Abbott 

	

(3 unit) 

	

61 

	

74 

	

87 

	

65 

	

77 

	

78 

	

442 

	

1 

	

3 

	

439 
Ackerman 

	

(4 unit) 

	

100 

	

94 

	

120 

	

101 

	

105 

	

99 

	

14 

	

633 

	

-1 

	

4 

	

629 
Aldrich 

	

(3 unit) 

	

66 

	

60 

	

52 

	

58 

	

68 

	

53 

	

357 

	

2 

	

2 

	

355 
Black Elk 

	

(3 unit) 

	

102 

	

85 

	

102 

	

101 

	

110 

	

85 

	

585 

	

1 

	

6 

	

579 
Bryan 

	

(3 unit) 

	

59 

	

59 

	

46 

	

66 

	

59 

	

65 

	

354 

	

3 

	

-2 

	

356 
Cather 

	

(3 unit) 

	

65 

	

78 

	

64 

	

78 

	

73 

	

75 

	

433 

	

-1 

	

-1 

	

434 
Cody 

	

(2 unit) 

	

34 

	

36 

	

38 

	

37 

	

15 

	

25 

	

22 

	

207 

	

-4 

	

-11 

	

218 
Cottonwood 

	

(3 unit) 

	

69 

	

51 

	

39 

	

52 

	

61 

	

72 

	

344 

	

0 

	

-10 

	

354 
Disney 

	

(3 unit) 

	

54 

	

45 

	

52 

	

40 

	

52 

	

53 

	

14 

	

310 

	

-1 

	

3 

	

307 
Ezra Millard 

	

(3 unit) 

	

72 

	

81 

	

66 

	

70 

	

67 

	

73 

	

15 

	

444 

	

2 

	

1 

	

443 
Harvey Oaks 

	

(2 unit) 

	

42 

	

43 

	

40 

	

38 

	

48 

	

45 

	

256 

	

-2 

	

-1 

	

257 
Hitchcock 

	

(2 unit) 

	

41 

	

36 

	

31 

	

38 

	

27 

	

37 

	

210 

	

0 

	

-1 

	

211 
Holling Heights 

	

(3 unit) 

	

72 

	

54 

	

64 

	

46 

	

54 

	

58 

	

348 

	

3 

	

16 

	

332 
Montclair 

	

(4 unit) 

	

87 

	

97 

	

79 

	

96 

	

86 

	

77 

	

522 

	

-1 

	

-2 

	

524 
Morton 

	

(3 unit) 

	

45 

	

58 

	

59 

	

68 

	

69 

	

42 

	

24 

	

365 

	

0 

	

4 

	

361 
Neihardt 

	

(4 unit) 

	

84 

	

93 

	

97 

	

95 

	

95 

	

105 

	

569 

	

-3 

	

-12 

	

581 
Norris 

	

(3 unit) 

	

58 

	

62 

	

55 

	

42 

	

47 

	

28 

	

19 

	

311 

	

-2 

	

-4 

	

315 
Rockwell 

	

(3 unit) 

	

60 

	

46 

	

49 

	

52 

	

49 

	

50 

	

25 

	

331 

	

4 

	

4 

	

327 
Rohwer 

	

(3 unit) 

	

117 

	

113 

	

119 

	

103 

	

105 

	

89 

	

15 

	

661 

	

6 

	

35 

	

626 
Sandoz 

	

(3 unit) 

	

48 

	

49 

	

46 

	

52 

	

41 

	

47 

	

283 

	

0 

	

-3 

	

286 
Wheeler 

	

(3 unit) 

	

104 

	

112 

	

98 

	

109 

	

88 

	

87 

	

27 

	

625 

	

4 

	

7 

	

618 
Willowdale 

	

(3 unit) 

	

59- 73 

	

61 

	

71 

	

72 

	

74 

	

410 

	

-4 

	

12 

	

398 

Totals 

	

1499 1499 1464 1478 1468 1417 

	

175 

	

9000 

	

7 

	

50 

	

8950 

Secondary 

	

Self Current YTD Official9/04 
6 7 8 

	

Cont Total Change Change Enrollment 
Andersen MS 

	

247 

	

259 

	

247 

	

11 

	

753 

	

2 

	

9 

	

744 
Beadle MS 

	

225 

	

211 

	

228 

	

17 

	

664 

	

1 

	

6 

	

658 
Central MS 

	

247 

	

247 

	

283 

	

16 

	

777 

	

0 

	

-10 

	

787 
Kiewit MS 

	

287 

	

310 

	

352 

	

6 

	

949 

	

1 

	

-4 

	

953 
North MS 

	

196 

	

212 

	

194 

	

26 

	

602 

	

1 

	

6 

	

596 
Russell MS 

	

262 

	

286 

	

241 

	

6 

	

789 

	

-3 

	

5 

	

784 
MS Alternative 

	

0 

	

15 

	

10 

	

25 

	

0 

	

9 

	

16 

Totals 

	

1464 1540 1555 

	

82 

	

4559 

	

2 

	

21 

	

4538 

9 10 11 12 
North HS 

	

617 

	

575 

	

564 

	

591 

	

22 

	

2347 

	

-2 

	

-62 

	

2409 
South HS 

	

557 

	

515 

	

484 

	

396 

	

18 

	

1952 

	

-10 

	

-62 

	

2014 
West HS 

	

534 

	

470 

	

468 

	

400 

	

16 

	

1872 

	

-5 

	

-21 

	

1893 
Millard Learning Center 

	

0 

	

0 

	

31 

	

55 

	

86 

	

-2 

	

-7 

	

93 

Totals 

	

1708 1560 1547 1442 

	

56 

	

6257 

	

-19 

	

-152 

	

6409 

Preschool 
Disney 

	

16 
Cody 

	

11 
Neihardt 

	

34 
Rockwell 

	

33 
Bryan 

	

32 
Holling Hghts 

	

31 
Morton 

	

34 
Norris 

	

15 
Montessori - Montclair 

	

75 
Montessori - Norris 

	

20 
Total 

	

301 

Preschool SPED 
Cody 

	

67 
Sandoz 75 
Montclair 40 
Contracted 4 
Infants 

	

95 
Total 

	

281 

High school enrollments reflect mid-term graduates : North High = 32, South High = 19, West High = 25, MLC = 15 

19900 

19700 

19500 

19300 

19100 

18900 

18700 

18500 

Enrollment 2004-05 

19972 19958 19970 19969 
19912 19906 19896 

L\\\~.'til i L\\\\\'I ~ k\\\\\I ~ ~\\\\1 L~+\\\\'I 

Sep-04 Oct-04 Nov-04 Dec-04 Jan-05 Feb-05 Mar-05 

Contracted SPED 

	

46 

	

0 

	

4 

	

42 
Young Adult Program 

	

34 

	

0 

	

1 

	

33 

Total District K-12 

	

19896 

	

-70 

	

-76 

	

19972 
Total District PreK-12 

	

20478 

	

-4 

	

-14 

	

20492 

9/24/2004 
Elementary 

	

8950 
Middle Sch 

	

4538 
High Sch 

	

6409 
Contracted 

	

42 
Young Adult 

	

33 
Total 

	

19972 
3/21 /2005 

Elementary 

	

9000 
Middle Sch 

	

4559 
High Sch 

	

6257 
Contracted 

	

46 
Young Adult 

	

34 
Total 

	

19896 

Current Chg 

	

-10 
YTD Change 

	

-76 

67



Self Current YTD OfFcial9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Current YTD Official9/04 
Enrollment K 

	

1 

	

2-3 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

C-K 

	

C-1 

	

C-2 C-3 

	

C-4 C-5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

Self Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Elements Classroom Enrollment Class 
Self Current YTD Official 9/04 Size w/out 

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cont Total Chan e Chan e Enrollment SPED 
Abbott 21 19 21 21 26 26 

20 18 22 22 25 26 
20 19 21 22 26 26 

_18__23 
Total Students 61 74 87 65 77 78 442 1 3 439 442 
Total Teachers 3 .0 4 4 3 3 3 20 .0 20.0 
Classroom Avg 20 .3 18.5 21 .8 21 .7 25 .7 26 .0 22 22 

Ackerman 21 23 24 25 27 24 7 
21 23 23 24 26 26 7 
19 23 24 26 26 24 
20 25 25 26 26 25 
19 24 

Total Students 100 94 120 101 105 99 14 633 -1 4 629 619 
Total 
(Classroom 

Teachers 5 .0 4 5 4 4 4 2 28 .0 26 .0 
Avg 20 .0 23.5 23 .7 24.5 26 .3 24 .8 7 .0 23 24 

Aldrich 23 19 26 19 23 27 
22 20 26 19 22 26 
21 21 20 23 

Total Students 66 60 52 58 68 53 357 2 2 355 357 
Total Teachers 3 3 2 3 .00 3 2 16.00 16 
Classroom Av 22 .0 20 .0 26 .0 19.3 22 .7 26 .5 22 22 

Black Elk 22 22 20 24 22 18 
21 22 21 26 22 23 
t9 22 20 24 22 21 
18 19 20 27 22 23 
22 21 22 

Total Students 102 85 102 101 110 85 585 1 6 579 585 
Total Teachers 5 .0 4 5 4 5 4 27 27 
Classroom Avg 20 .4 21 .3 20.4 25 .3 22 .0 21 .3 22 22 

Bryan 20 19 17 22 20 22 
19 20 15 22 20 20 
20 20 14 22 19 23 

Total Students 59 59 46 66 59 65 354 3 -2 356 354 
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18 
Classroom Av 19.7 19 .7 15.3 22 .0 19 .7 21 .7 20 20 

Cather 20 15 16 20 26 14 23 24 24 25 23 24 
14 8 14 22 25 24 25 24 23 

Total Students 20 29 24 20 26 28 45 49 48 50 47 47 433 -1 -1 434 433 
Total Teachers 1 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 20 20 .0 
Classroom Av 20.0 14 .5 24 20 26 14.0 22 .5 24 .5 24 .0 25 .0 23.5 23 .5 22 22 

Cody 17 12 19 18 15 13 8 
17 13 19 19 12 6 

11 8 

Total Students 34 36 38 37 15 25 22 207 -4 -11 218 185 
Total Teachers 2 3 2 2 1 2 3 15 12 
Classroom Av 17 .0 12 .0 19 .0 18 .5 15 .0 12.5 7 .3 14 15 

Cottonwood 19 26 21 27 20 24 
16 25 18 25 22 25 
17 19 23 
17 

Total Students 69 51 39 52 61 72 344 0 -10 354 344 
Total Teachers 4 .00 2 2 2 3 3 16 16 
Classroom Avg 17 .3 25 .5 19 .5 26 .0 20 .3 24.0 22 22 

68



Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Curcent YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Self Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Self Curcent YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

M-K M1-3 M4-5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Self Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Curcent YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

K 1 2 3 4 5 
Self Current YTD Official 9/04 
Cont Total Chan:"r~?tieLC.e Enrollment 

Class Size 
Size W/out 
SPED 

Disney 19 23 18 20 27 27 6 
20 22 17 20 25 26 8 
15 17 

Total Students 54 45 52 40 52 53 14 310 -1 3 307 296 
Total Teachers 3.0 2 3 2 2 2 2 16 .0 14 
Classroom Av 18.0 22 .5 17 .3 20 .0 26 .0 26.5 7 .0 19 21 

Harvey Oaks 21 22 20 19 24 22 
21 21 20 19 24 23 

Total Students 42 43 40 38 48 45 256 -2 -1 257 256 
TotaITeachers 2 .0 2 2 2 2 2 12 .0 12 
Classroom Av 21 .0 21 .5 20 .0 19 .0 24.0 22 .5 21 21 

Hitchcock 21 21 16 19 27 17 
20 15 15 19 20 

Total Students 41 36 31 38 27 37 210 0 -1 211 210 
Total Teachers 2 .0 2 2 2 1 2 11 .0 11 
Classroom Av 20 .5 18 .0 15 .5 19 .0 27.0 18 .5 19 19 

Holling Heights 24 17 21 23 27 29 
24 19 21 23 27 29 
24 18 22 

Total Students 72 54 64 46 54 58 348 3 16 332 348 
Total Teachers 3 .0 3 3 2 2.5 2 .5 16 .0 16 
Classroom Av 24 .0 18.0 21 .3 23 .0 21 .6 23 .2 22 22 

Ezra Millard 23 20 23 24 23 25 6 
25 20 21 23 21 24 9 
24 20 22 23 23 24 

21 
Total Students 72 81 66 70 67 73 15 444 2 1 443 429 
Total Teachers 3.00 4 3 3 3 3 2 21 19 
Classroom Avg 24 .0 20 .3 22 .0 23.3 22 .3 24 .3 8 21 23 

Montclair 19 21 18 23 23 18 15 23 21 
19 23 19 24 21 17 15 23 20 

19 24 21 
26 22 
25 
23 

Students 38 44 37 47 44 35 49 144 84 522 -1 -2 524 522 (Total 
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 6 4 24 24 
Classroom Avg 19.0 22 .0 18.5 23.5 22 .0 17 .5 24 .5 24 .0 21 .0 22 22 

Morton 22 19 20 23 23 21 11 
23 19 21 23 24 21 13 

20 18 22 22 

Total Students 45 58 59 68 69 42 24 365 0 4 361 341 
Total Teachers 2 3 3 3 3 2 2 18 16 .0 
Classroom Av 22 .5 19 .3 19 .7 22 .7 23 .0 21 .0 12 .0 20 21 

Neihardt 23 23 20 24 25 21 
21 24 19 22 24 22 
21 22 19 25 24 20 
19 24 20 24 22 20 

19 22 
Total Students 84 93 97 95 95 105 569 -3 -12 581 569 
Total Teachers 4 .0 4 5 4 4 5 26 .0 26 .0 
Classroom Avg 21 .0 23 .3 19 .4 23 .8 23 .8 21 .0 22 22 

69



Self Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment 

Self Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

Self Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

Self Current YTD Official9/04 
K 

	

1 

	

2 

	

3 

	

4 

	

5 

	

Cont 

	

Total 

	

Chan e 

	

Chan e 

Enrollment 

Self 

	

Current YTD Official9/04 
Chan e 

	

Chan e 

	

Enrollment Total 

Chan e Enrollment 

Enrollment 

Contracted SPED 

	

46 

	

0 

	

4 

	

42 
Young Adult Program 

	

34 

	

0 

	

1 

	

33 
Total District Enrollment 

	

19896 

	

-10 

	

-76 

	

19972 

K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-2 
Self Current VTD Official 9/04 
Cont Total Chant" ~9f~eur.e Enrollment 

Class Size 
Size W/out 
SPED 

Norris 19 23 17 20 27 15 10 18 8 
17 23 17 22 20 13 12 19 11 

Total Students 36 46 34 42 47 28 22 37 19 311 -2 -4 315 292 
Total Teachers 2 .0 2 2 2 2 2 1 .00 2 2 17.0 15 
Classroom Av 18.0 23 .0 17 .0 21 .0 23 .5 14.0 22.0 18 .5 9 .5 18 19 

Rockwell 21 23 16 17 25 25 11 
19 23 17 18 24 25 6 
20 16 17 8 

Total Students 60 46 49 52 49 50 25 331 4 4 327 306 
Total Teachers 3 .0 2 3 3 2 2 3 18.0 15 .0 
Classroom Av 20 .0 23 .0 16 .3 17 .3 24.5 25 .0 8 .3 18 20 

Rohwer 26 21 26 28 23 24 8 
16 25 26 19 22 24 7 
25 25 26 28 22 26 
25 25 17 28 23 15 
25 17 24 15 

Total Students 117 113 119 103 105 89 15 661 6 35 626 646 
Total Teachers 5 .0 5 5 4 5 4 2 30.0 28 
Classroom Avg 23 .4 22 .6 23 .8 25 .8 21 .0 22 .3 7 .5 22 23 

Sandoz 24 17 23 18 20 23 
24 15 23 18 21 24 

17 16 

Total Students 48 49 46 52 41 47 283 0 -3 286 283 
Total Teachers 2 3 2 3 2 2 14 14 
Classroom Av 24 .0 16.3 23 .0 17.3 20 .5 23 .5 20 20 

Wheeler 21 24 21 23 18 23 13 
22 23 20 22 25 24 14 
22 24 20 23 23 23 
19 24 18 18 22 17 
20 17 19 23 

Students 104 112 98 109 88 87 27 625 4 7 618 598 (Total 
Total Teachers 5 5 5 5 4 4 2 30 28 
Classroom Avg 20.8 22 .4 19.6 21 .8 22 .0 21 .8 13.5 21 21 

Willowdale 21 25 20 23 25 25 
18 24 20 23 24 24 
20 24 21 25 23 25 

Total Students 59 73 61 71 72 74 410 -4 12 398 410 
Total Teachers 3 .0 3 3 3 3 3 18 .0 18 
Classroom Av 19 .7 24 .3 20.3 23 .7 24 .0 24.7 23 23 

Andersen MS 247 259 247 11 753 2 9 744 
Beadle MS 225 211 228 17 664 1 6 658 
Central MS 247 247 283 16 777 0 -10 787 
Kiewit MS 287 310 352 6 949 1 -4 953 
North MS 196 212 194 26 602 1 6 596 
Russell MS 262 286 241 6 789 -3 5 784 
MS Alternative 0 15 10 25 0 9 16 
Totals 1464 1540 1555 82 4559 2 21 4538 

9 10 11 12 
NoRh HS 617 575 564 591 22 2347 -2 -62 2409 
South HS 557 515 484 396 18 1952 -10 -62 2014 
West HS 534 470 468 400 16 1872 -5 -21 1893 
Millard Learnin Center 0 0 31 55 86 -2 -7 93 
Totals 1708 1560 1547 1442 56 6257 -19 -152 6409 

Elementary Totals 
Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 

Self 
Cont Total 

Current 
Chan e 

YTD 
Chan e 

Official 9/04 
Enrollment 

1499 1499 1464 1478 1468 1417 175 9000 7 50 8950 8825 (Students 
Teachers 72 .0 72 .0 71 .5 66 .5 64 .5 64.5 20 .0 431 .0 411 .0 
Classroom Avg 20 .8 20 .8 20 .5 22 .2 22.8 22.0 8 .8 21 21 

Self Current YTD Official9/04 
6 7 8 Cont Total Chan e Chan e Enrollment 

70



AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Foundation Classroom Grant Winnter 

MEETING DATE: Apri14, 2005 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

DEPARTMENT : 

	

Office of the Superintendent 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION : 

ACTION DESIRED: Information Only X- 

BACKGROUND: 
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS: The Millard Public Schools Foundation 
has announced the winners for this years classroom grants . The total for this year is in the 
amount of $140,244.78, which will fund twenty-nine requests . There were a total of 101 
requests that totaled $346,056.00 . The enclosure lists those who were successful in their grant 
request, name of school, and a description of the grant. The grant recipients will be recognized 
at the annual Foundation banquet on Friday, May 6, 2005 . 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Information only . 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION: 

TIME LINE: 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE : 

	

Dr. Keith Lutz 

SUPERINTENDENT'S APPROVAL: 

Enclosure I .2 . 
April 4, 2005 

71



2005 Millard Public Schools Foundation Grants 
Site Grant Title A licants Amount 

Abbott Enrichment Da s at Abbott Paula Ashford, Deborah Williams 2,260.00 

Ackerman All Star Cam Rickie En el, Martha Nielsen 6,648.02 

Ackerman More Masterin Math Ni hts Jo ce Swift, Bec Dietle 3,855.96 

Andersen A Need to Read Nanc Wilson 3,072.98 

Beadle Bulldo Basics Candra Guenther, Dana Chamberlain 1,315.27 

B an Startin out on the Ri ht Foot Ma Kok-DeVries, Heidi Penke 3,810.00 

B an B an Poet Coffeehouse Sheila Bresle , Diane Lenhard, Coleen Latsener, Ma Johnson 1,200.00 

B an Partnerin with Parents: Extra O ortunities Dr. Pat Rhodes 2,740.00 

Cather It's the Truth - It's Factual Barbara Wilson 2,314.30 

Central Cam C clone Shelle Cor , Carol n Hal ain, Barbara Miller 2,163.00 

Central After School Advanta e Pro ram Ann Gapinski 17,663.31 

Cod Cod KIDSS Center Jim Gates, Julie S arks, Rhonda Bisho 9,832.00 

Cod Becomin a Love & Lo is Parent Ma Johnson 1,535.96 

DSAC Millard TeamMates Mentorin Dr . Linda Horton 17,065.00 

Echo Hills*** Becomin a Nation of Readers Linda Waiters 1,361 .00 

Elementa Schools BIST or BUST Dr Pat Rhodes 7,500.00 

Harve Oaks Pro'ect PLACES Pam Berki, Kimber! Bolan 1,355.29 

Harve Oaks Math 24 Tournament Maureen Kuch 2585.94 

Hitchcock Readin on the Run Mand Johnson, Pam Ehl 2,325.00 

Kiewit Sunn Side U ! Cecelia Birckhead 2,235.26 

Middle/HAL De t HAL Seminars Susan Polk 9,579.00 

Montclair-Montessori I Can HELP-Hands Extended Linkin Peo le Kendall Morrise 5,000.00 

North Hi h The Freshman Stam ede Kell Welsh 7,239.00 

Preschool SPARK Suz Renken, Lisa Un er 4,939.80 

Ps chol ical Hel ! Dennis the Menace Lives at M House Liz Care 1,797.33 

Russell Get Ahead Pro ram Carol Groseth 2,900.00 

Sandoz Discover Culture in Omaha for ELL Maria Hicks 4,305.00 

West Trainin our Future Educators: Peer-Tutorin Am Delehant 1,800.00 

Willowdale O ortunities & Success for our ELL Cind Wallace 9,846.36 
~OTAL ~ 

l 
140,244.78 

72



Millard Public Schools Foundation 
Summaries of Classroom Grants 2005 

Enrichment Days at Abbott 
Building : 

	

Abbott Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Paula Ashford 

	

Deb Williams 

Each year, Abbott organizes five enrichment days corresponding to different curricular areas. This project 
is to fund a math, language arts, science, and performing arts enrichment experience for our students. 

All Star Camp 

Building : 

	

Ackerman Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Rickie Engel 

	

Martha Nielsen 

We would like to offer a jump-start to school program to provide reading and writing instruction that will 
increase children's confidence and success in an area that has proven difficult for them . The program will 
be offered the week of August 1 - August 5, 2005 from 9:00 am to 11 :30 am . The focus will be to provide 
experiences in reading and writing and transition skills. This will improve the student's attitudes, and 
confidence in these areas through low stress, small group, and enjoyable activities . This will be an 
engaging opportunity as student's transition into the 2005-2006 school year . 

More Mastering Math Nights 

Building : 

	

Ackerman Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Joyce Swift 

	

Becky Dietle 

The intent of this project is to continue "Math Nights" for parents and students, a successful program, 
which benefited many families this past school year . By providing specific information and activities to 
assist students in developing math skills, we hope to increase parental understanding and involvement in 
the Everyday Math Program. Through this project, where families can have fun while learning math, ELO 
scores should increase due to more purposeful practice at home and new students and their parents will 
have the opportunity to become more quickly acquainted with our math program. 

Partnering with Parents: Extra Opportunities to Play, Plan and 
Participate in Your Child's Learning 

Building : 

	

Bryan Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Dr. Pat Rhodes 

The intent of the Partnering with Parent grant is to provide a variety of evening opportunities for parent to 
come to school with their children, becoming involved in the student's learning process . Every important 
study on the subject finds that parent participation in schools is a significant factor in student achievement. 
Many of the factors that contribute to the achievement gap are external to school, including parent 
participation in school and reading to young children. The Partnering with Parents grant intends to 
encourage parent involvement by providing opportunity for effective collaboration among parents, families, 
and staff. 

73



Building : 

	

Bryan Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Mary Kok-DeVries 

	

Heidi Penke 

The intent of the project is to offer an extraordinary two-week summer learning opportunity. This will 
provide a "jump start" to the 2005-06 school year for thirty primary students who are identified as at-risk of 
not achieving in the students' learning process . Information and activities will be given to parent to help 
them assist their children in the development of literacy and math skills. 

Building : 

	

Bryan Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Sheila Bresley 

	

Diane Lenhard 
Coleen Latsener Mary Johnson 

This grant will provide materials for a Poetry Coffeehouse at Bryan Elementary School Information Center . 
The Poetry Coffeehouse experience will assist in the development of a love of reading, increase reading 
fluency through practice, improve audience behaviors, and improve rehearsal and performance skills for 
our students . 

It's the Truth - It's Factual. . .Everything is Mathematical! 

Building : 

	

Cattier Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Barbara Wilson 

Starting out on the Right Foot 

Bryan Poetry Coffeehouse 

It's true . . . basic mathematical facts are the foundation of all math skills. Learning these facts to a point of 
automacy can be difficult but essential if a child is to master the skills required by Millard's mathematical 
essential learner outcomes . A para will work with students daily until the math facts are mastered . Home 
"Fact-Finding Bags" will help the parent support this learning. When a child reaches the goal of 100% 
mastery of targeted facts within a three-minute time-span, a special luncheon will be given in their honor 
with their parent invited to attend. 

Cody K.LD.S.S. 

Building: 

	

Cody Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Jim Gates 

	

Julie Sparks 
Rhonda Bishop 

This project will meet the needs of students not mastering the Essential Learner Outcomes. It will afford 
high ability learners the opportunity to excel. Students will be provided after-school study time for 3-5 
hours per week with assistance from volunteers and paid professional educators . 

74



Building: 

	

Cody Elementary 
Applicants: 

	

Mary Johnston 

Building : 

	

Harvey Oaks Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Maureen Kuch 

Becoming a Love and Logic Parent 

I will present the training program "Becoming a Love and Logic Parent" to provide the parents of our 
school with discipline and behavior management strategies developed over the past twenty years by Jim 
Fay, Dr . Foster Cline, and Dr. Charles Fay . Through this program parent will become equipped with 
practical techniques that will help their children become more responsible, achieve in school, and able to 
succeed in the real world . 

Project PLACES: Playing and Learning Across Community 
Environments and Settings 

Building : 

	

Harvey Oaks Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Pam Berki 

	

Kimberly Bolan 

Project PLACES will utilize existing technology within Millard Public Schools to provide a website for 
parents of young children who are looking for community settings that provide social and play 
opportunities with peers. Age Appropriate community settings and developmentally sound activities within 
these settings will be identified. The initial project will establish the website and identify ongoing 
community opportunities. The website will be updated with seasonal activities . Families who receive 
Early Intervention will be invited to field test the site with the support of their Early Interventionist . 
Designed activities will be appropriate for children with all ranges of ability . 

Math 24 Tournament 

This project is intended to strengthen students' basic math skills by integrating the Math 24 and First In 
Math programs developed by Robert Sun . Math 24 challenges students in the skills of addition, 
subtraction, multiplication, and division. The First In Math program utilizes computer technology that 
allows classes to compete against other classes in their school and against other schools . A Parent Night 
introduces the program to parents and encourages them to help their children learn and practice basic skills 
at home. Students are motivated throughout the year by the classroom competitions and school-wide Math 
24 tournaments. 

Reading on the Run 

Building : 

	

Hitchcock Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Mandy Johnson 

	

Pam Ehly 

Reading on the Run, our home school reading connection program, is designed to be a family friendly way 
to promote reading outside the school . Each week, every primary student at Hitchcock will select a 
thematic reading backpack filled with quality, age appropriate literature and a related activity to enjoy at 
home with his or her family . All thematic backpacks will have an activity focusing on one of Howard 
Gardner's Multiple Intelligences . Each primary grade level will have fifty different themes to ensure that 
every student will be able to select a new bag each week of the school year. 

75



I Can H.E.L.P. - Hands Extended Linking People 

Building: 

	

Montclair Elementary/Montessori Program 
Applicants: 

	

Kendall Morrisey 

Most children know helping others is important. Children naturally help friends, or a stranger, when they 
see compelling needs. Giving children opportunities to help people is good. However, teaching a child to 
examine her/his resources, skills, talents, and beliefs and match those assets to specific needs within their 
community is exceptional . The "I Can H.E.L.P . - Hands Extended Linking People" program creates a 
service-learning program for a fourth and fifth grade Montessori classroom, serves as a template for 
incorporating service-learning into a 600- student elementary school, and builds a resource center of 
materials, instructional supplies, and mentors for teachers throughout the district. 

Discover Culture In Omaha - Especially for ELL Students 

Building : 

	

Sandoz Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Maria Hicks 

The intent of this project is to provide English language rich experiences for students with limited English 
proficiency. This will be accomplished by first working with students in a classroom setting to learn about 
the various cultural experiences that Omaha has to offer and then experiencing what Omaha has to offer . 
Cultural experiences will include music, art, dance, history and drama as themes for this project. Students 
will visit: Orphum Theater, Joslyn Art Museum, Western Heritage Museum, Rose Theater, Union Pacific 
Train Station. 

Opportunities & Success for our English Language Learners 

Building : 

	

Willowdale Elementary 
Applicants : 

	

Cindy Wallace 

This project will enable English Language Learners to receive English language instruction over the 
summer in order to maintain and improve upon skills that have been acquired throughout the school year. 
These skills include listening, speaking, reading, writing, critical thinking and vocabulary acquisition . This 
will also help to improve upon skills that are needed for the many district ELO's and state assessments that 
are required . This will aid in attaining the district's current goal that "all students will meet or exceed the 
standards for academic skills and applications necessary for success at the primary, intermediate, middle 
and high school levels . 

Building : 

	

Andersen Middle 
Applicants : 

	

Nancy Wilson 

A Need to Read 

Students who have received low or failing scores in the reading and language arts components of their 
standardized assessment tests will be invited to attend weekly sessions that include activities that strengthen 
reading abilities and strategies and emphasize practice in reading and writing directions to complete 
tangible products . Targeted 6's and 7`s grade students will participate in an after-school laboratory 
experience that utilizes a creative, hands-on approach in improving skills in reading and technical writing . 

76



Bulldog Basics 

Building : 

	

Beadle Middle 
Applicants : 

	

Candra Guenther 

	

Dana Chamberlain 

Selected students will receive information and participate in activities that will help them successfully 
transition to the middle school . Organizational skills, middle school expectations, routines and schedules, 
social skills, familiarization with the building, locker practice, and sixth grade team structure will be 
addressed through the lessons and activities . Fifth grade teachers provide information about current 
students who would benefit from participating in Bulldog Basics camp to the Beadle Middle School 
counselors. Approximately thirty to thirty-five students will be selected to participate in the camp . 

Building : 

	

Central Middle 
Applicants : 

	

Shelley Corry 

	

Carolyn Halpain 
Barbara Miller 

Building: 

	

Central Middle 
Applicants : 

	

Ann Gapinski 

Camp Cyclone 

Camp Cyclone will serve as a review of basic academic skills in the area of math, reading, writing, science 
and social studies . It will also increase the percentage of students who successfully master the district 
Essential Learner Outcomes . It will reduce the anxiety level of selected incoming sixth graders, including 
all verified special education students, and their parents and encourage early success at the start of the 
school year. In addition, it will provide an opportunity for the parents of all students verified for special 
education services to meet with special education staff members at the conclusion of the camp. 

After School Advantage Program 

This program will address the needs of at-risk students and help students unable to master the district's 
Essential Learner Outcomes (ELO's) achieve the district required objectives. The program's purpose is to 
teach students lifelong skills, such as organization strategies, task prioritization, memorization, application 
and synthesis . Utilizing these skills will enable task completion, and support ELO mastery . Students will 
be provided with supervised, after-school study time four days a week . Educators will be reimbursed to 
assist students with homework and curricular test preparation. Focus on targeted areas of deficiency, such 
as math skills, reading comprehension, and writing will also be encouraged . 

77



Building : 

	

Kiewit Middle 
Applicants : 

	

Cecelia Birckhead 

The intent of this proposal is to bring summer month excitement for learning to the middle level students 
by providing numerous workshops on such topics as drama, Spanish, French, fishing, first aid/CPR, 
scrapbooking, career exploration, cooking, microscopic mysteries, Omaha history, and cheerleading . The 
workshops will be designed to challenge minds, expose students to new experiences, teach life long skills, 
and build new friendships . By providing a safe learning environment to interested student during the 
summer months, our school will extend learning beyond the traditional school setting . 

Building : 

	

Russell Middle 
Applicants : 

	

Carol Groseth 

Sunny Side Up! 

Get Ahead Program 

The intent of the "Get Ahead" program is to provide learning opportunities for students at risk of failing or 
having difficulties adjusting to middle school . Fifth grade students in the program will review basic skills 
in the core subject areas, practice study and organizational skills, and have the opportunity to become 
familiar with the class schedules, locker combinations and layout of the school building. Our hop is that 
students who participate in the program will increase their confidence and security for the bital transition 
form elementary to middle school. 

Building : 

	

Central Middle 
Applicants : 

	

Susan Polk 

Building : 

	

Millard North High 
Applicants : 

	

Kelly Welsh 

HAL Seminars 

HAL Seminars are a series of middle school workshops designed to allow high ability learners from 
throughout the district to pursue specific interests such as creative writing, forensic, and city planning in a 
setting that cannot be duplicated in the classroom. Each seminar focuses on a theme that allows the 
integration of numerous disciplines and challenges the students to work at their highest potential with their 
intellectual peers. For many of these students, perhaps most, the workshops are the first time they have had 
the opportunity to work at such a high intellectual level . 

The Freshman Stampede 

Galloping into the Future is a plan to help incoming freshmen students have a successful transition to high 
school by providing a fun-filled, informative, positive day-long orientation . Freshmen tend to have lowest 
GPA, the greatest number of disciplinary referrals, and the highest failure rates when compared to upper 
classmen. The intent of this grant is to purchase materials to be used over a 5 year cycle to assist freshmen 
with the issue of transition . Our goal is to help more of our freshmen to be successful and this program is 
one major effort to help us meet this goal . 

78



Training our Future Educators : The Peer-Tutoring Experience 

Building : 

	

Millard West High 
Applicants : 

	

Amy Delehant 

I want to establish an after school peer-tutoring program in which the Future Educators of America club 
members will work with their peers who are struggling in their courses . As FEA sponsor, I would assign 
the club members to specific students based on their academic strengths and log their hours . I would credit 
the club member a small fee for their tutoring services on ah hourly basis, crediting the money to an 
account to fund the transportation on their trip to the FEA national convention . 

Building : 

	

Elementary Principals 
Applicants : 

	

Dr. Patricia Rhodes 

BIST or BUST 

The grant request is intended to match funding from Educational Services (Millard Public Schools) to train 
teachers to use B .LS.T ., Behavior Intervention Support Team . Of the 22 elementary schools, 13 currently 
use B.LS.T . It is an excellent program designed to keep students safe and productive in the school building 
every day . If teaching or learning is interrupted by chronic misbehavior, learning is diminished while the 
teacher deals with the problem. The B.LS.T . program has high expectations and two rules that apply 
school wide : It is not okay to be disruptive and it is not okay to be hurtful. The elementary principals 
would like to train 100 teachers in June . Previously the district provided the 3 and ~/z day training ; however 
the grant is gone . Staff development can fund $7,500 and we are requesting a like amount from the 
foundation . The workshop costs $250.00 per teacher so we could fund 60 registrations. 

Building : 

	

DSAC/Educational Services 
Applicants : 

	

Dr. Linda Horton 

Millard TeamMates Mentoring Program 

Millard Public Schools TeamMates Mentoring Program has grown to over 90 mentors serving students in 
15 elementary and secondary schools . Mentors assist students experiencing difficulties affecting their 
success in schools . Funding from the State TeamMates Office is no longer available and Metro funding 
continues to decrease as well . The fudns requested would primarily pay for coordinator stipends, mentor 
traning/recognition, and mentor-mentee activities . 

Becoming a Nation of Readers 

Building : 

	

Echo Hills/Bryan/Cody/Holling Heights/Norris/Rockwell 
Applicants : 

	

Linda Walters 

The single most important activity for building the knowledge required for eventual success in reading is 
reading aloud to children . (Becoming a Nation of Readers) Because parents and family childcare 
providers are in a unique position to enhance the potential benefits of a child's early education, they will be 
invited to participate in a book club and attend a monthly story time at Rockwell Elementary Information 
Center. If they read to the children on an ongoing basis, they will be eligible to receive books to add to 
their home library. Preschool books will be available for check out at story times . 

79



S.P.A.R.K. - Student & Parent Activities for Readiness into 
Kindergarten 

Building: 

	

Department of Early Childhood Education 
Applicants : 

	

Suzy Renken 

	

Lisa Unger 

The S.P.A.R.K. program will provide parents of incoming Kindergartners with practical, easy to use ideas 
on ways to prepare their child to be successful in the classroom and assist their child throughout the school 
year . The grant will provide funds necessary to research early childhood learning activities that parents can 
do with their child at home. In addition, it will allow us to develop and share these beneficial ideas at 
district wide parent workshops. The intent of this project is to create a partnership that will help children 
succeed in school . 

Help! Dennis the Menace Lives at My House! 

Building: 

	

Psychological Services 
Applicants: 

	

Liz Carey 

A parent support group for parents of children with Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) has 
been formed to provide parents with the following information : 

* 

	

What is ADHD? 
* 

	

What can we do about ADHD? 
* 

	

What treatments are available and effective? 
* 

	

What support services are available in the schools and community? 
* 

	

What behavioral strategies can be used to improve my child's compliance 
with directions and task completion? 

Specific topics are planned for each session in addition to the above, including parenting techniques, 
discipline, how to help with homework, and home/school communication. Parents benefit from talking with 
others who face similar challenges . This group of parents often hears negative reports from teachers and 
other adults working with their children. Through interaction with the facilitators, parents learn that 
educators care about their child, understand ADHD and want to work with these children, which in turn 
improves communication and trust between parents and teachers . 

80



AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Investment Report 

MEETING DATE: April 4, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: Business 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION : 

	

Investment Report - A report of the current investments and 
investment practices of the district. 

Enclosure I .3 . 
April 4, 2005 

ACTION DESIRED: 

	

Approval - 

	

Discussion - 

	

Information Only 

	

x 

BACKGROUND: 

	

Attached is the Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending 
March 28, 2005 . 

OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

RECOMMENDATION: n/a 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 

IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION : n/a 

TIMELINE: n/a 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Chris Hughes (Accounting Manager) & Ken Fossen 
(Assoc . Supt.) 

SUPERINTENDENT'S , l 
APPROVAL: 

81



Millard Public Schools 
Investment of Funds 
March 28, 2005 

Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund 

The Millard Public Schools utilizes the Nebraska School District Liquid Asset Fund 
(referred to as either NSDLAF or CADRE, the financial services firm which manages the 
fund) for day-to-day investing. NSDLAF was established in 1988 . The fund is offered 
exclusively to Nebraska school districts, educational service units, and technical 
community colleges . The fund's objective is to allow school districts to pool their dollars 
for investment. The fund invests in items permitted by Nebraska law (i.e . repurchase 
agreements, U.S . Government Agency Obligations, U.S . Treasury Bills and Certificates 
of Deposit) . 

MPS maintains two liquid accounts that can be accessed daily. The General Fund, Food 
Service Fund, Administrative Activity Fund, Special Building Fund, Bond Fund, 
Depreciation Fund, Construction Fund and Employee Benefit Fund utilize one account. 
This account is used throughout the month as taxes, state aid, etc. are received and as 
bills or payroll are paid. The other account is utilized by the various middle schools. As 
of March 28, 2005, the 7-day current yield for these accounts was 2.10%. MPS also 
utilizes long term fixed investments (examples: 30, 60, 90 day US Government 
Securities, Certificates of Deposits, etc) . The current rate of return depends on the term, 
with the district currently earning 2.20% to 4.25%. 

Sweeu Account for General Checking Account 

Each day, any balance remaining in the District's main checking account above the level 
necessary to avoid service charges is invested in either U.S. Government agency backed 
repurchase agreements (amounts under $25,000) or commercial paper notes (amounts 
over $25,000) . The interest rate for the sweep account is currently 1.65%. 

Bond Fund Trust Account at First National Bank of Omaha 

Taxes and other revenues received for the repayment of bond principal and interest are 
invested through the trust department at First National Bank of Omaha. The funds are 
invested in U.S . Treasury Bills, individual U.S. Government Agency backed securities, or 
a money market account which invests in U.S. Government backed agency securities, 
based on the funds available, the time line until the next debt service payment, and the 
available yields . The trust account balance as of March 28, 2005 was $4,147,996.71 . 

82



AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Quarterly M&O Report 

MEETING DATE : Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

General Administration 

TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION : 

	

Quarterly M&O Report - The quarterly report from Sodexho 
regarding the District's Maintenance and Operations . 

ACTION DESIRED: 

	

Approval - 

	

Discussion - 

	

Information Only 

	

x 

BACKGROUND: n/a 

OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES : n/a 

RECOMMENDATION: n/a 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 

IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION : n/a 

TIMELINE: n/a 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Bob Snowden, General Manager (Sodexho) and Ken 
Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

SUPERINTENDENT' 
APPROVAL: 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Enclosure I .4 . 
April 4, 2005 

83



I. Accomplishments 

MAINTENANCE HIGHLIGHTS 

SodeX ho 

Millard Public Schools 
Executive Summary 

Quarterly Review 
January - March 2005 

millard 
Pusuc scHOO~s 

Maintenance and Custodial Managers worked with all schools on non-compliance 
issues regarding the Fire Marshall Inspections. Henry Rohwer is tracking the 
completion of deficiencies and reviewing all maintenance, grounds and custodial 
issues . Items will continue into April until corrected . 
Several indoor air quality issues were reported through the quarter. Reviews, testing 
and or remediation work was performed at the following locations . 

o 

	

Rockwell - testing, remediation and restoration in one of the portables . 
o 

	

Aldrich - testing, remediation and restoration in one classroom . 
o 

	

Ezra - testing due to personnel input. 
o 

	

Cody - testing due to personnel input. 
o 

	

Black Elk - reviewed mold reports in one portable . 
Efforts were coordinated with OPPD and MPS Mechanical to rectify an electrical 
issue discovered by OPPD at Kiewit . This discovery of the issue and corrective 
action prevented a major power failure of the main 400-volt power bus. 
"Fire shutters" at Ezra protecting the gym from the main corridorlentry area were 
found to be inoperable . Meetings and repairs were coordinated with two vendors and 
MPS staffto rectify the problem. 
Restroom partitions that were failing at Abbot were replaced with new metal 
partitions. This is an area of the budget that was increased for the current budget year 
to be able to make improvements when restroom stalls need replaced . 
The ceiling the in Anderson's `commons' area was replaced over spring break. 
Previously there had been several different types of ceiling the in that area, which 
were mismatched as well as many of the tiles were original and showing their age. 
Dennis Bouckhuyt coordinated efforts to replace several areas of failing floor the at 
Kiewit in the corridor areas. A recommendation to move the replacement of this 
floor the higher on the project list for next summer was made. 
The painting of the interior of a portable at Rockwell was completed after paper 
coverings were taken down due to the fire marshal inspection . 
Painting was completed in South High's kitchen area due to peeling paint. 
A leak from an RTU at Beadle leaked onto the wood gym floor. A vendor was 
brought in and corrective measures will be taken to repair the damaged area during 
the upcoming summer. 

84



SodeXho 

I. Accomplishments (continued) 

Steve Laire met with Setpoint Controls and is setting up training for all the Techs and 
PM's to go through a ̀ fireye' burner trouble shooting class. This will aid in tuning 
and troubleshooting boilers and burners as well as be able to modify old burner 
controls to newer controls . 
Henry Rohwer and Steve Laire attended several meetings regarding the HVAC 
upgrades being planned for Rockwell . 
Henry Rohwer met with Nathan Redmond (OPPD/UNL) to discuss the remaining 
open items for close out of the Millard West Continuous Commissioning project . 
Henry Rohwer and Steve Laire met for discussions on the OPPD Elutions software 
that allows monitoring of electric power consumption at the three high schools. This 
will improve MPS's ability to control peak power usage and reduce electrical costs. 
A vacant project custodial position was moved into maintenance to provide for an 
additional Custodian Engineer. This move was made to better cover the growing 
need in maintenance, and in particular coverage for absences and vacancies at the 
engineer level in the Middle and High Schools. Before this move, there was no back 
up for coverage when someone was absent, therefore creating a shortage in the 
Mechanical Department . 

	

A selection for this position has been made and we are 
anticipating moving the employee into this new role in late April. 
Carpentry Department repaired over 150 chairs from North High . 
Three classrooms were re-carpeted at Willowdale . 
Major wall repair work was done to a classroom at Cody. 
For safety reasons, roof access ladders were installed at both North High and Cody . 
The press box windows at South's baseball field were replaced . 
BNR Bleachers conducted their annual inspection of all indoor bleachers . These 
inspections and the necessary repairs were completed over spring break. A detailed 
report will be provided by BNR on additional recommended repairs or modifications. 
Additionally, a three-year agreement with BNR Bleachers was negotiated instead of 
the year-to-year agreement we had been using. This three-year agreement will save 
$3500 per year, or $10,500 over the three years. 

GROUNDS HIGHLIGHTS 

L~lillard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Terry Haubold and Bob Snowden attended several meetings regarding the upcoming 
Buell Stadium field renovations . Terry provided input that he and Kevin Becker 
gathered while at the Sports Turf Management Association seminar held in January. 
We currently are researching equipment needs for the new surface as well as other 
general maintenance items that will need to occur once the field is in play . 
The Grounds Department handled several snow removal and or saltlsanding efforts 
throughout the quarter. 
The Grounds Department continued its tree trimming efforts throughout the District 
in January. All sites were completed. 

85



I. Accomplishments (continued) 

CUSTODIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Sodexho ~3illard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

The Grounds Department began its mulching efforts at all sites, refreshing both 
planting beds and trees with fresh mulch. All sites will be completed by the end of 
March. 
Painting was completed on the tracks at both Kiewit and Anderson Middle Schools. 
Terry Haubold began work with Carefree Lawn and Garden to develop landscaping 
plans to improve the appearance of each school . Currently, plans are complete for 
work at Norris and Kiewit . Plans are in progress for DSAC, Cather, North High and 
Anderson . As budget allows, landscaping projects will begin at selected sites later 
this spring . 

	

The goal is to improve curb appeal at several buildings this budget year, 
with continued improvement at additional sites next budget year . Updates will be 
reported on in future Quarterly Reports. 
Preparations for spring sports began this quarter. Fieldwork has begun as well as 
mowing on the baseball and soccer fields at all three high schools. These fields have 
also been fertilized . As the weather improves, additional work such as seeding, 
fertilization, broadleaf control, etc. will be completed. 
The Grounds Department has prepared all mowing equipment for the upcoming 
season . Preparations for this season will continue, and we anticipate starting our 
mowing in April District wide . Plans are being made for fertilization and broadleaf 
control throughout the District for the second quarter. 
Interviews and hiring took place to fill the 10-month grounds assistant vacancies at 
the High Schools. Additionally, interviews and hiring began and is continuing on the 
three 10-month grounds assistant positions reporting out of Support Services . 
Grounds are in the process of testing an additional reel mower to purchase to add to 
the existing reel mower we currently own. This would become part of the ̀ athletic' 
mowing crew's equipment and we would add soccer fields to our reel mowing cycle. 
Currently, we are only reel mowing baseball . 

Various projects were completed over the non-school days in January and February as 
well as during spring break. These included : 

o 

	

Extraction of carpets 
o 

	

Power scrubbing restrooms 
o 

	

Buffing and burnishing of corridors and cafeterias/gyms. 
o 

	

Window cleaning - interior and exterior 
o 

	

General project cleaning in classrooms 
Interviewing continued the quarter for the custodial sub pool, as well as the vacant 
10-month and full time positions throughout the District . Additionally, the process 
for filling custodial positions for Reeder Elementary began with the anticipation of 
having staff in the building on May 2na . 

86



I. Accomplishments (continued) 

GENERAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The Custodial Managers and Supervisors dealt with numerous employee issues 
throughout the quarter as the need arose. 
The Custodial Managers and Supervisors are working on several things to prepare for 
the upcoming summer, as well as changes for next fall . These include: 

o 

	

Custodial equipment needs 
o 

	

Summer floor finish quantities 
o 

	

Chemical and supply inventory standards per building 

Meeting with vendors held : 
Henry Rohwer and Steve Laire met with Protex to discuss potential 
improvement in problem solving on low voltage electronics equipment 
including fire protection systems and intercoms . 
Two meetings were held that included Henry Rohwer, Steve Laire and Bob 
Snowden with Kelvin Turman of National Safety Council to investigate 
options for eye wash stations for each building where hazardous chemicals are 
stored and mixed. 
Meetings were held with Bob Snowden, Henry Rohwer and Steve Laire with 
Control Masters to discuss the installation of a ̀ pilot' entry system for the 
lower doors at DSAC . Additionally, several meetings and discussions were 
held to discuss the upgrading of the HVAC controls at DSAC, as well as other 
changes that can be made to better improve heating and cooling. An 
evaluation of DSAC is also being conducted by OPPD to identify equipment 
needs and or changes and energy saving measures . Final proposals by OPPD 
and Control Masters are expected by early April. A plan of action will then be 
put into place depending upon recommendations. 
Diane Moore met with the representative of Ecolab two times to review 
current chemicals and upcoming needs. 
Diane Moore and Bob Snowden had several meetings with both Unisource 
and Nogg to discuss can liner options. Can liners costs have increased 
substantially over the past 4 months due to rising petroleum costs. 
Terry Haubold and Dennis Bouckhuyt are in the process of having vendors 
look into the costs of refurbishing the stadium seating on the home side of 
Buell. Options will include new capslcovers or stripping and repainting . 

Bob Snowden, Terry Haubold, Henry Rohwer and Steve Laire began and completed 
the budget process for the upcoming 2006 budget year. Six budgets were prepared 
ranging from the minimum 102.5% to 110.6% 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Sodexho L~1IIlard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

87



I. Accomplishments (continued) 

SodeX ho ~3illard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

The employee evaluation process has begun again for the 2004-2005 school year. 
The evaluation forms used last year were reviewed and updated for this current year . 
All evaluations are scheduled for completion by the end of June . 
All managers began reviewing current job descriptions for their respective areas as 
well as developing job descriptions for positions that will be placed in the upcoming 
budgets. The review of current job descriptions will continue in April and May. To 
date, the following job descriptions have been reviewed or created : 

o Grounds Department Head (revised) 
o 

	

Grounds Leader (revised) 
o 

	

Grounds Assistant (revised} 
0 

	

10-month Grounds Assistant (revised) 
o 

	

High School Grounds Assistant (new) 
o 

	

Custodian Engineer - Itinerant (new) 
o 

	

Project Custodian (revised) 
o 

	

Electrician (new) 
o 

	

Plumber (new) 
o 

	

Carpenter - Floor Specialist (new) 
o 

	

General Laborer (new) 
The annual safety audit for Sodexho was completed at Millard on February 1~` . We 
received a 95 .5% rating . Deficiencies noted are being worked on. 
Bob Snowden and Eileen Person attended a meeting held by Shirley Lueth and 
Accounting to discuss possible changes and improvements to how PO's, invoices and 
reports are handled. 
Mike Majors was in to support the account on January 24a' and 25a', February 22"a 
and 23ra, and March 22na . 
Bob Snowden attended a District Meeting for Sodexho in Dallas on January l0a' and 
l la' . 
Kevin Casey, Grounds Project Engineer for Sodexho Support was in February 7a' - 
l la' to review our Grounds Program. Additionally, Kevin will be working on some 
additional training materials that we can use within the Grounds Department 
throughout the year . Finally, Kevin is working on a playground safety and 
playground inspection program that will be taught this upcoming summer. 
Claire Biggs, Director of Support, and Kwame Watkins, Maintenance Project 
Engineer, were both in visiting the account on March 16a' and 17a' . They toured 
some schools, reviewed the maintenance organization and reviewed input on 
upcoming budgetary and staffing needs as the District grows. A follow up report will 
be sent to the account to review . 
Pat O'Hara, Custodial and Training Project Engineer visited the account on January 
12a' - 14~` . Pat toured schools and reviewed training material as well as received 
input on chemicals and training for the upcoming changes to the Sodexho training 
program and procedures . 

88



II. Training 

Sode.~ho millard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Three new custodians began training at Rolling Heights in January and February . 
Total Training Hours: 104 
Managers conducted Personal Protective Equipment training in January at various 
locations as part of the Monthly Safety Talk . Total Training Hours: 30'/ 
Managers conducted Safe Driving training in February at various locations as part of 
the Monthly Safety Talk . Total Training Hours: 24. 75 
Chris Bradstreet, grounds assistant, conducted two training session in February with 
members of the Grounds Department covering Athletic Field Maintenance as well as 
Athletic Field Marking . Total Training Hours: 22. S 
10 MPS Grounds employees attended the Turf Management Training in January . 
Classes taken included sports turf growing, broadleaf weed control, fertilizers, 
trimming and pruning techniques. One employee was recertified in chemical 
applications, bringing the total number of certified grounds employees up to 9 out of 
12 full timers . 

	

Total Training Hours: 160 
Both painters attended a one-day seminar, which covered topics such as wall 
coverings, how do deal with mildew and mold and how to safely work on scaffolding . 
Total Training Hours: 16 
Henry Rohwer, Terry Haubold and Dennis Bouckhuyt attended the Midwest Mold 
Symposium issues within buildings on March 16~'. Midwest Mold Symposium 
hosted by several sponsors including UN, ALA and Health Department . 
Henry Rohwer attended the ASHRAE "Principals of Steam" professional 
development seminar on January 18~' . 
Henry Rohwer attended a seminar at HDR on boiler emissions that covered carbon 
dioxide, ozone, mercury and other air borne pollutants . 
Steve Laire visited the vendor facilities of Desert Aire and Danfoos to review various 
offerings of HVAC and motor control equipment . 
Terry Haubold and Kevin Becker attended the Sports Turf Management Association 
seminar in Phoenix from January 19~' - 22nd. They attended courses on both natural 
turf and artificial surfaces . 
Terry Haubold completed two additional classes at Metropolitan Community College 
in February . One was on Evergreens and Groundcovers, and the other was on 
Building and Property Management . Currently Terry is enrolled in a Shrub and Vine 
course at Metro. 

89



Sodexho 
III. Quality and Productivity 

~3illard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

MONTHLY CUSTODIAL INSPECTIONS 
The monthly inspections of the buildings continued throughout the quarter. Below are 
the results . 

Due to the timing of this report, all March numbers will be included in next quarter's 
report. 

Below are the year-to-date results for the 2004-2005 school year, along with a 
comparison to the 2003-2004 school year . 

Mouthy Custodial Inshec6ons 

90 

88 

8s 

84 

82 

80 

78 
jl t t t 

District High Middle Elementary 

" 2003-2004 
" 2004-2005 

% 
YTD 04-05 YTD 03-04 Increase/Decrease 

District Average 89.005% 85.388% + 3 .618% 
High school 89.609% 82.037% + 7.572% 
Middle School 88.390% 82.741% + 5.649% 
Elementary School 89.081% 86.444% + 2.637% 

January OS February OS YTD Average 
District Average 90.660% 89.489% 89.005% 
High school 95 .715% 90.467% 89.609% 
Middle School $9.591% 89.723% 88.390% 
Elementary School 89.186% 89.316% 89.081% 

90



SodeXho 

III. Quality and Productivity (continued) 

~3illard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

TEACHER SURVEYS - All Department Survey 
The Teacher Surveys continued to be conducted during the quarter. The surveys are on a 
scale of 1 to 5, with 5 = Excellent, 3 = Average and 1 = Poor . Below are the results : 

January 05 
(119 total sureeys) 

February 05 
(103 total suweys) 

I3ue to the timing of this report, all ~hfarch numbers will be included in next quarter's 
report. 

Below are the year-to-date results for the 2004-2005 school year, along with a 
comparison to the 2003-2004 school year. 

Comparison of District Average and by Department 

~erall Average Custodial Average Maintenance 
Average 

Grounds Average 

District Average 4.19 4.10 4.39 3 .98 
High School 4.56 4.13 5.00 5.00 
nliddle School 4,47 -1 .30 4.72 4.3G 
Elementary School 4.07 4.03 4.22 3 .81 

Overall Average Custodial Average Maintenance Grounds Average 
Average 

District Average -1 .20 4.17 4.2~ 4.15 
High School 3.$6 3.92 3 .76 3.94 
Middle School 4.36 4.33 :1 . :1 .1 4.3G 
Elementary School 4_22 4.17 4.31 4.12 

Number of District Custodial Maintenance Grounds 
Sun"eys Average Average Average Average 

20(11-2005 YTD 706 4.18 4.17 4.2G -1 .02 
2003-2004 YTD 351 4.11 4.10 4.19 3.96 

+101 .1% +1 .7% +1 .7% +1.7% +1 .~% 
Increase/Decrease 

91



a.s 
4.4 

4.2 

4 

3.8 

3.6 

Sodex ho 

III. Quality and Productivity (continued) 

2004-200; YTD 
2003-2004 YTD 

Increase/Decrease 

High 

millard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Comparison by School Type 
High School 

	

Middle School 

	

Elementary School 
4 .06 4.49 

	

4.08 
3.98 4.32 

	

4.13 
+ 2 .0% 

	

+ 3.9% 

	

- 1.2% 

jw 
ji t 

Middle Elementary 

" 2003-2004 
" 2004-2005 

1VIAINTENANCE WORK ORDERS: 
This school year we will begin reporting more detail on the work orders regarding type, 
status, age, etc . Below is a breakdown for work orders received, completed and still open 
during the quarter : 

Percentage of Open Work Orders by Department 
Percentage 

Grounds 
Received 

249 
Completed 

229 
Open 
104 

Carpentry 512 473 168 
PaWt 62 52 77 
Custodial 16 5 12 
HVACfMechanical 1096 1194 289 
Vehicle Mechanic 73 72 26 
Miscellaneous 6 6 0 
Total 2014 2040 676 

Grounds 15% 
Carpentry 25 
Paint 12% 
Custodial 2% 
HVAC/Mechanical 42 
Vehicle Maintenance 4% 
Miscellaneous 0% 

92



Sodex ho 

III. Quality and Productivity (continued) 

55% 

CUSTODIAL VISITS : 

Percentage Work Orders Received by 
Department 

12% 

(From January - March 18th) 

L~Illard 

25% 

3% 

PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Inspections Completed 

	

232 
Principal Visits Completed 

	

304 
Total Site Visits Completed 

	

1595 (includes numbers above) 

" Grounds 
" Carpentry 

Paint 
D Custodial 

" HVAC 
" Vehicle 

Below is a breakdown off all open work orders in the system by age (in days) through 
3/24/05 . 

Days Open 0-1 2-3 4-7 8-14 15-21 22-28 29-60 61-90 90+ 
Grounds 12 0 1 7 1 2 12 3 66 
Carpentry 35 12 2 9 14 5 24 11 56 
Paint 1 0 0 1 1 19 3 1 51 
Custodial 0 0 0 2 0 1 3 1 5 
HVAC/Mechaucal 29 16 3 26 18 16 20 13 148 
Vehicle Mechanic 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 25 

Total 77 28 6 45 34 43 63 29 351 

93



SodeXho 

III. Quality and Productivity (continued) 

CUSTODIAL ABSENSES: (in hours) 
(From January - February) 

IV. Employee Recognition Programs 

millard 
PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

The Building of the Month for the Custodial Department continued from January 
through February. Below are the winning schools . 

January 2005 Building of the Month Schools : 

Secondary Division : 

	

South High 
Elementary Division : 

	

SSC 

February 2005 Building of the Month Schools: 

Secondary Division : 

	

Millard Learning Center 
Elementary Division : 

	

DSAC 

Winning schools will receive certificates for their accomplishment as well as a plaque 
to hang in their schools. 

The Employee of the Quarter program began in 2005 . The management team 
nominated employees based on work performance, cost saving ideas, and teamwork 
for the pervious quarter. The first quarter being recognized was October - December 
of 2005, and covered 4 areas within Support Services : 

Grounds Department 

	

Custodial Department 
Maintenance Department 

	

Building Engineers 

Business and Emergency 60 
Bereavement 104 
Family Sick 184 
Leave without Pay 8 
Maternity Leave 0 
Sick 2200 
Vacation 932 

94



SodeXho 

IV. Employee Recognition Programs (continued) 

V. Goals 

millard 
Pusuc scHOO~s 

For this recognition, employees received a plaque for their accomplishments . The 
winning employees for October - December 2004 were : 

Tom Paustian - Grounds Department, Support Services 
Mario Mendoza - Custodial Department, Abbot 
Dennis Bouckhuyt - Maintenance Department, Carpentry 
Mike O'Fallon - Building Engineers, Central Middle School 

For the upcoming quarter, employees, principals or staff can nominate employees. A 
nomination slip was included in the most recent copy of the employee newsletter . 
Winners for the January - March 2005 quarter will be determined in April with 
announcements in the next newsletter . 

Distribute 2°a quarter Employee Newsletter in May. 
Continue working on revising job descriptions . 
Continue working on a ̀ drivers agreement' for all maintenance and grounds 
employees who drive MPS vehicles to review and sign . 
Continue interviewing and hiring for all open positions . 
Continue planning to improve ̀ curb appeal' at select sites for the spring . 
Continue to monitor the MPS budget . 
Continue preparations for the opening of Reeder Elementary, which will include 
staffing, supplies, equipment, Facility Center asset tagging, etc. 
Continue planning for the upcoming summer projects for all departments. 
Have 2 Custodial Managers attend a Sodexho training course on floor stripping and 
refinishing techniques as well as the new Ecolab floor finish we will be implementing 
this summer. 
Upgrade in April to the latest version of Facility Center and the new reporting 
module. 
Post and interview for the summer workers for Grounds, Paint and Mechanical 
Departments. 

95



AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Quarterly Food Service Report 

MEETING DATE: Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

General Administration 

TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: 

	

Quarterly Food Service Report - A report on the District's Food 
Service program administered by ARAMARK. 

ACTION DESIRED: 

	

Approval - 

	

Discussion - 

	

Information Only 

	

x 

BACKGROUND: n/a 

OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES : n/a 

RECOMMENDATION: n/a 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 

IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION : n/a 

TIMELINE: n/a 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General 
Administration) and Jim Stilwell (Aramark`s Gen. Mgr.) 

SUPERINTENDENT'S 
APPROVAL: 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Enclosure I .S . 
April 4, 2005 

96



Board of Education 
Millard Public Schools 
5606 South 147 Stree t 
Omaha, NE 68137 

Jim Stilwell 
ARAMARK 

3rd Quarter Report 
2004-05 School Year 

1 

	

Financial Update 
2-10 

	

Building Level Reports 
11-13 

	

Recommendations of the Cafeteria Committee 
14-18 

	

Montclair Pilot 

The financial section of this report contains the activity during the January and February 
accounting periods. March numbers were not available at the time of print. 

	

In the building 
summary pages - for March - I was able to include sales and participation information up to 
March 25 to give you an idea of how the month is trending . 

Also included are my initial thoughts on the recommendations 

	

of the cafeteria commi 
presented to Dr. Fossen. 

To better advise the Board, we have set up a pilot production center ak Montclair Elementary . 
The pilot will begin Apri14 `n . The parental communication and menu is attached. I wish to 
thank Kara Hutton and the staff of Montclair for allowing this pilot. 

Please call me ahead of the Board Meetin g if you wish any further documentation of the 
activities during this quarter . I will have them available at the meeting. 

As always, your support of Millard Food service is greatly appreciated. 

97



MFS 3rd Quarter Report.pdf 

Millard Food Service 
for the period ham January 1st,2005 tlxt7tgh June 301h, 2005 

Second Semester 
January 

	

February 

	

March 

	

April 

	

May 

	

Semester YTD 

	

Fiscal YTD 

Tots Income S 531 730.54 S 880 071 .32 S S 1 191 801 .86 4 857 843:82 
t~ Iroane $ 445,226 .40 $ 561,683.74 $ 1,006,910.14 $ 3,978,217.99 

Rein6asemerR Income $ 86,504.14 $ 98,387.58 $ 184,891 .72 $ 679,625.83 

i . . 
01 sales 232 336:68 274 877:97 507 014.83 1880 335.01 

Man ement Labor 12 788:95 14 048.11 26 778.08 100 994.11 
Direct erases 83 718.17 83 973:84 E~ E~ # 147 750.01 440 58.08 
3,200 P and Plastics 21004.53 

314.22 E ".' 
$ 65.00 
~~~ 
~ $ 22250 

' :k 
$ 690.00 

4289 
$ 1,x67 .56 

~~l 
$ 1,e31 .61 

128.96 
$ 3,x19.39 s 

< 
1zs7s.ss 

~~1 34x.01 2x0.40 
3t7.000enenallr~eimice ~ ~ $ 1196.28 $ x,285.33 
32s.ozrelepcneE>~ense ;~] ~~~5 f:Y ~' E~IF~c::Y~.7 

Wv 
" 33,.00 once s~ppfes $ 61 .98 $ 245.08 ~ ~ $ 1,273.98 

,sa 
33t.oa EOP S ies 
331.21 F ' Expanses 

502 .23 
$ 162 .E 

E~1~i 
495.00 

$ 4220 
997.23 

$ 204.89 

:,. 
866.23 
< 

331.3, Aiborne Ai F ~ ~Z;~ F "'~'--'kYia 
- 305.00 

332ooAa&"Pronalion $ 1,962.E $ 1,962 $ 2468.94 
332,0 Fbwers & Deconatias 71 .E 71 .69 1 . 
s3s.go Pmlessor~ service $ 135.00 $ 135.00 $ 16200 

3aa.ss lion 
S 

653.35 
34s.o, UName and $ 1o,so1 .2s $ 1,s39 .oa 12,14o.a3 $ 2a,323zs 
34s.toneplacanaes FyiWix>iGl t8~tk " f~f :~~ F~1K~iiy':>" 

395.13 20216.96 F~~ 
3as.ssotnerOPeraeinOExP $ 436.09 $ 68288 $ 2,888.89 

Administrativecost" S 9 930:42 # 12 830:04 ® s 22 580.48 S 88114.80 
Distrkt Direct endRures 157 080.48 261 510.28 ~ ~ 418 570.74 1 783 928.82 

Other expense $ 3,378.95 $ 6,394.11 $ 9,T13.06 $ 39,333 

Foal Service Wags end Serel9s $ 153,681 .51 $ 255,116.17 $ 408,797.68 $ 1,744,593.23 

GROSS RETURN 55 856.88 13 73.08 - ~S 69 129.96 353 915.20 

Distrkt n-orefx E>~enduuree S 51 211 .92 S 51 211 .92 ; S S S 102 423.84 ~ 307 271.52 
e< $ la,s2s.eo $ 1a,s2s.6o $ 2s,2s1.so $ 67,75a .6o 

$ n,s97.2a $ 17,ss7.2a $ 3s,~a.48 $ 10x,16340 
HS Prrcpal Camm'seias $ 16,886.66 $ 18,666.66 $ 37,777.76 $ 113,33328 

NET RETURN [-- 4 644. $ 37 938.84 S (33,293.88) 
ARAMARK INVOICE 5 318,813.20 $ 385,287.96 S - $ - $ - $ 704,101 .16 $ 2 .520.002.00 

98



Millard Public Schools 
Elementar Total 

Ky raw-to-D". Sta. 

Stand Alone Sites 

Breakfast Schools 

Satellite Schools (from a Secondar 

Production Centers (with a satellite) 

0 
O 

Oelhw ~~~~0 
~AV ~~~~0 

MontdNr ~~~~0 
NYhwdt 

No,Ae ~~~~0 
~~~~~~~0 

ewleoz ~ ~ ® Q~ 0 
AVQ 

. r . 

Bie11N Wd~ EgMla" !bw PgvAMy 
20,989 203,590 13,857 9,130 25 .11 

TaelAeel Hqn Pgd,fWy 

879,570 39,122 22 .08 
PRORT/hOSS) 
STAIEMEM i 

ar 
Peue 

Pame 
aar f 

am 
Pe1Yl 

Pepsi 
asa. 

'® 
~~~e~~e 

~~~®i~iiiiiiim 

~~ Its_ ~~ ~F~ ~,fl ~A 
~(sll:1".~:111~1~®~~® 

~~~~~i~iiiiii~ 
~~~~~~iiiiii 

ivvva~~ra:a"1~-y~~®~~~ ~"J~Illlllalalml~lalllm ~e~~e ~~~~e e e 
~~~~~;!~~fl~~f 

302.15 
iiiii~ i~ ~ ~~ ©" 

w 

ro ' 
a " . . .. r.~_~".SC~l~li:Ydstl6'L~':~l~l~d 

312A0 ,- ~aiiiiii ~iiiiiiiis~~ ~a~® ~ia~~ei ~.~~e~~iiiiiiiisi ~a~~e ~~~ia~~e ~e-~~~~~ 
~i~~~~~~ ~e~7~e~7 

~~~a~ ~~~©imiiiiiiii~i ~e~~e 
roraaeara~cr ~ 
w .a: ~~'7~~'~.~~~ 

10100ManegementFea 
iQ y l M::U.H :L1!, Isis ~ [;i+~] I 
CUIiEM PHN00 
18UB81DIf)IIERF[ 119.17221) 0. -LCA (25,1A.2q -1.9% 

0 
boon ~~~f~~0 
Alaaeh ~~®El~~7© 

9eokElk ~~~~io 
Ezn ~~~~0 

Fbhww ~~®~~ 
Whedw 

WIIIowGle 
~ 
~ ~ ~ 
®~~~0 
~ 0 

AVO - 

~7~~~~ft~~7 
®~~~e 
l~af~f ~ ~F~',!~! '~f ~/ 

0 
~~~G~~~~ 

E~7 ~~ bus ~;~a ~~ 0 

®` 

99



Elementary Summary 
Total Average Daly Sales 
Si5,00D 

s,asaD 

s,aoao t --_. 

	

_ 

	

_ _ 

_- 

	

___^_-._.__-________ .___._~._ .____ 1 7 -____yt3,y?$____-513,706 -___stg~gg2____ 

S,aaao 
szboo 

s,zaoo 

s� ,soD 

s� ,ooo 
AUGM 

	

erPl'M 

	

OCTW 

	

NOVM 

	

DECK 

	

NNtd 

	

F®ld 

	

MARE 

	

APR2S 

	

MAY Q, 

_ 
slz7o6-s,~�

_____ ._____.__ ._ 
g}2~s . 

is Average Dagy Sales 

	

-Prbr Year Trend 

	

-Forecast 

YtD 

Total Avers a Dai 

	

Brealdast Count 

,.,aD ~-. _ --___ 
,.aeD 
ssD 
aeD 
780 

Beo 

480 

~0 

,eD 

BD 

_ 

	

. 

	

_ . 7~ 

	

.... . 7(~ 

	

_ 

	

77L 

	

._ 

	

._.._ _... 

. . . 

	

'" ~-lC 

	

.. 

	

.. . 

	

~ 

_.4~ 

	

__.__~.__ _ 

	

_.__._._. 

	

_ _~.__.____ 

	

- 

	

_.___ 

Average Breeldast Count 

	

Prior Year Trend 

	

Forecast I 

Summary 

Budget 93.8% 

Budge) 56.9% 

AUGM 

	

8~1'M 

	

O(TW 

	

NOVM 

	

DFCp 

	

JANM 

	

Pie, 

	

MAR! 

	

APR OS 

	

MAY td 

	

YTD 

Lunch Participation 
AUD SEP OCf NOV DEC JIW FEB MM APB MAY YTD 

cerrem 7ae9x. 7s4s% 7a,s% ma7% 7as,x. 7aatx, n.7nc 7aa4Y. ncgv, aao% 7aeo% 
RMYSer 7" 2296 7028% 78D6% 7e.75% 7e26% 7721% 9,32% 8090% eDN01 eDM01 

	

7eA6% 

PRwrrns (ae~ (,.~ (, .~ (n2ei 2.66 , .a (asei (,.esi aro na (ash 

100



Millard Public Schools 
Middle School Total 

Ksy Yar-to-Oete Stele 

1fl74 

	

9fl1% 

	

� .,% 

	

f Ixa9ts6f> 

v e . . . 
9iwlYl Wch EgiMee Ihq Pcd 1YAy 

4162 89 969 80 592 9 883 17 .68 
idelM! TeeILb1 Hoe vgn~iNy 
791 723 791 723 ##### 18.74 

PRORT/(LOSS) 

STAIEMENf S 
DeY 

ve6r 

v.oet 

rise S S 
Dee 

very 

vast 

asee ~~ea~~~e 
~~~m ~~n~~e~.~e~:~~ 

~iql:lsv:ax~~~~~lllllli 

~Illllls~~~e 
f(f11:1 M Yf:el .Idet ~ ~ ~ ~^,~ 

III S~ ~ IIIII ~ea~~~e ~~ea~~~e ea~~~e ~~~a~~~e e~~~e 
302 .151inlLelwr 

Aba6dl7enlLebor 

TOTAL 0.1B,f LP50R ~1f ~ ~~ ~.~,,

. 

RI ~ ~ ~~I 
roraL usoR ca~mm~,~~-~~m 

312m Poperand Pledor ~ea~~® ~~~© ~~a~~~e e~~~e 

1. ~ : .: . r.-, ~a~~~e ~~a~~~e 
roru.aelroPxr 
TOTAL DIRECTCif ~,~~~~~~® 

101mMene emeniFae 

OT_ALPROGRAMC 

818381 / RERkD 

~~~ 

AMS 

RoEUWy 

17.37 

Rnl 

2 

FoodCoe Rnl 

40.0% 5 

DFSdCaI_Rnl Rs4rnIS) Rnl 

10.117(. 3 f (S7t6i) 4 

RbrXy 

9 

BMS 10.58 5 4flB% 8 ,flB% 8 f m at 5 1 

dAS 1flBQ 4 3211% 1 129K 5 s 768 3 1 

IOdB ,fl79 3 8fl4% 2 10.2% 2 s BAZZ28 2 s 

MAS tflZ7 B 30.1% 3 10.B% 4 f (28~e8 .71) 5 Z 

RMS i&91 1 30.996 4 fl096 1 f te,W3: .1R 1 s 

101



illard 
FOODSERIIICE 

Jim Stilwell, Food Service Director 
jdstilwell@mpsomaha.org Momclair Elementary 

04 - 08 Custodian's Week 
07 

	

Burger King Night and Spirit Shirt Day 

11-15 

	

National Library Week 

04 
Monday 

BREAKFAST 
Pancakes and 

	

Egg 

	

Breakfast 
Sausage Links 

	

Sandwich 

	

Sausage Pizza 
w/ Juice or Fruit 

	

w/ Juice or Fruit 

	

w/ Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH 
Todaysfe~Nle: TodaysfatNre: TodaysFeaNre: TodaysFesN2~ 

Tony's "" 

	

Breaded Pork 

	

Beef ~ Bean 

	

Cheesy 
Brand Pizza 

	

Sandwich 

	

Burrito 

	

Bread 

CHICKEN NUGGETS and BBQ Dipping Sauce 
Deli Sandwiches 

	

Deli Sandwiches 

	

Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

	

Entree Salads 

	

Entree Salads 
FesNnb Side: 

	

F~hired Side: 

Mixed Veggies 

	

TaterTots 

Monday 
BREAKFAST 

Pancakes and 
Sausage Links 

Juice or Fruit 
LUNCH 

05 
Tuesday Wednesday Thursday 

BREAKFAST 

LUNCH 

" .leArM"retvMltrrvrllrNrYeMrYtMe,W,TIrrrlrv 7 

BREAKFAST 

	

~ 3 

	

BREAKFAST 

	

14 

	

BREAKFAST 

	

15 BAST 
Egg 

Sandwich 
Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH 
TodaysFeaWle TodaysFeaNre: 

Chicken Patty 

	

Sloppy Joe 
Sandwich Sandwich 

Deli Sandwiches 

	

Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

	

Entree Salads 
Feioiled Sde: 

	

FmOilad Side: 

Mixed Veggies 

	

Tater Tots 

Expanded BrealdaSt 
tlptien5 Awai~ble 

In addition to our featured breakfast entree, 
whole-grain cereals, b~els, pasterles, 

breakfast bars and muffins may be available. 
Sekcflons and AxaalbKyr Charge Oally 

06 

LUNCH 

FelhirslSlde: 

Green Peas 

Breakfast 

	

French Toast 8! 
Sausage Pizza 

	

Sausage Links 
Juice or Fruit 

	

Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH 
Todays Feia/2: 

BREAKFAST o~ 

Todays FesNre: 

Beef Hotdog 

	

Baked Pretzel 
on a Bun 

	

with Cheese 
" le.VM"r`vMltr rvrllrNr YeMrv tlremh Tlerrarv 

NACHO CHIPS and CHEESE SAUCE 
Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

FesOUrad 9de: 

Green Peas 

~ARAMARK 

BREAKFAST 

All lunches include a choice 
of milk and selectans from 
the fruR and vegetable cart 

os 
Friday 
BREAKFAST 

French Toast & 

	

Cheese 
Sausage Links 

	

Omelet 
w/ Juice or Fruit 

	

w/ Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH LUNCH 
Todays Fmhi1C 

Italian 
Lasagna 

Every Friday, 
each lunch is 
served with a 

free snack 

Deli Sandwiches Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

	

Entree Salads 
fm6irad Slde: 

	

F~Wrad Slde: 

Glazed Can-ots 

	

Tossed Salad 

LUNCH 
TodaysleaWre: 

Every Friday, 
each lurxh is 
served with a 

free snack 

Cheese 
Omelet 

Juice or Fruit 
LUNCH 

Turkey and 
Noodles 

Deli Sandwiches 

	

Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

	

Entree Salads 
Fea6ured Slde: 

	

Fe3aired Slde: 

Glazed Carrots 

	

Green Beans 

nYaiia~ie ~reryday~ 
Sandwiches arS $~~ 

VYe are pleased to offer an assortment 
of entree salads and deli-sty4e sandwiches. 
Protein and vegetarian options available. 

Sslsctions and Availibitr Charge Daih 

102



Middle School Summary 
Total Average Daily Sales 

Total Average Daily A la Carte Sales 

Total Participation 

Summary 

Budget 101 .Th 

$� ,soo 
$� ,zso 
$� ,ooo 
$10,750 

$,o,soo 
$10,250 
$10,000 

$s,7so 
$s,soo 

____ sly_______ 
_ 

	

_~ 

	

- .. . 

AUG Ot 

	

SBPI' 04 

	

OCI' 04 

	

NOV 01 

	

DBC 01 

	

JAN as 

	

PEB QS 

	

MAR QS 

	

APR M 

	

MAY OS 

	

YTD 

r Average Daily Sales 

	

-Prior Year Trend 

	

-Forecast 

Budget 97.9'k 

AUG 00 

	

SEPI' 04 

	

OCr 0 " 

	

NOV 04 

	

DBC 04 

	

JAN OS 

	

PBB Q5 

	

MAR OS 

	

APR QS 

	

MAY OS 

	

YTD 

Average Daily Sales 

	

-Prior Year Trend 

	

-Forecast 

AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY YTD 
Current 127.00% 145.14% 1 .68% 138.23% 134.2896 137.40% 134.5596 137.90% 0.00% 0.00% 134.68% 

PY Variance 

	

368 

	

14.80 

	

10.38 

	

14.98 

	

13.23 

	

8.48 

	

251 

	

4.76 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

5.66 

Total Average Daily Sales per Student 
AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY YTD 

Current S 234 5 266 S 255 S 252 $ 245 S 251 $ 245 S 251 S - S - S 252 

PY Variance 

	

0.14 

	

0.35 

	

0.26 

	

0.34 

	

0.30 

	

0.22 

	

0.10 

	

0.14 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.23 

103



Middle School Summary 
Total Average Daily Lunch Count 

Total Average Daily Breakfast Count 

Summa ry 

Budgd 102.0°k 

AUG 04 

	

SEPr 04 

	

OCC OS 

	

NOV 04 

	

DEC 04 

	

JAN QS 

	

FEB OS 

	

MAR OS 

	

APR OS 

	

MAY OS 

	

YTD 

Average Lunch Count 

	

-Prior Year Trend 

	

-Forecast 

Budget 131.6% 

22s 
200 
~s ~4~ 1 ~ 

	

169 

as 
~ 

	

ias 
~ 

AUG 00 

	

SEPC Ot 

	

OCT OS 

	

NOV 04 

	

DEC 04 

	

JAN OS 

	

1TEB U6 

	

MAR a5 

	

APR QS 

	

MAY a5 

	

YTD 

if Average Breakfast Count 

	

-Prior Year Trend 

	

-Forecast 

Lunch Participation 
AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR AAAY YTD 

Current T324% 78.96% 74A2% T3.~% x.82% 71.74% 68.53% 68.6096 0.00% 80096 7283% 

PY Variance 

	

6.B6 

	

18.01 

	

1x49 

	

14.82 

	

1x24 

	

1202 

	

(2.56) 

	

(840) 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

7.31 

Breakfast_ Participation 
AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY YTD 

current 87996 877% ae3% 839% ass% aa3% 3.39% as3% aoo% aoo% ass% 

PY Variance 

	

o.ao 

	

an 

	

863 

	

a~ 

	

ass 

	

3.83 

	

3.3s 

	

as3 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

2.71 

Diacussbn and Adbn Plan Date lmpad (S) 

104



Millard Public Schools 

Hi h Sthool Total 

ACTION PLAN: 

Ke YeaMo-Dale Stets 
.r 

Fit~_~fh .r. .a~~c~ 

1 c c 1 

23 .37 45 .4% 15.3% S a",sw.Te 

, . . 1 . 

&ealelM Lund, EquAabnY ~Fiour" R"duW 
73 228 155 551 9 040 25 .31 

T"!IM""1 Ibura RadudJy 
932 735 39,916 23 .37 

PRORT/(LOSS) 
STATEMENT S 

4n! 
PerUlel 

hrwnt 
"13"W S 

On" 
HrMW 

hronl 
"13"10 

009.03 Cat ' 
~" 

Sales llllllll~ 1 11 llll~ llllllll~ 1 1 lllllll 
009.10V Sales ~a 1 r . u ~ 111 11' . 

010.098reakfast Sales ~~ 1 1- . ~~ 1 r. 

010.13 Brcukfast AIa CaAe 1 ~ 1 1 a .1 . " :1 1 ~ llllll)~ 
010.14 Breaklaa1 Adt 1 1 " 1 11 1 ' ®: l0 1 11 ®1 ' 

010.15 Wtah Sales :1 1 : : 1 1 1 ' 
~ 

1 1 

11 : e AI llllll~ . . . ;" c 1 1111111 
11 " 

lllll~
l . 1v r . " 1 :111 1v ®1 

n " . 
' .i-1f[: - 'k ~Ic:l 

1 1 ~ :, " , ~llllllllll, ~L~ " 11 ~~. lllllllllllllll.illlllllli 
_ 

11'' 

1 I w . 

i_ : 'x, 

.~~ 

1 1 : ~~ tl 1 Ij. ' 

- 

llllllllllllll,llllllllll, 1 y . 

" ~ :< . ' 

Abaaled Sa13S 3"81548 0.02 1 : llllllll~ 1 1 llllli 

1 ' ~ J~ ~~~1~~ 

1' 1 . 

~ 

llllll~ 11 1 '.~ 1v 

1~ Ic r : : ~. ~_" . . 1 . l~ Y ;,: I ~ .: :: v l~l 

121 " . " : : 

1 " 1 . : . .. :, t� ,, 

"1 " 1 

.~~ 

~.®1 
lllll~~ 1 v 

1 .1 

" -, 

1 ' . 
llllll~ 

.®'

. 
~~©' 

1 v 

llllllll~lllllli '~w' 
llllllll~~ 

"1' 1 ~~ 1 1 . .®.' W l lc 

AlocatedFOOD illllll "Ttf~11 111 11; .~ 11 !!:7 
TOTAL FOOD COST ~ l~ 

~~1 ~1 
lll~ lllllll 

301.OO Salaries 3 I~ 10 ' l~ ~ 1 1 ~ . 

302.00 P rd lments llllllllllll~ lllllll~ 1 1 lllllllllllll~ llllllll~ 1 1'' 

30305 Paid Vacatim 8 Hd ~ ~ 1 1 ~ ~ 1 1 

304.00 P ral Taxes ~ ~ 1 1 lllllllllllllll~ lllllllllll~ 1 1' 

305.OD Olher P rd Casts a le ' 1 ' l~lllllllllllllll lllllllll~ 1 1 . 

Abaated Aramerk 1 ~, � 1 1 - ~. .. , !'."'A'!ilC~ 1 1 ~ ~. 

70TAL ARAMAPo( LAB 1 1' ;. llllll 1 1 llllll~' 
30275C4a4Labor i ..l :" ~~ 1 .c '1 ~IIIIE 

AIOCetBdCYat ' llc ~ r; ;;, 11 

" :W111.'7 ~tl~~ 
" :Iw " 

11 " ' . :: .p :£3 : llll 
i~~~~ 

1 1 . ~. , lil ~ 
~mlllmlm 

1 1. 

©+ 1 111 X11 .®1 111 11" 

~" / ~g ~~~~~ 

R1LA:iliL: .~~t"7:.Fit :'d"Ila"lllllllllll~llllllllll, 
~a 11' . 

11' . 

®1 

~ 

111 
111 

11' . 
11' . 

1 . :" :~ ' 
< 1 " 1' ., 

:<:~ 

:~- lllllllllllll-ll,lllllllli 
lllllllllllllilllllllllll, 

1-11 1 

1 

'.~ 
11".~_~ 
h..llllllllllllllll'llllllll~ 

111 ®1 
11' . 
11~ . 

i ' " 1 111 1 1 . ®"1 1 11 1 1' 

_. 1 :, :rc :1 llllllll~ 1 11 1 . lllllllll~ 1 11 1 1' . 

'11 :1 II 1 . .
.~ 11 ®1 

," " . " : ", : .i , , ~~ 1 1' . ~a 1 1' . 
2111 n 

:,'1 

_ ; : 

:, 

" . ", 1 " '. l 
%' 1 . "og~' 

:®:: ~t 

."~~-LLl~~~~ 
et"]Rga ;,.l 
~ 

1 O 

~~~~ 

~L S. 

I'illlllllllllll,llllllll~liiil~i~llllllllllllll,~ 

t":.R:."'.~S4J 
~N!d" 
~~/ 

"IESf 

11' 
1 1 : 

lllllll~ 

®1' 

~~ 
t"r+7 

11' . 

Alocated Caem'ss' _ lll~ ~ ~:~' « ' ~ llllli 
TOTAL ENTpRE~9 " C11- 1 : : i 1 

TOTAL DIRECTCOST C~llllll~~ll~lllllll~® 
101.00 M Fee lllll~ 1 1' It~1~ ~ 1 1' llllll 
TOTAL PROGRAM COST l~ llllll~ lll~ ll~~ lllllll~ llllm 
g1WiEfRPEHOD 
(SUBSIDY)/TERRA (5,380.14) 0. -1 .2% 94,1g0.78 410 52% 

105



High School Summary 
Total Average Dailv Sales 

Total Average Dailv A la Carte Sales 

Sales Summary 
Budget ss.s% 

g16,ICi6 
515,273 

AUG 03 

	

SEPI' 04 

	

OCT 01 

	

NOV 04 

	

DEC 04 

	

JAN QS 

	

FEB OS 

	

MAR QS 

	

APR OS 

	

MAY OS 

	

YTD 

Current Year 

	

-Prior Year Trend 

	

- Forecast 

Budget 98.5% 

Current Year 

	

- Prior Year Trend 

	

- Forecast 

Total Participatior 
AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY YTD 

Cum3nt 143.55% 142.86% 138.99% 135.16% 132.99% 13728% 136.83% 139.73% 0.00% 0 .00°k 13826% 

rr vaNance 

	

13.59 

	

(2.30) 

	

(3.71) 

	

2.49 

	

7.16 

	

(329) 

	

(4.26) 

	

(1 .02) 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

1 .43 

Total Average Daily Sales per Student 
AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY YTD 

Cum3nt $ 2.80 S 2 .81 $ 2 .73 $ 2 .65 S 2 .60 $ 2.70 $ 2 .67 $ 2 .73 $ - $ - $ 2 .71 

Pr var~anca 

	

0.51 

	

023 

	

0.19 

	

029 

	

0.35 

	

0.16 

	

(0.03) 

	

0.05 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.19 

Discussion and Action Plan 

	

Date 

	

Im 

	

ct $ 

106



High School Summary 
Total Average Daily Lunch Count 

Total Average Daily Breakfast Count 

Meal Summairy 
Budget 

	

ss.7 i° 

_ . 
z,s~s ~~rrr ~~ 

z ~ z,sz~ 

AUG 00 

	

SEPI' 04 

	

OLT 00 

	

NOV 00 

	

DEC Oi 

	

JAN OS 

	

FEB RS 

	

MAR QS 

	

APR 06 

	

MAY OS 

	

YTD 

t+ Current Year 

	

- Prior Year Trend 

	

-Forecast 

Budget #Dlvro! 

aoo 

50 

AUG M 

	

SEPI' 04 

	

OCI' Od 

	

NOV OJ 

	

DEC 04 

	

JAN OS 

	

PEB OS 

	

MAR OS 

	

APR OS MAY QS 

	

YTD 

Current Year 

	

-Prior Year Trend 

	

- Forecast Bar 

Lunch Participatior 
AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY YTD 

Current 43.56% 45.95% 43 .73°k 42.52°k 41 .69°.6 44 .81% 4326% 44.35% OAO°k OAO°~ 43.77% 

PY Varance 

	

26 .13 

	

24.89 

	

22.78 

	

23.27 

	

22.91 

	

19.90 

	

(1 .44) 

	

0.41 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

13.35 

Breakfast Participation 
AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY YTD 

Cuner>t OAO% 0.00°k 0 .00°k 0 .00°k 0.00% 0.00% 0.00°k 0.00% 0.00% OAO°~ OAO°~ 

PY Variance 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

	

0.00 

Discussion and Action Plan Date 

	

- 

	

Impact (~) 

107



Dr. Ken Fossen 
Associate Superintendent for Business Affairs 
Millard Public Schools 
5606 South 147 Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 

Dear Dr. Fossen, 

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the recommendations of the Special Board 
Committee on Food Service prior to a scheduled Board vote. Below summarizes my thoughts 
on their recommendations. 

As a whole, I think they did a very good job. It is a proactive response to childhood obesity 
and foreseeable legislation that would eventually require these changes. It 

	

also sets a model 
for other Districts to follow. Any District concerned about students eating well 

	

-based meals 
need only look to Millard for guidance. It fits well within the District's overall goal of 
World-Class . 

Board Ad Hoc Committee Recommendation s 

Elementary 
1. 

	

All elementary schools will continue to utilize the self -service fruit and vegetable 
carts. Students will be allowed to go back to the carts for additional items. 
The ability to allow students to choose their own fruit and vegetables will i 

	

ncrease the cost of 
sales (food and direct) . It may also slow the lines until the students and the building's staff 
become accustomed to the change . 

2. 

	

Students will be allowed to purchase a second entree item at a reduced cost . 
Currently the POS system is s et-up for a one item scan . This is the simplest setting - 
engineered for a quick tabulation of just a meal (or a second meal). With a la carte 
options now available for the elementary students, the process of tabulating meal and 
any subsequent a la carte sales will result in additional steps for the cashier. It is to be 
expected that the time per student may increase as much as 3 seconds. We would 
market these double entree meals as Maxx -ItT"' meals. 1 would like clarification as to 
whether or not this allows the sale of other a la carte items (within the 30% rule and 
only if they purchased a meal). As we have talked, Millard is the only District for 
which 1 have worked where there is no snack a la carte program in place for the 
elementaries . We are mis sing sales opportunities and this would help those 
students/families who feel a "dessert" item is appropriate at every meal . 

Regarding the "Central Middle School Model", o ur working definition contains four main 
aspects : 

1 . 

	

The production system is fundament ally changed. The idea that certain entrees be only 
being comboed with certain side items is replaced with a system that allows all entrees 
to be comboed with all - including an expanded selection of - side items. This 
encourages student satisfaction with a meal program, but adds slightly to the food cost 

108



of the building . The student is freer to choose side items (increased satisfaction) and 
subsequently chooses all their side items (increased cost) . 

2 . 

	

These changes were born from the second aspect of the M odel . At CMS, the Principal insists 
that the students purchase a meal before they are allowed to purchase a la carte snack items. 
We created the first aspect to make this requirement "more tolerable" . 

3 . 

	

Thirdly, all snack a la carte items must have no more than 30°l0 of their calories derived from 
fat . 

4 . 

	

The environment (including merchandising and marketing) was changed to incorporate the 
school's mascot and colors. CMS was vandalized during November 2004 . We had to redo 
the decor anyway . Using the CMS's ex fisting themes, we hoped to return the ownership of the 
cafeteria from the vandals and back to CMS's students . 

Middle School 
1 . The Central Middle School pilot that allows choices in packaging a reimbursable meal 

will be utilized in all middle schools . 
Using the definition above, I would ask for clarification that only #1 is to be applied to the 
remaining Middle Schools. This would require an equipment investment of around $5,000 per 
building . NMS will need more while the others slightly less. If #2 is to 

	

be required, expect a level 
of student upheaval . See my notes regarding #3 below in General Recommendations . 
2. Students will be allowed to purchase a second entree item at a reduced cost. 
There won't be a problem with this one - they are already available . Foodservice and the 
Business Office can work out the formula . 

High School 
1 . 

	

High schools will utilize the options in the Central Middle School pilot that allows for 
choices in packaging a reimbursable meal. 

See my notes regarding this recommendation under 

	

the Middle Schools . The differences being the 
equipment investment could be as high as $15,000 at WHS and NHS . I think SHS will be ok . As 
far as #2 goes, it would be nearly impossible to successfully implement. First of all, the students 
would simply boycott the program. Secondly, measures would have to be put in place to 
determine whether or not a student in the c -store had purchased a meal . 
2. Students who purchase a reimbursable meal will be allowed options to purchase some 

a la carte items at a reduc ed price . 
Again, there won't be a problem with this one - they are already available . 

General Recommendations 
1 . Beginning with the 2005 -2006 school year, all snacks in the high school convenience 

stores and all snack vending machines will have no more than 30% of calories derived 
from fat. 

I'm assuming that the committee also meant to include the Middle Schools in this 
recommendation . If not, I question the logic of recommending this rule for the High Schools and 
not the Middle Schools. When I heard of the 

	

recommendation, I walked through the c -store at 
SHS and realized that we were going to have to switch out nearly 80°Io of the snack products . We 
should expect some resistance and a decrease in a la carte sales . A la carte sales in the secondaries 
account for 31 °lo of the department's total sales. Although, over time these sales will come back, 
but the short-term (2-4 years) effect of this recommendation is a decrease in revenue. 

109



2. The food service program should become self sufficient over time and cover all 

	

direct 
and indirect costs for the program 

I have included a spreadsheet for playing "what -if ' scenarios regarding this request. 

In summary, the above changes will require one -tithe capital investments . 

	

It would also 
require a continued tolerance for increased costs associated with the meals. We should expect 
lower sales as a result of the increased nutritional value of the a la carte program. 

Please let the know if I can help you in any other way. As always, your support of 
ARAMARK and Millard Food S ervice is greatly appreciated . 

Jim Stilwell 
ARAMARK 
Millard Public Schools 

110



Dear Montclair Elementary Parents, 
Beginning on April 4 tn, Millard Food Service will be expanding its services at your 
child(ren)'s school . This is an elementary pilot project that will be unique and only 
available to Montclair Elementary School . Th e test period will run until the end of 
the school year . What we learn during this testing period will help determine how 
our service looks and what we offer in all elementary buildings next school year. 
A similar process proved successful at Central Midd 

	

le School . CMS was chosen as 
pilot for improvements at the secondary level . Those successful improvements are 
now going to be implemented in all Middle Schools next year . 

We hope you view these improvements favorably . They came from the requests 
we received at PTO meetings and other communication with elementary parents . 
Afterward, we will offer you the ability to fill out a survey and report back to us on 
what you liked about the changes and what you did not . 
The table below summaries the major improve 

	

ments that we will be offering only 
to Montclair Elementary for the remainder of the year : 

Improvements Reasoning and Evaluation 
1. Students will no longer be required to " a»ldren are no diffe~t from adults. It is difficult to 

sign-up for their lunch choice in the me~n~ 
hat yo° n'igr't be hungry for prior to the 

1~ Illorlllng " Many elementary buildings bring classes down to the 
cafaaia in the orda~ of what aitr~e they chose for 
lunch. This doesn't ideally allow the students to sit 
with whomeverthey wish . 

" Food service has always had to make additional ent~es 
anyway to cove the students that miss the sign -up 
period or change their minds before lunch . 

" Although m~hods have beat put into place at 
Montclair and other elementary buildings to help 
monitor student choices, food service feels that the time 
spent by teaches and the Montclair staff administering 
this process would be biter spent in other endeavors . 

Evaluation: 
" Weretherenut outsofparticularitems? 
" Ih i 

111



After careful consideration, we have determined that the a la carte options will 
only apply to grades 1 -5 . We will also require kindergarten and preschool 

Improvements Reasonin~and Evaluation 
2. A variety Of entr ee Salads and dell " om' ultimate goal is to wntinually increase student 

sandwiches are available everyday . satisfaction with our meals . By offering a variety of 
sandwiches and a variety of entrae sandwiches, we will 

Choices of Ham, Turke Y , Chicken and Ve g etarian better serve the particular tastes of the students . 
Chef Salads along with Ham, Turkey, Deli, (geese . We will biter be able to me et the requests of students 
and PBBtI Sandwiches may be available . Options with special dietary needs (i .e. vegetarian and religious 
are to be based upon availability and student specific) . 
desires . Evaluation : 

" Wert; there run outs of particular items? 
" Was there enough demand to justify all the choices? 
" Did cost of o ions increase? 

3. One daily option will run Monday " in a multi~errtr8e menu, it is difficult at best to 

through Thursday . d~emune the right mix of options for students . Many 
times their two favorites are being offered on the same 
day. Consequartly, we receive suggestions to rearrange 
the menu mix. Now, we have made the top requested 
items available foran extended time period. 

Evaluation : 
" W~ there run outs of particular items? 
" Did the students consistently only select the repeated 

entr+~e? 
4. A la Carte selections are now " District-wide, we serve quite a few "double lunches". 

available . Before now, the only way to add items to the lunch was 
to purchase a complete second lunch. We have noticed 
that what most of the students really wanted was only a 

See "A la Carte Guidelines and Parental Request second entree. We now have extra errtr+~es available at 

Form" on the next page . a reduced cost so that families do not have to purdrase a 
complete second meal . 

" We have also received feedback from families 
requesting a daily dessert or `Snack" type item to be 
available to their son/daughter. We will offer this 
service Monday through Thursday. For all students, we 
will provide this snack flee of charge every Friday. Alt 
snacks will meet the same strict nutritional 
requirements for fat content as our lu nches do. 

Evaluation: 
" Ihd we adequately administer parental request for a la 

carte purchases? 
" Was there enough demand to justify the a la carte 

offerin s? 
5. Improved monthly menu available " we hope to offer a convenient m aru in a monthly 

with hot breakfast option everyday. format' 
" To help with mid-morning hunger and thus lowering 

trips to the nurse's office, we hope to encourage 
stronger participation in the school breakfast program. 

Evaluation : 
" Did participation in breakfast increase? 

112



students to sign -up for lunch in the mornings. 

	

A 

	

hia 

	

in ,there will be no 
hange in the nrecchool and kindergarten procedurec_ 

	

, 

Next Friday, you will receive the new menu for April . The food service program 
will be administering the program changes. If you have any questions, please do 
not call the Principal's office . Feel free to c ontact me directly with any questions 
regarding the upcoming changes in Montclair's food service program . 

As always, your support of Millard Public Schools is greatly appreciated . 

Sincerely, 
Jim Stilwell, Food Service Director 
402-691 -1435 
jdstiIweIICa~m~s omaha .or4 

Elementary A la Carte Guidelines 
Important information for parents at Montclair Elementary School 

Beginning April 4 cn, we will begin offering a la carte options in addition to the 
typical school lunch . The prices are as follows : 

*A complete listing of snack type items will be available next 
week . However, all snacks will conform to the same nutritional 
requirements in regards to fat content as do our 

	

lunches . 
" 

	

With the exception of milk, no student will be able to purchase a la carte items without 
first purchasing a meal . 

" 

	

Extra fruits and vegetables will remain free of charge on our fruit and vegetable cart. 
Any parent who wishes to block their child from making a la carte purchases may do so 
by either of the following : 

1 . Email the student's and teacher's name to 

	

klsixC~mosomaha .or4 
2. Phone the information to the foodservice office at 691 

	

-1435 
We will update all ex elusions every Friday . 

	

If a student makes a n ~r hase agains 

	

he 
wishes of their parent, their account will be credited the purchase . 

Second Entree $.90 
Second Complete Lunch $1 .60 
Snack Items* $.50 
Milk $.25 

113



Montclair Elementary 
20 

	

Volunteer Luncheon and SAFE Club 
20 

	

Godfather's Pizza Night and Spirit Shirt Day 
26 

	

5th Grade Concert with 4th Grade Strings 
28 

	

Montessori Parent Assoaation Meeting 

Tuesday Wednesday Thursday 

illard 
FOODSERUICE 

Jim Stilwell . Food Service Director 
jdstilwell@mpsomaha.or g 

Monday Tuesday 

Todays Feanire: 

Tony's "" 
Brand Pizza 

F~Nred Side: 

Mixed Veggies 

Monday 

FeaOUred S/de: 

Mixed Veggies 

Todays Feature: 

Crispito 

HAMBURGER and CHEESEBURGER Works Bar 
~ .e..e...r".s. . .re . ....u.er.r..,n.. :r.~...,.nnr. .a... e 

Deli Sandwiches 

	

Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

	

Entree Salads 
rmmred Side: 

TaterTots 

FeaOired Side: 

TaterTots 

Expanded Breai~ast 
~pti+~ns twaitable 

In addition to our featured breakfast entree, 
whole-grain cereals, bagels, pasteries, 

breakfast bars and muffins may be available . 
andAvailiWgf Chnpa Daiy 

Wednesday Thursday 

Todays Fa3012~ 

Mini Corn 
Dogs 

Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

reaNred SJde: 

Green Peas 

reafvred Slde: 

Green Peas 

~'"ARAA4ARK 

Todays Feihire: 

BBQ Rib 
Sandw ich 

Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

F~OVred Side: 

Glazed Carrots 

F~hna1 Side: 

Glazed Carrots 

All lunches include a choice 
of milk and selections fnxn 
the fruit and vegetable cart 

Friday 
BREAKFAST 

Cheese 
Omelet 

w/ Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH 
Todays Fesoire: 

Oven -Fried 
Chicken 

Every Friday, 
each lurch is 
served with a 

free snack 

Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

FmNred Slde: 

Mashed Potatoes 

29 

Friday 

Every Friday, 
each lunch is 
served with a 

free snack 

BREAKFAST 

Cheese 
Omelet 

Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH 
Todd ys FeaOIre: 

Mexican Beef 
Tacos 

Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads 

reaGired Sides: 

Corn and Rice 

A~aita~~e EvBryday~ 
S8~w11~1ei 8~~ $ 

	

~ 
We are pleased to aifer an assortment 

of entree salads and delFstyle sandwiches. 
Protein and vegetarian options available. 

$alactiona and Av~li6ihr Chanpa Daily 

~8 BREAKFAST 19 BREAKFAST 20 BREAKFAST BREAKFAST 

Pancakes and Egg Breakfast French Toast & 
Sausage Links Sandwich Sausage Pizza Sausage Links 

w/ Juice or Fruit w/ Juice or Fruit w/ Juice or Fruit w/ Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH LUNCH LUNCH LUNCH 

BREAKFAST 
Pancakes and 
Sausage Links 

Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH 
Todays FeaNre: 

26 B REAKFAST m BREAKFAST 
Egg Breakfast 

Sandwich Sausage Pizza 
Juice or Fruit Juice or Fruit 

LUNCH LUNCH 
Todays reaGire: Todays FeaNre: 

28 BREAKFAST 
French Toast & 
Sausage Links 

Juice or Fruit 
LUNCH 

Todays faaWre: 

Chicken Patty Sloppy 7oe Beef Hotdog French Bread 
Sandw ich Sandw ich on a Bun Pizza 

~ � "w...r ". r. ..x~ . ...rr~d. r..ea. tM....n rr.. .a.. 
MACARONI and CHEESE 

Deli Sandwiches Deli Sandwiches Deli Sandwiches Deli Sandwiches 
Entree Salads Entree Salads Entree Salads Entree Salads 

114



AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Quarterly Construction Report 

MEETING DATE: Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

General Administration 

TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: 

	

Quarterly Construction Report - A report of the on-going progress 
on significant construction projects (other than bond issue projects) in the District . 

RECOMMENDATION: n/a 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 

IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION : n/a 

TIMELINE: n/a 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General 
Administration) and Ed Rockwell (Gen . Mgr. for Support Services) 

SUPERINTENDE T'S , 
APPROVAL: 

AGENDA SiTMMARY SHEET 

Enclosure I .6 . 
April 4, 2005 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval - Discussion - Information Only 

BACKGROUND: n/a 

OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

115



Description of work: 
Using a site-adapted model of the Rohwer / Wheeler design, the new elementary building is being built to 
accommodate growth in the southwest portion of the district . Of the total change order amount, two 
issues make up 84%, or $69,732: 1) The drive extension to the west, required to meet the developer's 
revised street layout, and 2) A Sarpy County code requirement for special glass at the corridors. The 
remainder, are various code and owner-initiated issues . 

Status o~progress: 
An outstanding team effort was established very early and continues to contribute to the success of this 
project. The contract specified a 60-week construction schedule . At 39 weeks (65% of schedule), the 
project is 93% completed. The quality of completed work to date is outstanding. Target date for 
completion / owner occupancy is May 2°a, contract completion date is July 22nd. Current status : 

" 

	

Building exterior 98% 
" 

	

Paving 82% 
" 

	

Electrical / Mechanical / Plumbing systems (overall) 93% 
" 

	

Painting / Wall Covering 76% 
" 

	

Cabinetry 80% 
" 

	

Floor coverings 50% 

Millard Public Schools Project Management 
Construction Report to the Board of Education 

Board meeting date: Apri14, 2005 For quarter ending: March 31, 2005 

Location : 192"a & Chandler Street ProjectManager: Ed Rockwell 
Project Title: Reeder Elementary Bid award: $6,051,800 
Architect/Engineer : Schemmer Associates Change Orders : 2 $83,015 (1 .3%) 
General Contractor: Hawkins Construction Amended Contract: $6,134,815 

116



2005 Capital Improvement Projects 

Status 3-31-OS 

We have solicited and awarded proposals for architectural, engineering, survey, geo-technical, 
commissioning and construction testing services for the group of projects below, presented to the 
board on December 6, 2005 . Architects and engineers are currently designing and bidding the project. 
The current status of each of the projects is listed below: 

Location 
Architect or 
Engineer Descri "on Bids Due 

Seek 
Board 

Approval 
Abbott LRA Pavin re lacement 8 im rovements A ril 7 A ril 11 
Ackerman E 8~ A Pavin re lacement 8~ im rovements A ril 7 A ril 11 
Harve Oaks DLR Pavin re lacement 8~ im rovements March 24 A ril 4 
Hitchcock DLR Pavin re lacement & im rovements March 24 A ril 4 
Norris TSA Pavin re lacement & im rovements A ril 7 A ril 11 

Central Middle BCDM Retainin wall radin , fence at east arkin Ma 4 Ma 16 

Russell Middle BCDM Remove resilient and re-condition surface at track Ma 4 Ma 16 
West Hi h BCDM Re lace resilient surface and re-stri e track Ma 4 Ma 16 

North Middle BCDM Re-roof Phase III of III March 9 A ril 4 
Sandoz BCDM Re-roof Phase II of II March 9 A ril 4 
Central Middle BCDM Re-roof Phase I March 9 A ril 4 

Cottonwood TSA Re lace hollow-metal door and/or window frames A ril 6 A ril 11 
Hollin Hei hts TSA Re lace hollow-metal door and/or window frames A ril 6 A ril 11 
Neihardt TSA Re lace hollow-metal door and/or window frames A ril 6 A ril 11 
Norris TSA Re lace hollow-metal door and/or window frames A ril 6 A ril 11 
North Middle TSA Re lace hollow-metal door and/or window frames A ril 6 A ril 11 
South Hi h TSA Re lace hollow-metal door and/or window frames A ril 6 A ril 11 

Rockwell Morrisse Mech HVAC s stem re lacements & im rovements Ma 4 Ma 16 

117



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Parent Surveys, Spring 2005 

Meeting Date: 

	

4/4/05 

Department: 

	

Planning, Evaluation & Information Services 

Title and Brief 
Description : 

	

Each year we distribute an Effective Schools survey to a 
random sample of parents . We sent 3,175 surveys this 
year (to approximately 20% of the population). There 
were 1,295 returns, for an overall return rate of 41 % . 
The return rate for elementary parents was 44% and the 
number of secondary was 38% . 

Action Desired : 

	

Approval 

	

Discussion 

	

x 

	

Information Only 

Background : 

	

The parent survey is a part of the Effective School 
battery that is administered to parents, teachers, support 
staff, and students (students in grades 5-12) . The percent 
of parents giving an overall grade of A or B remains very 
high - 92.2%. 

Options/Alternatives 
Considered : N.A. 

Recommendations : 

	

Use item-level results and the overall results for school-
level and district-level planning . Past analyses have 
shown that the "grade" given by parents is a significant 
predictor of school achievement. 

Strategic Plan 
Reference: 

	

Strategic objectives. 

Implications of 
Adoption/Rejection: N.A. 

Timeline : 

	

Begin using results immediately in planning. 

Responsible 
Persons : 

	

John Crawford 

Superintendent's Signature: 

Enclosure I .7 . 
April 4, 2005 

118



Elementary Parent Climate Survey Spring 2005 

My child is treated with respect at school . 

My child likes his or her school . 

The students at my child's school care about each other. 

Students at my child's school respect each others property. 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 263 40.4 40.6 40.6 
A Majority of the Time 331 50.8 51 .1 91 .7 
Some of the Time 52 8.0 8.0 99.7 
Almost Never 2 .3 .3 100.0 
Total 648 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 253 38.9 39.0 39.0 
A Majority of the Time 333 51 .2 51 .4 90.4 
Some of the Time 62 9.5 9.6 100.0 
Total 648 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 487 74.8 74.8 74.8 
A Majority of the Time 147 22.6 22.6 97.4 
Some of the Time 13 2.0 2.0 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 651 100.0 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 488 75.0 75.1 75.1 
A Majority of the Time 147 22.6 22.6 97.7 
Some of the Time 15 2.3 2.3 100:0 
Total 650 99.8 100.0 

Missing System 1 .2 
Total 651 100.0 

119



My child is safe at school . 

I agree with the school rules . 

My child is safe on the way to and from school . 

The rules are followed by the students at this school. 

" Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 294 45.2 45.2 45.2 
A Majority of the Time 331 50.8 50.9 96.2 
Some of the Time 25 3.8 3.8 100.0 
Total 650 99.8 100.0 

Missing System 1 .2 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 501 77.0 77.7 77.7 
A Majority of the Time 124 19.0 19.2 96.9 
Some of the Time 16 2.5 2.5 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 645 99.1 100.0 

Missing System 6 .9 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 472 72.5 72.7 72.7 
A Majority of the Time 158 24.3 24.3 97.1 
Some of the Time 17 2.6 2.6 99.7 
Almost Never 2 .3 .3 100.0 
Total 649 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 651 100.0 

Fr uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 525 80.6 80.9 80.9 
A Majority of the Time 114 17.5 17.6 98.5 
Some of the Time 10 1 .5 1 .5 100.0 
Total 649 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 651 100.0 

120



This school is concerned with safety. 

My child understands the consequences of his or her actions . 

Teachers do a good job of preventing students from misbehaving . 

There are fights at my child's school . 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost Never 516 79.3 81 .4 81 .4 
Some of the Time 94 14.4 14.8 96.2 
A Majority of the Time 12 1 .8 1 .9 98.1 
Almost all of the Time 12 1 .8 1 .9 100.0 
Total 634 97.4 100.0 

Missing System 17 2.6 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 364 55.9 56.4 56.4 
A Majority of the Time 249 38.2 38.6 95.0 
Some of the Time 31 4.8 4.8 99.8 
Almost Never 1 .2 .2 100.0 
Total 645 99.1 100.0 

Missing System 6 .9 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 469 72.0 72.3 72.3 
A Majority of the Time 165 25.3 25.4 97.7 
Some of the Time 15 2.3 2.3 100.0 
Total 649 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre." uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 533 81 .9 82.1 82.1 
A Majority of the Time 99 15.2 15.3 97.4 
Some of the Time 13 2.0 2.0 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 649 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 ,3 
Total 651 100.0 

121



Teachers are fair when dealing with students who misbehave. 

The work assigned to my child challenges him or her. 

I feel that my child is learning from his or her teacher. 

If my child needs extra help, it is offered at this school. 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 422 64.8 65.6 65.6 
A Majority of the Time 165 25.3 25.7 91 .3 
Some of the Time 49 7.5 7.6 98.9 
Almost Never 7 1 .1 1 .1 100.0 
Total 643 98.8 100.0 

Missing System 8 1 .2 
Total 651 100.0 

Frequenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 

_Percent 
Valid Almost All of the Time 475 73.0 73.4 73.4 

A Majority of the Time 144 22.1 22.3 95.7 
Some of the Time 23 3.5 3.6 99.2 
Almost Never 5 .8 .8 100.0 
Total 647 99.4 100.0 

Missing System 4 .6 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 333 51 .2 51.2 51 .2 
A Majority of the Time 251 38.6 38.6 89.8 
Some of the Time 62 9.5 9.5 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 650 99.8 100.0 

Missing System 1 .2 
Total 651 100.0 

Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 347 53.3 54.4 54.4 
A Majority of the Time 242 37.2 37.9 92.3 
Some of the Time 47 7.2 7.4 99.7 
Almost Never 2 .3 .3 100.0 
Total 638 98.0 100.0 

Missing System 13 2.0 
Total 651 100.0 

122



There is sufficient focus on academics in my child's school. 

What my child is learning in school is important . 

I am satisfied with the curriculum at my child's school. 

School is preparing my child to be successful in life. 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 447 68.7 69.3 69.3 
A Majority of the Time 175 26.9 27.1 96.4 
Some of the Time 20 3.1 3.1 99.5 
Almost Never 3 .5 .5 100.0 
Total 645 99.1 100.0 

Missing System 6 .9 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 425 65.3 65.6 65.6 
A Majority of the Time 193 29.6 29.8 95.4 
Some of the Time 24 3.7 3.7 99.1 
Almost Never 6 .9 .9 100.0 
Total 648 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 514 79.0 79.4 79.4 
A Majority of the Time 119 18.3 18.4 97.8 
Some of the Time 12 1 .8 1 .9 99.7 
Almost Never 2 .3 .3 100.0 
Total 647 99.4 100.0 

Missing System 4 .6 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 494 75.9 76.2 76.2 
A Majority of the Time 135 20.7 20.8 97.1 
Some of the Time 14 2.2 2.2 99.2 
Almost Never 5 .8 .8 100.0 
Total 648 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

123



1 am satisfied with the instruction at my child's school . 

Teachers inform me of my child's progress in class . 

If 1 have questions, the staff at this school will answer them . 

Staff at the school keep me well informed . 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 410 63.0 63.3 63.3 
A Majority of the Time 190 29.2 29.3 92.6 
Some of the Time 40 6.1 6.2 98.8 
Almost Never 8 1 .2 1 .2 100.0 
Total 648 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 530 81 .4 81 .8 81 .8 
A Majority of the Time 102 15.7 15.7 97.5 
Some of the Time 14 2.2 2.2 99.7 
Almost Never 2 .3 .3 100.0 
Total 648 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre~~uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 453 69.6 70.3 70.3 
A Majority of the Time 150 23.0 23.3 93.6 
Some of the Time 32 4.9 5.0 98.6 
Almost Never 9 1 .4 1 .4 100.0 
Total 644 98.9 100.0 

Missing System 7 1 .1 
Total 651 100.0 

" Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 430 66.1 66.8 66.8 
A Majority of the Time 173 26.6 26.9 93.6 
Some of the Time 36 5.5 5.6 99.2 
Almost Never 5 .8 .8 100.0 
Total 644 98.9 100.0 

Missing System 7 1 .1 
Total 651 100.0 

124



I am provided opportunities to become involved in the school . 

I think parentlteacher conferences are important . 

If my child is having problems 1 can talk to his or her teacher. 

Teachers at this school want the school to be the best. 

Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 506 77.7 78.3 78.3 
A Majority of the Time 133 20.4 20.6 98.9 
Some of the Time 6 .9 .9 99.8 
Almost Never 1 .2 .2 100.0 
Total 646 99.2 100.0 

Missing System 5 .8 
Total 651 100.0 

Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 568 87.3 87.7 87.7 
A Majority of the Time 63 9.7 9.7 97.4 
Some of the Time 16 2.5 2.5 99.8 
Almost Never 1 .2 .2 100.0 
Total 64$ 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 603 92.6 93.3 93.3 
A Majority of the Time 34 5.2 5.3 98.6 
Some of the Time 8 1 .2 1 .2 99.8 
Almost Never 1 .2 .2 100.0 
Total 646 99.2 100.0 

Missing System 5 .8 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 515 79.1 79.4 79.4 
A Majority of the Time 104 16.0 16.0 95.4 
Some of the Time 27 4.1 4.2 99.5 
Almost Never 3 .5 .5 100.0 
Total 649 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 651 100.0 

125



The principal does a good job . 

When 1 have concerns about my child, I can get them resolved . 

The principal cares about the school . 

I can talk with the principal when I have suggestions, questions or concerns . 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 471 72.4 73.3 73.3 
A Majority of the Time 121 18.6 18.8 92.1 
Some of the Time 36 5.5 5.6 97.7 
Almost Never 15 2.3 2.3 100.0 
Total 643 98.8 100.0 

Missing System 8 1 .2 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 546 83.9 84.5 84.5 
A Majority of the Time 80 12.3 12.4 96.9 
Some of the Time 16 2.5 2.5 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 646 99.2 100.0 

Missing System 5 .8 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 465 71 .4 72.1 72.1 
A Majority of the Time 142 21 .8 22.0 94.1 
Some of the Time 31 4.8 4.8 98.9 
Almost Never 7 1 .1 1 .1 100.0 
Total 645 99.1 100.0 

Missing System 6 .9 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost All of the Time 477 73.3 74.0 74.0 
A Majority of the Time 137 21 .0 21 .2 95.2 
Some of the Time 25 3.8 3.9 99.1 
Almost Never 6 .9 .9 100.0 
Total 645 99.1 100.0 

Missing System 6 .9 
Total 651 100.0 

126



I would like to see stricter rules at my child's school . 

My child reads well for the grade he or she is in . 

My child does math problems well for the grade he or she is in . 

My child writes well for the grade he or she is in . 

1 am satisfied with the quality of the reports 1 receive from the school concerning my child's progress . 

Frequenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Yes 587 90.2 91 .3 91 .3 
No 56 8.6 8.7 100.0 
Total 643 98.8 100.0 

Missing System 8 1 .2 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Yes 539 82.8 83.6 83.6 
No 106 16.3 16.4 100.0 
Total 645 99.1 100.0 

Missing System 6 .9 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Yes 578 88.8 89.1 89.1 
No 71 10.9 10.9 100.0 
Total 649 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Yes 563 86.5 86.9 86.9 
No 85 13.1 13 .1 100.0 
Total 648 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid No 550 84.5 86.3 86.3 
Yes 87 13.4 13.7 100.0 
Total 637 97.8 100.0 

Missing System 14 2.2 
Total 651 100.0 

127



If I were to assign a letter grade to my child's school, it would be: 

Frv " uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid A 468 71 .9 72.2 72.2 
B 147 22.6 22.7 94.9 
C 25 3.8 3.9 98.8 

5 .8 .8 99.5 
F 3 .5 .5 100.0 
Total 648 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 651 100.0 

128



Secondary Parent Climate Survey Spring 2005 
My child is treated with respect at school . 

My child likes his or her school. 

The students at my child's school care about each other. 

Students at my child's school respect each other's property. 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 126 19.6 19.7 19.7 
A Majority of the Time 326 50.6 50.9 70.5 
Some of the Time 162 25.2 25.3 95.8 
Almost Never 27 4.2 4.2 100.0 
Total 641 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 644 100.0 

Free" uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 127 19.7 20.1 20.1 
A Majority of the Time 308 47.8 48.7 68.7 
Some of the Time 182 28.3 28.8 97.5 
Almost Never 16 2.5 2.5 100.0 
Total 633 98.3 100.0 

Missing System 11 1 .7 
Total 644 100.0 

Fr uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 344 53.4 53.7 53.7 
A Majority of the Time 229 35.6 35.7 89.4 
Some of the Time 59 9.2 9.2 98.6 
Almost Never 9 1 .4 1 .4 100.0 
Total 641 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 335 52.0 52.5 52.5 
A Majority of the Time 247 38.4 38.7 91 .2 
Some of the Time 53 8.2 8.3 99.5 
Almost Never 3 .5 .5 100.0 
Total 638 99.1 100.0 

Missing System 6 .g 
Total 644 100.0 

129



My child is safe at school . 

I agree with the school's rules . 

My child is safe on the way to and from school. 

The rules are followed by the students at this school . 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 166 25.8 26.1 26.1 
A Majority of the Time 368 57.1 58.0 84.1 
Some of the Time 96 14.9 15.1 99.2 
Almost Never 5 .8 .8 100.0 
Total 635 98.6 100.0 

Missing System 9 1 .4 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 438 68.0 68.5 68.5 
A Majority of the Time 186 28.9 29.1 97.7 
Some of the Time 14 2.2 2.2 99.8 
Almost Never 1 .2 .2 100.0 
Total 639 99.2 100.0 

Missing System 5 ,g 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 375 58.2 58.5 58.5 
A Majority of the Time 221 34.3 34.5 93.0 
Some of the Time 41 6.4 6.4 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 641 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 425 66.0 66.2 66.2 
A Majority of the Time 197 30.6 30.7 96.9 
Some of the Time 19 3.0 3.0 99.8 
Almost Never 1 .2 .2 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

130



This school is concerned with safety. 

My child understands the consequences of his or her actions. 

Teachers do a good job of preventing students from misbehaving. 

There are fights at my child's school . 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost Never 341 53.0 53.9 53.9 
Some of the Time 260 40.4 41 .1 94.9 
Majority of the Time 17 2.6 2.7 97.6 
Almost all of the Time 15 2.3 2.4 100.0 
Total 633 98.3 100.0 

Missing System 11 1 .7 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 241 37.4 37.8 37.8 
A Majority of the Time 302 46.9 47.3 85.1 
Some of the Time 89 13.8 13.9 99.1 
Almost Never 6 .9 .9 100.0 
Total 638 99.1 100.0 

Missing System 6 .9 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 489 75.9 76.2 76.2 
A Majority of the Time 140 21 .7 21 .8 98.0 
Some of the Time 11 1 .7 1 .7 99.7 
Almost Never 2 .3 .3 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 433 67.2 67.6 67.6 
A Majority of the Time 169 26.2 26.4 93.9 
Some of the Time 36 5.6 5.6 99.5 
Almost Never 3 .5 .5 100.0 
Total 641 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 644 100.0 

131



Teachers are fair when dealing with students who misbehave . 

There is trouble at my child's school . 

The work assigned to my child challenges him or her. 

I feel that my child is learning from his or her teacher. 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 310 48.1 48.3 48.3 
A Majority of the Time 269 41 .8 41 .9 90.2 
Some of the Time 59 9.2 9.2 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 252 39.1 39.3 39.3 
A Majority of the Time 299 46.4 46.6 85.8 
Some of the Time 79 12.3 12.3 98.1 
Almost Never 12 1 .9 1 .9 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost Never 389 60.4 60.9 60.9 
Some of the Time 227 35.2 35.5 96.4 
Majority of the Time 14 2.2 2.2 98.6 
Almost all of the Time 9 1 .4 1 .4 100.0 
Total 639 99.2 100.0 

Missing System 5 .8 
Total 644 100.0 

" Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 211 32.8 33.2 33.2 
A Majority of the Time 309 48.0 48.7 81 .9 
Some of the Time 107 16.6 16.9 98.7 
Almost Never 8 1 .2 1 .3 100.0 
Total 635 98.6 100.0 

Missing System 9 1 .4 
Total 644 100.0 

132



If my child needs extra help, it is offered at this school . 

There are sufficient academic opportunities available in my child's school . 

What my child is learning in school is important . 

I am satisfied with the curriculum at my child's school. 

Fr uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 361 56.1 56.2 56.2 
A Majority of the Time 228 35.4 35.5 91 .7 
Some of the Time 49 7.6 7.6 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 379 58.9 59.0 59.0 
A Majority of the Time 232 36.0 36.1 95.2 
Some of the Time 30 4.7 4.7 99.8 
Almost Never 1 .2 .2 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 390 60.6 60.7 60.7 
A Majority of the Time 203 31 .5 31 .6 92.2 
Some of the Time 41 6.4 6.4 98.6 
Almost Never 9 1 .4 1 .4 100.0 
Total 643 99.8 100.0 

Missing System 1 .2 
Total 644 100.0 

Free" uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 356 55.3 55.4 55.4
___ 

A Majority of the Time 214 33.2 33.3 88.6 
Some of the Time 56 8.7 8.7 97.4 
Almost Never 17 2.6 2.6 100.0 
Total 643 99.8 100.0 

Missing System 1 .2 
Total 644 100.0 

133



School is preparing my child to be successful in life. 

I am satisfied with the instruction at my child's school. 

Teachers inform me of my child's progress in class . 

If I have questions, the staff at this school will answer them. 

Fr uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 432 67.1 67.3 67.3 
A Majority of the Time 169 26.2 26.3 93.6 
Some of the Time 34 5.3 5.3 98.9 
Almost Never 7 1 .1 1 .1 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 343 53.3 53.4 53.4 
A Majority of the Time 182 28.3 28.3 81 .8 
Some of the Time 92 14.3 14.3 96.1 
Almost Never 25 3.9 3.9 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 289 44.9 45.2 45.2 
A Majority of the Time 288 44.7 45.0 90.2 
Some of the Time 58 9.0 9.1 99.2 
Almost Never 5 .8 .8 100.0 
Total 640 99.4 100.0 

Missing System 4 .6 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 332 51 .6 52.1 52.1 
A Majority of the Time 237 36.8 37.2 89.3 
Some of the Time 66 10.2 10.4 99.7 
Almost Never 2 .3 .3 100.0 
Total 637 98.9 100.0 

Missing System 7 1.1 
Total 644 100.0 

134



Staff at the school keep me well informed . 

I am provided opportunities to become involved in the school . 

I think parent/teacher conferences are important . 

If my child is having problems I can talk to his or her teacher. 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost ad of the time 446 69.3 69.5 69.5 
A Majority of the Time 154 23.9 24.0 93.5 
Some of the Time 36 5.6 5.6 99.1 
Almost Never 6 .9 .9 100.0 
Total 642 99.7 100.0 

Missing System 2 .3 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 503 78.1 78.7 78.7 
A Majority of the Time 99 15.4 15.5 94.2 
Some of the Time 30 4.7 4.7 98.9 
Almost Never 7 1 .1 1 .1 100.0 
Total 639 99.2 100.0 

Missing System 5 ,g 
Total 644 100.0 

" Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 337 52.3 52.6 52.6 
A Majority of the Time 201 31 .2 31 .4 83.9 
Some of the Time 84 13.0 13.1 97.0 
Almost Never 19 3.0 3.0 100.0 
Total 641 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 291 45.2 45.4 45.4 
A Majority of the Time 237 36.8 37.0 82 .4 
Some of the Time 88 13.7 13.7 96 .1 
Almost Never 25 3.9 3.9 100.0 
Total 641 99.5 100.0 

Missing System 3 .5 
Total 644 100.0 

135



Teachers at this school want the school to be the best. 

The principal and assistant principals do a good job . 

When 1 have concerns about my child, I can get them resolved. 

The principal and assistant principals care about the school . 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 463 71 .9 72.8 72.8 
A Majority of the Time 147 22.8 23.1 95.9 
Some of the Time 23 3.6 3.6 99.5 
Almost Never 3 .5 .5 100.0 
Total 636 98.8 100.0 

Missing System 8 1 .2 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 366 56.8 57.5 57.5 
A Majority of the Time 200 31 .1 31 .4 88.9 
Some of the Time 61 9.5 9.6 98.4 
Almost Never 10 1 .6 1 .6 100.0 
Total 637 98.9 100.0 

Missing System 7 1 .1 
Total 644 100.0 

Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 389 60.4 
_
61.1 61 .1 

A Majority of the Time 199 30.9 31 .2 92.3 
Some of the Time 45 7.0 7.1 99.4 
Almost Never 4 .6 .6 100.0 
Total 637 98.9 100.0 

Missing System 7 1 .1 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost all of the time 386 59.9 60.4 60.4 
A Majority of the Time 211 32.8 33.0 93.4 
Some of the Time 35 5.4 5.5 98.9 
Almost Never 7 1 .1 1 .1 100.0 
Total 639 99.2 100.0 

Missing System 5 .8 
Total 644 100.0 

136



The principal and assistant principals listen to my suggestions, questions or concerns . 

I would like to see stricter rules at my child's school . 

My child reads well for the grade he or she is in . 

My child does math problems well for the grade he or she is in . 

My child writes well for the grade he or she is in . 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Yes 519 80.6 81 .6 81 .( 
No 117 18.2 18.4 100.0 
Total 636 98.8 100.0 

Missing System 8 1 .2 
Total 644 100.0 

Fns: uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Yes 531 82.5 83.8 83.8 
No 103 16.0 16.2 100.0 
Total 634 98.4 100.0 

Missing System 10 1.6 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Yes 546 84.8 85.3 85.3 
No 94 14.6 14.7 100.0 
Total 640 99.4 100.0 

Missing System 4 .6 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid No 484 75.2 76.8 76.8 
Yes 146 22.7 23.2 100.0 
Total 630 97.8 100.0 

Missing System 14 2.2 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Almost alf of the time 353 54.8 56.7 56.7 
A Majority of the Time 184 28.6 29.5 86.2 
Some of the Time 71 11 .0 11 .4 97.6 
Almost Never 15 2.3 2.4 100.0 
Total 623 96.7 100.0 

Missing System 21 3.3 
Total 644 100.0 

137



1 am satisfied with the quality of the reports 1 receive from the school concerning my child's progress . 

if I were to assign a letter grade to my child's school, it would be : 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid A 320 49.7 50.5 50.5 
B 246 38.2 38.8 89.3 
C 52 8.1 8.2 97.5 
D 14 2.2 2.2 99.7 
F 2 .3 .3 100.0 
Total 634 98.4 100.0 

Missing System 10 1 .6 
Total 644 100.0 

Fre uenc Percent Valid Percent 
Cumulative 
Percent 

Valid Yes 562 87.3 87.8 87.8 
No 78 12.1 12.2 100.0 
Total 640 99.4 100.0 

Missing System 4 .6 
Total 644 100 .0 

138



Historical Parent Data Districtwide - What grade would you give your schools? 
(Percent responding A, B, C, D or F) 

v 

139



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

	

Enclosure I .8 . 
April 4, 2005 

AGENDA ITEM: 

	

Legislative Update 

MEETING DATE: Apri14, 2005 

DEPARTMENT: 

	

Office of the Superintendent 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: 

	

This is the 5th Legislative Update for the 99th Legislature. 

ACTION DESIRED: 

	

APPROVAL 

	

DISCUSSION 

	

INFORMATION ONLY XX 

BACKGROUND : 

	

Important Legislation we are tracking : 

" 

	

LB 126 - requires all property to be merged into K-12 districts . This bill is an Education Committee 
priority . The bill was advanced to Select File . It is likely this bill will be debated this week . 

" 

	

LB 129 - is a comprehensive school finance bill . Senator Raikes has indicated that this bill is also a 
priority . He has strong feelings that this legislation needs to be considered . He will likely move this bill 
after 126 is debated. This bill has been designated as an Education Committee priority . This bill is 
currently held in committee. 

" 

	

LB 503 (LB 368 is amended into this bill .) - will increase the rate of contribution to the Nebraska State 
Employees Retirement System for both the employee and employer. The rate is currently 7.25% and 
would move to 7.88% for a period of two years. The district contribution will increase to 8 .03°Io . A 
recent amendment would increase the rate even more to allow for a September implementation instead 
of July . The pending amendment (AM 179) will allow districts to budget for the increase . This bill is 
on Final Reading. There is talk that it will be recalled for a specific amendment that allows an exception 
under the spending limit for these increases . 

" 

	

LB 579 - is a technical clean-up bill and has language that changes items such as transportation, option 
enrollment, and items dealing with early childhood . 

" 

	

LB 627 - is a bill that will require school districts to adopt a policy on bullying . This bill is not yet out 
of committee. 

" 

	

LB 689 - would create the Educational Enhancement Task Force and provide intent to appropriate 10 
million per year starting in 2006-2007 to carry out the recommendations of the task force. We are not 
sure this will benefit our school district as written. This bill is Senator Raikes personal priority . 

We have changed the date for the second luncheon with Millard Senators to May 17. 

STRATEGIC PLAN: 

	

Implemented Strategies and Board Goals 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON : 

SUPERINTENDENT'S APPROVAL : 

BOARD ACTION: 

Angelo Passarelli 

140



NINETY-NINTH LEGISLATURE 
FIRST SESSION 

Revised March 30, 2005 

The following represent bills and constitutional amendments introduced during the 2005 First 
Session of the 99th Legislature that may affect Millard Public Schools or education in general. 
("New" information will be in boldface .) "Hot bills" are shown with a border . Bills that have 
been passed, indefinitely postponed or withdrawn are listed last . 

"Not" hills will be in a "lzu! hu.Y. 
ar :.vwv~~a~Z+: ~a_~a v.ti~~a~a~a~a~ 

LR 1 CA (Schrock) Constitutional amendment to permit the Legislature to authorize 
spending part of the principal of the perpetual funds for the common schools 
(HD: 2/28) (HC) 

MONITOR 

LR 3CA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to terminate term limit provisions for 
members of the Legislature (Referred to Executive Board) (HD: 2/9) (HC) 

LR 4CA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to create the Ethics and Compensation 
Review Commission, change and eliminate compensation provisions for 
employees/members of the Legislative, provide for a legislative code of ethics 
(Referred to Executive Board) (HD: 2/17) (HC) 

LR SCA (Beutler) Constitutional amendment to provide for recall of members of the 
Legislature and repeal term limits for such members (Referred to Executive Board) 
(HD: 2/9) (HC) 

**LR 14CA (Schimek)(Executive Board Priority Bill) Constitutional amendment to 
repeal term limit provisions for members of the Legislature (Referred to Executive 
Board) (HD: 2/9) (HC) 

LR 16CA (Schrock) Constitutional amendment to change term limit provisions for 
members of the Legislature (Referred to Executive Board) (HC) 

Abbreviations Used for Status of Bills 

HC Held in Committee LIV Line Item Veto 
GF General File VO Veto Overridden 
SF Select File W Withdrawn 
FR Final Reading P Passed 
IPP Indefinitely Postponed S Signed 
V Vetoed Senator Priority Bill 
/ /_ Hearing Date ** Committee Priority Bill 
--LB Amended into another bill *** Speaker Priority Bill 
CA Constitutional Amendment LR Legislative Resolution 

141



LR 22CA (Brashear) Constitutional amendment to change distribution of certain 
forfeited or seized money (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HC) 

" 

	

LR 23 (Howard) Urge Congress to fully fund the No Child Left Behind Act 
(HD: 1 /31) (HC) 
SUPPORT 

" 

	

LB 77 (Baker) Change motor vehicle registration fee distribution (HD : 1/18) 
(GF 2/25) 

" 

	

LB 87 (Byars) Change provisions relating to deaf and hard of hearing persons 
(HD: 1/19) (GF : 1/27) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 95 (Janssen) Change school reorganization provisions (HD: 2/28) (HC) 

LR 24CA (Raikes) Constitutional amendment to permit the Legislature to direct fines, 
penalties, and license fees to the perpetual fund for common school purposes 
(HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR 
LB 5 (Thompson) Change qualifications for membership on the State Board of 
Education (HD : 2/7) (HC) 

LB 43 (Redfield) Provide immunity for employers for disclosure of certain 
employment information (HD: 2/23) (HC) 
MONITOR 

MONITOR 
LB 98 (Schimek) Change provisions for special elections by mail (Government 
Affairs) (HD : 1/20/05) (GF : 1/24/05 - AM 57) (SF: 3/1) 

LB 101 (Byars, Connealy) Provide for early intervention services for children with 
autism spectrum disorder (HD : 2/10) (GF : 3/1) 

" 

	

LB 102 (Natural Resources Committee) Relating to storm water drainage, sewer 
system charges and fees (HD: 1/19) (HC) 
OPPOSED 

" 

	

LB 110 (Bourne) Change a liability limitation for certain educational employees as 
prescribed (Referred to Judiciary Committee)(HD : 1/27) (GF 2/3) 
SUPPORT 

*LB 114 (Byars) (Heidemann Priority Bill) Change eye examination provisions for 
kindergarten enrollment (HD : 2/1) (GF : 2/4 - AM247) 
MONITOR 

142



" 

	

*LB 117 (Bourne, Aguilar, Price, et al. a t the request of the Governor) (Stuthman 
Priority Bill) Change penalties for certain drug offences and provisions relating to 
ephedrine, pseudoephedrine, and phenylpropanolamine (Referred to Judiciary 
Committee) (HD : 2/4) (GF : 3/13)) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

**LB 126 (Raikes) (Education Committee Priority Bill) Class I reorganization bill 
similar to LB 1048 (2004) (HD : 1/20/2005) (GF : 1/21/2005 - AM 41) (2/11 : AM41 
withdrawn - AM354 adopted) (SF: 2/22 - AM7018) 
SUPPORT 

" 

	

LB 127 (Cunningham, Burling, Combs, et al) Authorize the reporting of school bus 
safety violations as prescribed (Referred to Transportation Committee) (HD : 2/1) 
(HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

**LB 129 (Education Committee) (Education Committee Priority Bill) 
Comprehensive school finance bill similar to LB 698 (2004) (HD: 1/25) (HC) 
SUPPORT 
LB 141 (Price) Eliminate school budget restrictions relating to allowable reserves 
(HD: 1/25) (HC) 
SUPPORT 

" 

	

LB 144 (Price) Change requirements for modifying information statements under the 
School Employees Retirement Act (Referred to Retirement Committee) (HD : 2/10) 
(GF : 3/2) (SF : 3/21 - AM462) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 145 (Price) Provide for school bond state aid (HD : 2/15) (HC) 
MONITOR 
LB 165 (Synowiecki) Change membership of the Public Employees Retirement Board 
(Referred to Retirement Committee) (HD : 3/2) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 197 (Raikes) Include funds received due to annexation or replatting in formula 
resources in the state aid formula (HD: 1/24) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 198 (Raikes) Provide for state aid adjustments to reflect transfers of property 
(HD : 1/24/05) (GF : 1/25/05) 
MONITOR 

143



" 

	

LB 204 (Thompson) Provide a rate of payment for certain medical services and 
emergency protective custody situations (Referred to Health Committee) (HD: 1/26) 
(HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

*LB 217 (Flood) (Flood priority bill) Adopt the Public Facilities Construction and 
Finance Act (Referred to Government Committee) (HD: 1/26) (GF : 2/4 - AM278) 
(SF : 3/14 - 7057) 
SUPPORT 

" 

	

LB 223 (Fischer) Create the School Finance Review Committee (HD : 1/25) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 228 (Howard) Provide tax levy and state aid increases for full-day kindergarten 
expenses as prescribed (HD: 2/1) (HC) 
SUPPORT 

" 

	

LB 229 (Howard) Change requirements for school district fall membership reports 
(HD : 1/25) (HC) 
MONITOR 

MONITOR 

LB 230 (Redfield) Require a nonunion employee to reimburse a union for legal 
services requested by such employee (Referred to Business and Labor Committee) 
(HD : 2/28) (GF : 3/8) 
MONITOR 
LB 231 (Heidemann) Change the maximum school levy as prescribed (Referred to 
Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/25) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 234 (Connealy) Change the authority of cities of the first class relating to storm 
sewers (Referred to Urban Affairs) (HD : 1/25) (GF : 1/31 - AM134) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 239 (Schimek) Permit certain students who attended Nebraska high schools to 
establish residency (HD : 3/15) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 248 (Baker) Change motor vehicle tax calculations (Referred to Revenue 
Committee (HD: 1/27) (GF : 1/31 - AM147) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 269 (Erdman) Provide a procedure for judicial emancipation for minors (Referred 
to Judiciary Committee) (HD 2/24) (HC) 
MONITOR 

144



" 

	

LB 281 (Cornett) Change limitation of action provisions under the Political 
Subdivisions Tort Claims Act (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/10) (HC) 
MONITOR 
LB 285 (Stuthman) Adopt the Nutrition in Schools Act (HD: 2/14) (HC) 
MONITOR 
LB 289 (Mines) Change annexation provisions of cities of the first class (Referred to 
Urban Affairs) (HD: 2/22) (GF: 3/2) 
MONITOR 
LB 291 (Baker) Change provisions relating to state assumption of the property 
assessment function (Referred to Revenue Committee) (HD: 1/26) (GF : 2/8) (SF: 3/9) 
MONITOR 
LB 304 (Schrock) Adopt the Education Buildings Review Commission Act 
(HD: 2/15) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 305 (Byars) Prohibit use of tobacco products on public and private educational 
property (Referred to Health Committee) (HD: 2/3) (GF : 2/17 - AM374) 
MONITOR 
*LB 312 (Landis) (Connealy Priority Bill) Change provisions of the Employment and 
Investment Growth Act (Referred to Revenue Committee) (HD : 2/10) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 313 (Landis) Change tax incentive provisions (Referred to Revenue Committee) 
(HD: 2/ 10) (HC) 
MONITOR 
LB 314 (Howard, Aguilar, Byars, et al) Create a Nebraska Heritage Week (HD: 3/1) 
(HC) 

" 

	

LB 326 (Raikes) Change average daily membership requirements for freeholders' 
petitions (HD : 2/28) (GF 3/9) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 327 (Raikes) Change school district average daily membership requirements for 
freeholder petitions (HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 347 (Bourne) Provide for socioeconomic integration plans relating to the 
enrollment option program (HD : 2/1) (HC) 
MONITOR 

145



" 

	

LB 350 (Bourne) Provide for inclusion of prekindergarten programs in the state aid 
formula as prescribed (HD: 2/1) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 352 (Preister) Provide that persons hired by a community college to replace an 
employee on a leave of absence not have certain employment rights (HD: 2/8) 
(GF : 3/14) 

" 

	

LB 357 (Raikes) Change withdrawal and dissolution provisions for unified school 
systems (HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 358 (Raikes) Change tax levy provisions relating to judgments against unified 
school systems (Referred to Revenue Committee) (HD : 2/25) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 363 (Bourne) Change penalty provisions for criminal attempt 
(Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 1/26) (GF : 2/3) (SF : 3/9) 
MONITOR 

LB 354 (Preister) Provide a service fee for employees who are not members of certain 
labor unions (Referred to Business & Labor Committee) (HD: 2/28) (HC) 
MONITOR 

**LB 364 (Retirement Committee) (Retirement Committee Priority Bill - 3/11) 
Change provisions relating to retirement for employees of Class V schools (HD : 2/22) 
(HC) 
MONITOR 
LB 365 (Retirement Committee) Change membership on the Public Employees 
Retirement Board (HD : 3/2) (HC) 
SUPPORT 

" 

	

LB 367 (Retirement Committee) Authorize and change provisions relating to 
retirement late payment fees (HD: 2/16) (GF: 3/17 - AM612) 
MONITOR 

LB 368 (Retirement Committee) Change the retirement contribution rate for school 
employees (HD: 1 /20) (GF: 2/10 - AM179) (Amended into LB 503) 

" 

	

LB 378 (Howard) Create the Commission on School Finance and require a study 
(HD: 1/25) (HC) 
MONITOR 

146



LB 380 (Redfield, Bourne, Byars, et al) Provide for insurance as a bond alternative for 
school district treasurers (HD : 3/1) (GF : 3/2) (SF : 3/9 - AM7056) (FR: 3/14 - 7056) 
(P: 3/22) 

" 

	

LB 393 (Smith) Prohibit acts relating to electronic mail (Referred to Judiciary 
Committee) (HD : 3/11) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 411 (Stuhr, Erdman, Price, et al) Change calculations for school employment 
retirement (Referred to Retirement Committee) (HD : 1/27) (GF : 2/10 - AM104) 
MONITOR 
LB 416 (Howard, Beutler, Combs, et al) Change age limitations for state wards 
(Referred to Health Committee) (HD : 2/2) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 425 (Speaker, at request of the Governor) Appropriations for the expenses of 
Nebraska State Government for the biennium ending June 30, 2007 (represents 
mainline budget bill) (Referred to Appropriations Committee) (HD : 2/17) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 467 (Byars) Creating Essential Educational Opportunities for All Students Act 
(HD: 2/7) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 495 (Stuhr) Provide a medical cost-of-living adjustment for school employees 
(Referred to Retirement Committee) (HD : 3/2) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 502 (Stuhr) Change provisions relating to average formula cost per student 
(HD: 1/31) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

**LB 503 (Retirement Committee) (Retirement Committee Priority Bill) Change 
provisions relating to the Nebraska Investment Council and the retirement systems 
(HD: 2/03) (GF : 2/14 - AM380) (SF : 2/16 - AM380) (SF : 2/23 - AM7019) (FR: 2/25 
- AM380, AM575, AM7019) (LB 368 amended into this bill - 2/23) 
MONITOR 

LB 505 (Erdman) Change the age of majority in certain instances (Referred to 
Judiciary Committee) (HD : 2/24) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 510 (Combs) Provide for immunity relating to employment references (Referred 
to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/23) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 519 (Brown) Change conflict of interest provisions for certain officials (Referred 
to Government Committee) (HD : 2/24) (GF : 3/10) 

" 

	

LB 554 (Beutler) Change minimum wage and training wage provisions (Referred to 
Business & Labor Committee) (HD : 2/14) (GF : 3/10) 

147



" 

	

LB 556 (Beutler) Change provisions relating to financial aid for purchase of required 
textbooks and supplies (HD : 3/14) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 560 (Wehrbein) Change funding provisions relating to the Information 
Technology Infrastructure Fund (Referred to Appropriations Committee) (HD : 3/16) 
(HC) 
MONITOR 

LB 561 (Kopplin) Provide free school meals for children of deployed military 
personnel (HD: 2/14) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 565 (Wehrbein) Adopt the Land Information System Program Act and provide 
funding (Referred to Government Committee) (HD 2/16) (HC) 

LB 566 (Schimek) Change and eliminate provisions relating to voter registration and 
elections (Referred to Government Committee) (HD : 2/23) (GF : 3/1) 

" 

	

LB 574 (Kremer) Change sibling provisions under the enrollment option program 
(HD: 2/ 1) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

*LB 577 (Raikes) (Schimek Priority Bill) Include early childhood education programs 
within the state aid formula as prescribed (HD: 2/ 1) (HC) 
SUPPORT 

LB 578 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to payment of property tax refunds 
(Referred to Revenue Committee) (HD: 2/ 17) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 579 (Raikes) Change provisions relating to schools (HD : 2/7) (GF: 3/9 - AM525) 

" 

	

LB 595 (Kruse) Change weighting of schools demographic factors within the state aid 
formula (HD: 1 /31) (HC) 
OPPOSE 

" 

	

LB 616 (Howard) Change reimbursement provisions under the Special Education Act 
(HD : 1/31) (HC) 
MONITOR 

LB 627 (Howard) Require school boards to adopt a bullying policy (HD : 2/14) (HC) 

LB 634 (Raikes) Change and eliminate certain school transportation provisions 
(HD: 1 /31) (GF: 2/ 1) 

" 

	

LB 635 (Raikes) Change tax levy provisions relating to schools (Referred to Revenue 
Committee) (HD : 2/3) (HC) 
MONITOR 

148



" 

	

LB 636 (Raikes) Change cost calculations for wards' education and special education 
(HD: 2/14) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 637 (Raikes) Create and provide duties for the Educational Service Unit 
Coordinating Council (HD: 2/7) (HC) 

" 

	

**LB 645 (Brashear) (Transportation Committee Priority Bill) Prohibit an agency or 
political subdivision of the state from providing certain telecommunications services 
(Referred to Transportation Committee) (HD: 2/8) (GF: 2/10) 
MONITOR 

LB 661 (Price) Change employment provisions and adopt the Advocacy Leave Act 
(Referred to Business & Labor Committee) (HD : 3/14)(HC) 

" 

	

LB 670 (Landis) Prohibit acts relating to computers and electronic mail (Referred to 
Judiciary Committee) (HD : 3/11) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 671 (Landis) Provide county personnel policies for transferring employees from 
the state or other political subdivisions to a county at county request (Referred to 
Government Committee) (HD : 2/17) (GF : 2/23) 

" 

	

*LB 675 (Langemeier) (Langemeier Priority Bill) Change provisions relating to 
school permits and other motor vehicle operators' permits (Referred to Transportation 
Committee) (HD: 2/28) (GF : 3/3) (SF : 3/14) 

" 

	

LB 681 (Schimek, Combs, Stuthman) Adopt the Physical Education in Schools Act 
(HD : 3/1) (HC) 
OPPOSE 

" 

	

*LB 689 (Stuhr, Raikes) (Raikes Priority Bill) Create and provide duties for the 
Distance Education Enhancement Task Force (HD: 2/7) (GF: 2/14) 

" 

	

LB 690 (Stuhr, Combs, Heidemann, et al) Adopt the Career Education Partnership 
Act (HD: 3/1) (GF : 3/10) 

" 

	

LB 691 (Stuhr, D. Pederson) Change provisions relating to cash balance and defined 
contribution benefits (Referred to Retirement Committee) (HD: 2/10) (HC) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 704 (McDonald, Burlng, Kremer) Change provisions relating to equalization aid 
to schools (HD: 1/31) (HC) 

LB 717 (Raikes) Adopt the Reorganization Building Aid Act (HD: 2/15) (HC) 

LB 718 (Raikes) Change educational service unit board provisions (HD : 2/7) (HC) 
SUPPORT 

149



" 

	

LB 732 (Bourne) Change state deposits for school retirement (Referred to Retirement 
Committee) (HD : 2/22) (HC) 

" 

	

LB 740 (Schimek) Change provisions relating to the limitation of actions for certain 
political subdivisions (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD : 3/17) (HC) 

" 

	

*LB 759 (Chambers) (Chambers Priority Bill) Prohibit employment discrimination 
based on sexual orientation (Referred to Judiciary Committee) (HD: 2/23) (HC) 

150



" 

	

LB 11 (Landis) Authorize the use of electronic postmarks by state agencies 
(Government Affairs) (HD : 1/21) (GF : 1/24-AM 53) (SF : 2/10) (FR: 2/25) (S : 3/9) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 80 (Baker) Eliminate a school bus speed restriction and change provisions relating 
to lights on motor-driven cycles (Transportation)(HD : 1/18/05) (GF : 1/19/05) 
(SF : 1/26/05) (FR: 2/25) (S : 3/9) 
MONITOR 

*SIGNED BY THE GOVERNOR*~ 

LB 176 (Jensen) Change provisions relating to automated external defibrillator use 
(HD: 1/19/05) (GF : 1/21/05) (SF : 2/4) (FR: 3/3) (P: 3/3) (S : 3/9) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 216 (Revenue Committee) Change revenue provisions (HD : 1/20/05) 
(GF : 1/24/05 - AM 42) (GF : 2/2-AM416) (E & R: 2/4 - Fl 1) (FR: 2/25) (S : 3/9) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 263 (Landis) Change property tax provisions (HD : 1/19) (GF: 1/21) (SF: 2/10) 
(FR: 3/3 - AM450, AM7009) (P : 3/3) (S : 3/9) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 283 (Raikes) Change property tax equalization timeframes ((Referred to Revenue 
Committee) HD: 1/19/05) (GF : 1/21 - AM31) (SF: 2/10) (FR: 2/25) (S : 3/9) 
MONITOR 

" 

	

LB 329 (Stuhr) Authorize separation payments and retirement inducements for school 
employees (NE Retirement)(HD : 1/20) (GF: 1/21) (SF : 2/3) (FR: 3/3) (P : 3/3) (S : 3/9) 

151



~nv~~i 

	

ITDD 

7/1 ~l 

~~~ 

Z l ITDD

: 

Z /7l 

wi 

i -v 

MONITOR 

ltu~~L~ 

1 Gl (TDD

; 

'~ 1 til 

*KILLED* 

152



iun: i i~mc~ ~Tnn : i i~cms~ 

13 153



l~_~l_yzl ITDD; 2 /Dl 

(~n,~~~ 

	

/1 111 ITDD : 7 /,-ivl7 

Prepared by: 

	

Approved by: 
Angelo D. Passarelli 

	

Keith W. Lutz 
Director of Administrative Affairs 

	

Superintendent of Schools 

154


	March 21, 2005 minutes signatue page.pdf
	Board Packet April 4, 2005 new agenda2revised.pdf
	Addensum to April 4, 2005.pdf
	Proof of Publication April 4, 2005
	Acknowledgement of Receipt
	Sign-in Sheets
	Financials
	Board Packet April 4, 2005 new agenda2.pdf
	Board of Education April 4, 2005
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	Minutes - March 21, 2005
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	G.1. Awarding of Contracts for 2005 Summer Roofing Projects
	Memo to Dr. Lutz on Roofing Projects
	H.1. Awarding of Contracts for Summer Paving Projects
	H.2. Awarding of Contracts for Architects
	H.3. Admistrator Job Description Change 2100.04
	H.4. Reaffirm Policy 4110 - Personnel - Personnel Records
	H.5.  Approl of Rule 4110.1 - Personnel - Personnel Records
	H.6 Approval of Rule 4510.5 - Personnel - Extended Leave Without Pay
	H.7. First Reading of Policy 7305 - Technology - Web Publishing 
	H.8 Administrator for Hire
	H.9. Approval of Personnel Actions:  Resignations, Leaves of Absence and New Hires
	I.1. Enrollment Report
	I.1. Foundation Grant Winners
	I.3. Quarterly Investment Report
	I.4.Quarterly Operation & Maintenance Report
	I.5. Quarterly Food Service Report
	I.6. Quarterly Construction Report
	I.7. Parent Opinion Survey Results
	I.8. Legislative Update





